Public Document Pack

Oldham
Council

COMMONS REGISTRATION COMMITTEE
Regulatory Committee
Agenda

Date Monday 18 March 2019

Time 4.30 pm

Venue Crompton Suite, Civic Centre, Oldham, West Street, Oldham, OL1 1NL

Notes 1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST- If a Member requires any advice on

any item involving a possible declaration of interest which could affect
his/her ability to speak and/or vote he/she is advised to contact Paul
Entwistle or Sian Walter-Browne in advance of the meeting.

2. CONTACT OFFICER for this Agenda is Sian Walter-Browne Tel. 0161
770 5151 or email sian.walter-browne@oldham.gov.uk

3. PUBLIC QUESTIONS — Any member of the public wishing to ask a
question at the above meeting can do so only if a written copy of the
question is submitted to the Contact officer by 12 Noon on Wednesday 13"
March 2019.

4. FILMING - The Council, members of the public and the press may
record / film / photograph or broadcast this meeting when the public and
the press are not lawfully excluded. Any member of the public who attends
a meeting and objects to being filmed should advise the Constitutional
Services Officer who will instruct that they are not included in the filming.

Please note that anyone using recording equipment both audio and visual
will not be permitted to leave the equipment in the room where a private
meeting is held.

Recording and reporting the Council’s meetings is subject to the law

including the law of defamation, the Human Rights Act, the Data Protection
Act and the law on public order offences.

MEMBERSHIP OF THE COMMONS REGISTRATION COMMITTEE IS AS
FOLLOWS:
Councillors S Bashforth, Phythian, Shuttleworth, Sykes and Toor

Item No
1 Apologies For Absence

2 Urgent Business


mailto:sian.walter-browne@oldham.gov.uk

Oldham

Council

Urgent business, if any, introduced by the Chair
Declarations of Interest

To Receive Declarations of Interest in any Contract or matter to be discussed at
the meeting.

Public Question Time

To receive Questions from the Public, in accordance with the Council’s
Constitution.

Application to Register a Village Green - Land at Hodge Clough Road, Oldham
(Pages 1 - 240)



Agenda ltem 5

©

Oldham

Council

Report to COMMONS REGISTRATION COMMITTEE

Application to Register a Village Green —
Land at Hodge Clough Road, Oldham

Portfolio Holder: Clir Shah, Cabinet Member for
Neighbourhood Services

Officer Contact: Director of Legal Services

Report Author: Alan Evans Group Solicitor
Ext. 3019

18 March 2019

Reason for Decision
Members are asked to determine an application to register land at Hodge Clough Road,
Oldham as a village green.

Recommendations

It is recommended that Members accept the recommendation of Alan Evans (barrister of
Kings Chambers, Manchester) and reject the application to register land at Hodge Clough
Road, Oldham as a village green on the grounds that the land does not meet the legal test
for registration as a village green, because use of the land for lawful sports and pastimes
has not been “as of right”.

Page 1



Commons Registration Committee 18 March 2019

Application to register a village green — land at Hodge Clough Road, Oldham

1

11

1.2

13

1.4

15

2.1

Background

The Council is the Commons Registration Authority for the borough of Oldham and is
responsible for determining any applications to register a village green within the borough.
The Council has established the Commons Registration Committee which has delegated
authority to consider such applications.

On 27 June 2018, the Council received an application to register land on Hodge Clough
Road as a village green. A plan showing the location of the land claimed as a village
green is annexed to this report as Appendix 1. The land is owned by the Council. First
Choice Homes Oldham Ltd (FCHO) has applied for planning permission to develop the
land for housing. The application was submitted by Mr Fred Wiliamson and was
supported by 11 letters/statements from local residents setting out their use of the land
and a petition containing over 100 signatures that the land should be granted village
green status. The letters are annexed to this report as Appendix 2. The petition will be
available at the committee meeting for Members to view.

The application was made under section 15(2) of the Commons Act 2006. In accordance
with statutory procedures, the application was advertised and two objections were
received before the closing date for objection, from FCHO and from the land owner
(Oldham Council). The objection from FCHO is annexed to this report as Appendix 3 and
the objection from Oldham Council is annexed as Appendix 4. The objections were sent
to Mr Williamson for further comment and he made further representations which are
annexed to this report as Appendix 5.

To avoid the potential for conflict of interest where an application to register land as a
village green relates to Council owned land, the Council has previously agreed that any
such application should be subject to independent scrutiny by a barrister who will consider
whether the application meets the legal test for registration as a village green and produce
a report of his/her findings for consideration by the Commons Registration Committee,
which takes the final decision on the application.

The Council appointed Alan Evans, a barrister at Kings Chambers in Manchester with
considerable experience of village green law to consider the application and the
objections. Mr Evans was instructed that if he was unable to make a recommendation on
the submitted documents, he was to hold a non statutory public inquiry to hear evidence
relating to the application. In the event, Mr Evans was able to consider the application
without holding an inquiry and a copy of his report is annexed to this report as Appendix 6.

Legal Test for Registration

The application was made to register the land as a village green under section 15(2) of
the Commons Act 2006 which states:

(2) this subsection applies where —

a) a significant number of the inhabitants of any locality, or of any neighbourhood
within a locality, have indulged as of right in lawful sports and pastimes on the
land for a period of at least 20 years; and

b) they continue to do so at the time of the application.

The onus of proof is on the applicant to prove his case meets all the requirements of
section 15(2) on the balance of probabilities. A significant body of case law has developed

Page 2



2.2

2.3

24

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

3.1

over the years which provides interpretation of the wording contained in section 15(2) as
follows:

“a significant number”

Significant does not mean considerable or substantial. What matters is that the number of
people using the land in question has to be sufficient to indicate that their use of the land
signifies that it is in general use by the local community for informal recreation, rather than
occasional use by individuals as trespassers. It is not necessary that the users come
predominantly from the claimed locality or neighbourhood, provided a significant number
of the inhabitants of the claimed locality or neighbourhood are among the users. The
requirement is that the users include a significant number of inhabitants of the claimed
locality or neighbourhood, so as to establish a clear link between the locality or
neighbourhood and the proposed village green, even if such people do not comprise most
of the users.

“of the inhabitants of any locality or of any neighbourhood within a locality”

A “locality” cannot be created by drawing a line on a map. It must be some division of the
county known to the law such as a borough or parish. A “neighbourhood” need not be a
recognised administrative unit but it must have a significant degree of cohesiveness e.g. a
housing estate can be a neighbourhood. A neighbourhood need not lie wholly within a
single locality.

“have indulged as of right”

Use of land ‘as of right’ means use that is not by force, nor stealth, nor with the licence of
the owner. Whether use is of right does not turn on the subjective beliefs of the users i.e.
whether they believed they were using it as of right. The unifying element of the three
vitiating circumstances (force, stealth and permission) is that each constitutes a reason
why it would not have been reasonable to expect the owner to resist the exercise of the
right — in the case of use by force, because rights should not be acquired by the use of
force; in the case of use by stealth, because the owner would have not known of the user;
and in the case of use by permission, because he had consented to the user, but for a
limited period. The use must be judged objectively from the stand point of a reasonable
land owner.

“in lawful sports and pastimes”
The words “lawful sports and pastimes” can include informal recreation such as walking,
with or without dogs and children’s play.

“on the land”

Land, substantial parts of which were overgrown and inaccessible for recreation can be
registered as a green, provided that the land could be regarded as having been used as a
whole for recreation.

“for a period of at least 20 years”
The relevant use must continue throughout the whole of the 20 year period relied upon,
although certain periods of non use can be disregarded.

“and they continue to do so at the time of the application”
The qualifying use must continue at the date of the application.

Mr Evans’ Report

Mr Evans considered the application, the objections from FCHO and the Council and the
applicant’s response to the objections. His overall conclusion is that the application land
was acquired by the Council for housing purposes in the 1960s, that it was provided and
laid out by the Council as public open space in the 1990s and that there was appropriate

Page 3



3.2

3.1

4.1

6.1

6.2

7.1

8.1

9.1

10

10.1

11

power to do so under housing legislation in the Housing Act 1985. Consequently the use
of the land by local inhabitants for informal recreation was use of public open space
provided and laid out by the Council for that purpose. Their use of the land was pursuant
to a public right or a publicly based licence and thus use “by right” and not “as of right”.

Mr Evans concluded that as the use of the land by local residents has been use “by right”,
a fundamental requirement for registration of the land as a village green under section
15(2) of the Commons Act 2006 has not been met and the application must fail.
Options/Alternatives

The options available to Members are as follows:

Approve the application to register the land at Hodge Clough Road as a village green. In
order to do so Members would have to be satisfied that the application met the legal tests
for registration set out in paragraph 2 above and that Mr Evans was wrong in his
assessment of the application.

Reject the application to register the land at Hodge Clough Road as a village green,
based on the report of Mr Evans.

Preferred Option

The preferred option is for the application to be rejected based on the report prepared by
Mr Evans, who has considered all the evidence and applied the relevant legal test for
registration of land as a village green.

Financial Implications

As detailed in Para 1.2, the Council has received an application for planning permission
from First Choice Homes Oldham Ltd (FCHO) to develop the land for housing, however

Members must note this cannot be taken into consideration.

There are no other financial implications arising from the outcome of this report. (Jit
Kara/Lee Walsh)

Legal Services Comments

These are incorporated within the report. Members must determine the application taking
all relevant matters into consideration, ignoring those that are irrelevant and giving
reasons for their decision that are lawful, reasonable and rational. (A Evans)
Co-operative Agenda

Not applicable

Human Resources Comments

Not applicable

Risk Assessments

Not applicable

IT Implications

Page 4



111

12

12.1

13

13.1

14

14.1

15

15.1

16

16.1

17

17.1

18

18.1

19

19.1

20

20.1

None

Property Implications

The application land is owned by the Council. However the decision on whether to

register the land as a village green can only be taken if the legal test for registration is

met. Therefore any property implications are irrelevant and cannot be taken into account

in deciding whether to register the land as a village green.

Procurement Implications

None

Environmental and Health & Safety Implications

None

Equality, community cohesion and crime implications

None

Equality Impact Assessment Completed?

No

Key Decision

No

Key Decision Reference

N/A

Background Papers
The following is a list of background papers on which this report is based in accordance
with the requirements of Section 100(1) of the Local Government Act 1972. It does not
include documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information as defined by
the Act:

File Ref: 13461 (RTG/6)

Name of File: Hodge Clough Road Village Green Application

Records held in Legal Department, Civic Centre, West Street, Oldham OL1 1UL

Officer Name: Alan Evans

Contact No: (0161) 770 3019

Appendices

Appendix 1 — Plan showing the application land

Appendix 2 — Evidence submitted in support of the application

Appendix 3 — Objection from FCHO

Appendix 4 — Objection from Oldham Council

Appendix 5 — Further representations by Mr Williamson
Appendix 6 — Report of Alan Evans (barrister)

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



\

ol
ST o- 5> D Ece Pt

c/efi&

A e To

-

&=

M AN

-

rial—

mn<

No

SEZZU0UL JOUMIE U3 PaNIFSi) SIS £10Z ko] umon) (3} hontts, 5 IIUPIO

%@

Page 7

OL11RU

OLICITORS
115 UNION ST

[ OLDHAM

[

)
2

| CUTTLE & CO

£



This page is intentionally left blank



Section 106 agreement dated 11 January 1996

Page 9



A MNP - =,

\ o ™ ap———

e DATED HEH jm%cﬁ = 1996

OLDHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL
and

BADSATT HOMES LIMITED

QFr et MY FiD-

PLANNING OBLIGATION

Under Ssction 106 of the Town and
Councry Planning Act 1990
in connection with land ac Hodge Clough Road,
Oldhzm

Graham F Smith LL.3 Dip.LG
Solicitor to the Council
Cidham 3orough Counecil
Civic Centre

West Street

Oicham OLL UL

Page 10




S LN

A o mng o » mx =

-

THLS PLANNING OBLIGATION is made the |lbn day of J 9% serveen of
BOROUGH COUNCIL of Civie Centre West Street Oidham {hereinafter referred t
"the Council") of the one part and BARRATT HOMES LIMITED of Wingrove =

Ponteland Road Newcastle-Upon-Tyne (hereinafter referred to as "the Develop

of the other part

WHEREAS

L. (a)  THE Council is the freenold owner of the land described in

schedule hereto (hereinarter referrad to as "the Land")
(b) The Council has entered inte an 2agreement of even date with
Developer by way of Licence to develop the Land

2. THE Council is the local planning autkority for the burpose of the Town
Country Planning Act 1990 (hereinafter referred to as "the Act") Zor
area within which the Land is situatad

3. THE Developer has by written application dated the 2lst  Juiy 1995
bearing the Council's raferance numober 033351/95 zpplied for permission
develop the Land in the manner and for the uses set out in the pl:
specifications and partjiculars comprising the said application

4 THE Council is satisfied that subject to the provisions of this Plann-
Obligation the development disclosed oy the said appiication is such as
be approved by them under the Act and other Acts and Regulatic
appertaining thereto and accordingly have issued a notice of plann:
permission of even date {hereinafter referred to as "the Planni
Permission")

NOW IT IS HfREBY AGREED BY AND BETWEEN THE PARTIES HERETO AS FOLLOYS:

1.  THIS Planning Obligation i3 made in pursuance of Section 106 of the Act z.
the covenants herein contained by the Developer shall be covenants whic
shall be enforceable by the Couneil against the Developer

2.  THAT the Land shall be subject to the conditions restrictions ar

provisions regulating the development and use thereof contained in b

Page 11 _ ; _



lllllllll

- -

-

-

=

i

Sy

- —
- == .
P bl & =

[

i

g DETELTIPM:
ANt Boor

o

ak

Sewl Bo
35l

>

Numbar
TV TY Y YT TewY

[

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990

SECTION 106 PLANNING OBLIGATI

Page 12

APPLICATION NUMBER PA/033351/9

| ANPY AT HNARME S Aty DAAR AT MLIARA




TR s ——

in this Planning Obligation

The Developer shall upon completion of this Planning Obligation pay to the
Counci! the sum of €30,000 (receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged) as &
contribution towards the cost of the Council providing an area of public
open space in the area of the Land and the Council shall within z
reasonable period provide and lay out the area of public open space

NOTHING in this Planning Obligatifon shall be taken or construed eas
absolving the Developer from obtaining any other consent or approval
required by law

IF any difference or dispute arises between the parties hereto touching or
concerning their respective rights duties ljiabilitles or obligations utnder
or by virtue of this Planning Obligation the same shall be referred to 2
member of the Royal Inscitution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Lo be zgreec
between the parties or failing agreement upon request by one party Zor
arbitration Lthat party may after 21 days of that request by him raguest
that an arpitrator be appolinted by the President for the time belng of the
said RICS or nis duly authorised deputy en the applicztion of either party
and in this respect such raferral shall be construed as a submission ¢to
arbitration within the meaning of the Arbitration Acts 1950-1979 or any
statutory modiflcation or re-esnactment thereof for the time being in force

EACH party shall bear and pay any costs which they incur in the preparation
and execution of this Planning Obligation

SCHEDULE

ALL THAT plot of land situate at Hodge Clough Road, Oldham, more particularly

delineated and edged in red on the plan annexed hereto

Page 13, _



Pre———

IN WITNESS whereof the Counecil and - the Developer .
\\.\

respactive Common Seals tec be hereunto affixed the day 2. MR E LT T
. =
Sy

written

Clygr
L3 L A Y R

Mumber In Seal Book

acmged il

smedFTNSEA VISR SRR RN oﬂuul’ﬂ'ﬂul

THE COMMON SEAL of
OLDHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL
was hereunto affixed

in the e%
 aoufra fEcanome = RLOPMENT

M on behalf ) L.

of ibBEAII.ﬁQﬂES.LIﬂIIED by ) -
. Fuied SEN/LE

and . pmeieg WAL

in exercise of the poOWerS
confarred on them by a Power

)
)
of Attorney dated lst July }
1995 who nave hereunta set ) A
)
}

— S

the name of sarratt Homes

Limitew

AT, Compo o2 Crewza=—™

#n the Dpesence of : -

P

——
i EL=E

Coaveb vl e

\-P-m-: Mﬂ-np-:.-::._

poc ref: 10167/12/5F



e o R e e




Letters in support of the application

Page 16



42 Hodge Clough Road
Holly Mount

OLDHAM

OL1 4PW

24 June 2018

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN

Dear Sir/Madam

Re Application for Villoge Green Status: Land gn Hodge Clough Road

| am writing to you to strongly support the application for ‘Village Green Status’ for the land on
Hodge Clough Road.

Vhave lived here now for almost 22 years. My two children were born and raised here, my daughter
now 20 and my son 15.

This land is where our memories have formed and where | have watched my children grow and
learn, teaching my children to ride their bikes without stabilisers, kicking a ball about, having
pretend teddy bear tea parties. |tis here where they have met other children and developed
friendships and through their playing many parents have met and become good friends often Joining
in the fun playing ball games and rounders with them. When they wanted to camp out, but no
longer camp in the back garden this land is where they camped with their friends, where I could
watch over them from the house.

We have had paddling pools on here, a trampoline, water balloon fights, snow ball fights, built
snowmen and igloos, the games we have all played are andless.

We have celebrated birthdays with bouncy castles, fireworks at Bonfire Night and New Year's Eves.
Not only have my children, their friends and cousins played and enjoyed this land they have also
been fortunate enough ta learn about its wildlife. There are wild deer that come up onte this land
most mornings, foxes, bees and at night you can often spot bats. it also attracts various birds, ducks,

Canadian geese and we have even seen a heran on a number of occasions.

There are also many dog walkers walk here and enjoy themselves. This is where we walked our dogs
before they sadly died. My daughter used to sometimes ride her horse here,

It has also been a pleasure to see my neighbours children grow here who now bring their children to
play and explore like they did.

When | moved into my home 22 years’ ago | didn’t know anyone in the area but | fee! that through
this land | have met some lovely people who have become good friends. It has been a strong hub

Page 17



and focal point of the local community bringing families together. During all this time there has
never been any trouble with fighting, gangs or drugs which [ feel demonstrates just how strang this
land has brought the community together. | beliave it is this land that has helped stop our children

from standing and congregating on street corners. This land has enabled them to thrive and enjoy
their childhood.

I fully support this application for ‘Village Grean Status’.

Yours sincerely

A

Judith Langley

Page 18



(o]0)] Hocl C(Cfaaﬂ\m
O lakhamn
AR -7

o 0 il G S
i Hod z Efji
M!QMOI.OW\ o a,c Qéj‘\ %w&& (mﬂ>~

am rlig 1e o s bl on e



Silcbren comd els s

(X }uméaywownol [ do }:wbwa_m
c:am(jrln wJ'awc) nmrll-o/éﬂafﬂ

g
U%Dm -Q%fit paka

Page 20



MR & MRS G C & ) D BRADDOCK
50 HODGE CLOUGH ROAD
MOORSIDE
OL1 4PW

RE: APPLICATION FOR VILLAGE STATUS

My wife and i have lived here for nearly 22 years, and have raised two children, and now a
grandson so far. All former and present children view the open space as focal point for the
community, to play,meet and be safe.

Our own two children used it for ball games,
riding bikes, hide and seek, and pitching tents in the summer. These activities are now
carried on by another generation, like uor grandson and his friends.

It is aiso used as a facal point for celebrations
through out the year, one been new years eve. It is also used by a vast amount of dog
walkers, including ourselves.

I think the main thing that attracts young and old is the widlife here,
foxes,bats,,bees,deer,hirds etc. These are things that wouldn’t be here if it wasn't for the
open space be preserved.

We cannot stress enough how this piece of land is an integeral
part of daily life for the community, which if it wasnt here, would be lost and become just
another no name street,area of the country.

We hole heartedly support the application for
village green status. Enclosed is a picture of our grandson enjoying one of the many area's
here.

zi] 6| 1s

Page 21



Page 22



Miss C Williamson

40 Hodge Clough Road
Moorside

24 June

To whom it may concern.

| would like to send you my opinion why | think the land on Hodge Claugh Road should become a
village green status.

I lived at my parents address for over 20 years until i recently moved out of the house. My son, now
12 years old has spent all his life there. | feel he has been blessed because of the land being available
for him to play on over the years. It has been invaluable for him and the communities children for
meeting and being able to make friends. The land has been the focal peint of children congregating
and playing sports within eye and ear shot of parent ,grandparents and friends. There is a shortage
of places for children to play safely away from cars and this land provided a safe area, everyone
knows other peoples children so its SAFE. There has been organised celebrations like camping, New
years eve celebration, Bonfire night celebrations, bouncy castles , plenty of water fights, the list is
endless. ), like others have so many happy memories seeing the children grow up together round
there. Now we need a space for the younger generation, which are just starting ta play out,to give
them the chance and learn the valuable way of life of being able to play out safely. Very important
note is that there has never EVER been any trouble or cause for concern about the land heing used
for children playing on it. Another added bonus of the land for everyone as weli as the children is the
wild life. Deer, foxes and bats just to name a few are living around here in their natural habitat. it is a
wonderful sight to see the animals living naturally for al! ages. There are plenty of dog walkers that
use the land, people can have a chat and get to know one another. One thing | would say about that
is everybody takes pride of this little plece of green sa not once has it been reported for dog fouling.
The area is cherished by the community and is well loved.

Thanks ,

Gaalee

Page 23






HS T)mr\a__(ﬂrm

22 Moﬁ Cloga]g_ﬁggd

Ol P .
22 -6 2A01%
m\l %u epRAD w@a@m% 5 1m S .Hmd;\ gﬁ_
'll L,g 1 o 8&1’\ on\!
__ _lon W h Cood.

\ngm,p e d mflks

O hn U SUunaortc \
ﬁneg._gtél_n@&lu SO _&
ﬁn end (Lot ree=das) | pn&_tﬂgu_q:md__

"ﬂ\g \/{a h_ﬂgxb_&ad_zﬂa_gm___vs a
Conamnor P Yl L‘*
o e 69 —Vrh

olony use it Gr Spade adsda
e\ &‘LF@MJ& 2vecoros lecllh & welld

eag. Te Lna on Ma Oild

||

X X d
\D-E;;F— &Lu__,% Foraudd cauw? o regalee

e Oock on resohnde bealth — phqu.Uu rren\fq[\u

il




™o \eler v n s Towe \ee
R \/&)\G%Q %:é\ﬁ %ﬁ‘{n% ”a\zxu\J\emECLm&H
:upp\'\cck\m o) \aued, ok A0

e Q“f;m % 6

Q-)\_QBU} oppoid&_ NN \Neene, No&k "

K Powy oo Oi wik\oscm}ew\ m@\r&o\

ooy o Uk ooliis due Vo Wer v b

QX Qx\mod\f\-m " %X \
T\\&. \ N E;X)QALK\ \95 S el

%\@@3 [ DUgS Q)oe\xac&\ S N&i‘s\ ek

vane ol adwike-
C\N) \We  \nawe \(\i&\mm% me\\moc\\gﬂ\\cmﬁ

o) Noddrer W i on & oy x&&m\oj
P \elk.

M ORI M.M@\&\ G‘X%:%\m
\Q\_&‘?;\- \:MX\;?)Q m)\-t@ \;Uamr\ \Q\Qﬂ_\&\@.ﬂ‘-s N \
e e Dok dabass g o

k{mh . M PR T L)



%’% onowing \ Vowe e@m\\d Jeex on Weg

el

Fivat g Bttt e

Page 27



Mr Fred Williamson & Mrs Marlene Williamson,

40 Hodge Clough Rd, Oldham, OL1 4PW.

RE: Village Green Status

We have lived at the above address for over 21 years and have enjoyed the open aspect of the field
opposite our property, as have many other people from Hodge Clough Rd and the surrounding area.

The field is used regularly for dog walking by most people in the area and is a place where people
from the community casually meet whilst doing this activity, It has helped develop a community
spirit amongst the residents of the development which was commissioned in 1997. The builders
(Barratt’s) payed QOldham Council £30,000 to develop and maintain this as an open space, after they
had completed their Planning obligation, {Documentation is available to prove this).

Children regularly play on this field, (including our grand-son), enjoying a variety of activities
including: cycling, football, rugby, cricket, kite flying, more recently drone flying, and games such as
chase and tag where it considered safe and away from traffic, but still highly visible from the
opposite properties, which gives a sense of safety and security that is not offered by the Millennium
Green, as it too far away and has to be reached by crossing 2 busy road. Parties have also been held
on this field including the use of “Bouncy Castles”.

The field is not fouled by the dog walkers as it is a respected amenity by all and the dog waste Is
removed by the owners.

A variety of wildiife has been observed on the field including bats, deer, foxes, badgers, ducks and
other bird species,

Hopefully this integral part of our community will remain as the open space the residents use and
enjoy.

Yours sincerely,

Fred & Marlene Williamson




-

in

ALL

in this Planning Obligation
The Developer shall upen completion of this Flanning Obligatien pay to the
Council the sum of €30,000 (receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged) as z
contribution towards the cost of the Council providing an areaz of public
open space in the area of the Lland and the Council shall within =&
reasonable period provide and lay out the area of public open space
NOTHING in this ©Plaaning Obligation shall be taken or construed as
zbsolving the Developer <rom obtaining any other consant or approvea.
required by law
T any diSfarence or cispuce arises between the parties nerato touchilng o:
cencesning  thelir respactive rights duties lizoilitles or obligations undce:
5r =y virzua of this Planning Obligatlon the same shall be referred to :
me=ter o the Xoyal Institutiaon of Chartarsd Surveyors (RICS) to be agraec
between the parties or Salling agreement upon request by one party ol
arbitration that party may after 21 days of that request by him reques’
shat an arbizrazor te appointed by the President for the time belng of th
s2id PICS ar nis duiy zuthorised deputy on the applicatlon of either part:
and in this respect such ra2farral shall e construed as 2 submlssion ¢
arpitrztion within the meaning of the Arbitration Acts 1950-1979 or an
statutory modiflcation or re-snactmsnt thersof for the time belng in fores
EACH party shalf’bear and pay any costs which they lncur In the preparatio
and execction of this Planning Obligation

SCHEDULZ

THAT plot of land situzte at Hodge Clough Road, Oldham, more particularl

delineated and edged in red on the plan annexed hereto

Page 29 m
- 2



M\r Q-mrﬁ QQQ‘/&. e

A, Lefweu LRRwWe '
NOOE< DT

DOV
O LLLOF

Gy IGove 018

Tes SOPPORT OF THE APPLICRTION (or VILLAEE GREDY ST
#o WHom Tt MAY Cereeen.

_ Clor
e on Hedge D -
lw |’E0l\‘50(12 Q“—"’: o.-(:) F(.jlloﬂo_

Ju&wowqw*c% OFP“QW‘?‘{@l to racke UC
—1-

oV e pf d);.
Vot
p&, q@&ﬁf“ - o wr‘:}:&@l ird_;if
e L s
5 o Lok wkmpfg%ym;h Lok 2 &
ook O WP 2y Yk T D Wt
e, o0 lajeﬁchf} %En&% w@‘m”mﬁ- Tn
> ard robket © Ad oonan clmdceJ



chuldren Wlﬂbv@\ Ofi Brer bles, bj Romourwan H[lef\
b, We Shodd be Cmgkd@ft-e% ‘U‘\L& axea, ¢S ?of

&ws \ﬂ’%m

Page 31



MR & MRS A BROOKS

28 HODGE CLOUGH ROAD
MOORSIDE

OLDHAM

OL1 4PW

Date 23/06/2018

RE: APPLICATION FOR VILLAGE STATUS

My husband and | have lived here for 11 years with our daughter, this open space is used to
play/meet up with her friends also playing with children on this streetfin the area, a community
point to play and be safe having fun/laughter, using it for prams/dolis-ball games-riding bikes-hand
stands/roly polys etc, our daughter and other children have even pitched Tents, all these activities
have continued from year to year, generation after generation, hopefully carrying on if we ever get
grandchildren, :

Itis also used as an area for celebrations throughout the year (New Year, birthdays etc) where
bouncey castles have been set up also used by a considerable amount of dog walkers including
ourselves.

A main attraction for young/old to the area is the nature/wildlife, {birds-ducks-bats-foxes/we have
also seen deer as well), these wouldn’t be here if only for the preserved open space.

We cannot emphasis enough haw much this piece of land is part of daily life, to lose this piece of
land would be a devastation to our family and the community.

Yours Faithfully

3
Aol

Page 32



My Mei A Torslatd

7:‘?‘ uﬁal%(__Cé&t-‘ﬁ?—.ﬂ;j_.
el e at! P K

22-06-1%.

Thie uordotrithed o0 et , |
et P Céﬁjé AJ

T4 m?gémé,,) %c m.{é‘fé Goren] Dlutovy oo
/
./f, )74 Loy ee
ﬂ-/-mu{f/(f_my/ r&/ M
oticiet Ko filooot o llrsst _vinad..

/f J 24 Cm'va_:—f 2l M 2L272 A:.-.-V/ P Lot

l

oyl oty ket 2

s ?’cu.é Py _ﬁ_%_&z%—
71(1 LA loboe s 0 Loy oa;ﬁé L -/Mcﬁ_-ﬁe_

oyt it e s, ttineithsy ozt

Wt itad/s MJ?LM_@LML%

. y _'wé%‘

Page 33




This is in support of the application for village green status for land on Hodge
Clough Road.

46 Hodge Clough Road
Moorside

Oldham

Lancs

OL1 4PW

Dear Sir/Madam

I'm writting to you in regards to the land on Hodge Clough Road. We have
lived on Hodge Clough road for nearly 5 years. We have an Olde English
Sheepdog who needs plenty of exercise and we use this land at least twice a
day. We also have 3 children aged 11, 8 and 3 and they use the field on a
daily basis. My husband goes on the field and organises all the children in the
area they all come together in the school holidays to play football games,
cricket and athletics. They ride their bikes and play with all of their friends on
here and its a safe place for them as there isn't anywhere else near by for them
to play. The land is also very beneficial to the community and being a green
space is good for peoples health and well being. The land is a focal point for
all of the community with events such as new years eve fireworks displays
and november the 5th bonfire night. I'm enclosing a picture of some of the
wildlife that i have witnessed directly outside of my home which my children
benefit from seeing.

Kind Regards
Mr and Mrs Holtom

AP RYNRR

21—/6/7_015

Pagel QF &

Page 34



i Ne 'S e deer e o 3

vech\
Oorside. owr VWouse A

NS Meone. Vo YWans

SN,

14—/6 [20\%

éage 35



This page is intentionally left blank



First Choice Homes Gldham
B M First Place, 22 Union Street, Oldham OL1 1BE
Firstcholce Y . oammn
C H 0 W: www.fcho.co.uk
HOM ES OLDHAM MyFCHO - your customer portal

n D facebook.com/FirstChoiceHomesQOldham
@FirstForFCHO

FAO the Group Salicitor (Environment)

Legal and Demacratic

Commercial Services

Level 4, Civic Centre

West Street

Oldham

OL1 1UL 14" September 2018

Dear Sir/Madam,

Application to Register Land as a Village Green — Hodge Clough Road (reference
AE/RTG/6)

Please find enclosed an objection on behalf of First Choice Homes Oldham in relation to
the Village Green application for the land at Hodge Clough Road, Sholver, Oldham.

Should you have any queries or require any further information regarding this matter,
please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely

Nkolg Bod@-

Natalie Blackston
Email: natalie.blackston@fcho.co.uk

Improving lives in Oldham

Hest Choice Homes (iitham Tinviten] 15 4 Chanzable Community Renefis Socety teqistesed vatl 1he Hnanewl Cond et Aty wunpasy -amber 311 38R
Fust Lhoige Hemes Oldhaen, List Flace, 22 Union Sieet, Didham 0L iBE,
egisiered witil tie Humes and Communiies Agency o, A582. VAT Heg 2o, 795007 216,




Firstchoice

HOMES DLDHAM

THE COMMONS ACT 2006

VILLAGE GREEN APPLICATION - LAND AT HODGE CLOUGH ROAD,
OLDHAM, GREATER MANCHESTER

OBJECTIONS OF FIRST CHOICE HOMES OLDHAM LIMITED

1. Introduction

1.1 The Objections are made on behalf of First Choice Homes Oldham Limited
(FCHO) of First Place, 22 Union Street, Oldham OL1 1BE, the interested
party in relation to the land which constitutes the land the subject of the
Application (the Claimed Land). FCHO is a provider of social housing.

1.2 Oldham Metropolitan Borough Council's (the Owner) title to part of the
Claimed Land is registered at HM Land Registry under two Titles: First Title
LA88157 Freehold - purchased by the Owner on 26th June 1966. Second
Title LA43936 Freehold. Land was purchased by the Council on 19th May
1964. Evidence of these titles is annexed to the Statutory Declaration of
Julie Florence Hall as exhibit ‘JFH1'.

1.3 The Claimed Land was in the ownership of County Borough of Oldham up
to local government re- organisation in 1974 and thereafter came onto the
ownership of the Oldham Metropolitan Borough Council the successor
authority to County Borough of Oldham under the Local Government Act
1972 (the 1972 Act).

1.4 There have been various sales out of the original parcel of LA88157
including Stock transfer land to FCHO. FCHO does not know the powers
utilised to purchase the Claimed Land in title LA88157. The second part of
the Claimed Land is in title LA43936 which was purchased by the Owner
pursuant to Part V of the Housing Act 1957. The Owner has disposed of
some of its land including land under stock transfer to FCHO but remains the
Owner of the Claimed Land.

1.5 It is for the Applicant to prove his case.

1.6 The Applicant asserts, but provides no evidence to support, that £30,000
was given as a direct contribution to maintain the Claimed Land.

1.7 It is usual for a Claim to be supported by Witness Statements or forms of
evidence such as the evidence questionnaire provided by the Open Spaces
Society. Since those conventions have not been observed, it is, by and
large, difficult to assess the evidence of the Applicant and his witnesses.
The maijority of the supporters of the Applicant provide household
statements made jointly with other persons or have otherwise signed a pre-
prepared notice compiled by the Applicant. The individual statements of
witnesses are not open to be tested by FCHO or any other objector. In

Page 33




m firstcholce

HOMES CLOHAM

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

3.4

which case unless there is an open inquiry into this matter and each person
is questioned and then cross examined with their evidence being tested, the
‘evidence’ should be disregarded.

Description of the Claimed Land

The Claimed Land is slightly irregular in shape although discernably
rectangular. The Claimed Land has a boundary to the East that is fronted by
a public highway named Hodge Clough Road. To the Northern boundary is
a line of fir trees and fencing. To the West is untended open land. The
boundary to the South end is encompassed by large logs and untended
open land. The Claimed Land has been maintained at the public expense
and in a manner that is distinct to the surrounding land. Distinguishing
aspects of the Claimed Land are:

(a) agritting bin;

(b)  regular mowing and maintenance by the Owner;

(c) astreet light sited on the Claimed Land;

(d) clear boundaries to all sides;

(e) alack of pathways, gates or obstructions to entry

()  alack of shrubbery on the Claimed Land

The Claimed Land is an area of maintained open grassland.

Dwelling houses Hodge Clough Road

The residential properties that front Hodge Clough Road are majority owner
occupied. The largest tenure on the adjacent housing estate is owned by
FCHO.

Annexed as Exhibit 'JFH2’ to the Statutory Declaration of Julie Florence Hall
are photographs of the Claimed Land. In addition the Claimed Land can be
viewed as of an antecedent date in Google Streetview. The Google
Streetview clearly corroborates the observations of Mrs Hall made during a
site visit on 22" August 2018.

FCHO is not aware of any written agreements or written permission granted
either by the County Borough of Oldham or the Owner to any persons to use
the Claimed Land.

Maintenance of the Claimed Land

The Owner maintains the whole of the Claimed Land and to its knowledge so
did the County Borough of Oldham.

) Page 39




Firstcholce

HOMES T CH AR

4.2

4.3

51

6.1

7.1

7.2

7.3

Visual inspection of the Claimed Land on 22nd August 2018 revealed a well
maintained, regularly mowed, almost rectanguiar, piece of land that has all of
the hall marks of public open space.

The Open Spaces Act 1906 s.20 defines open space “The expression “open
space” means any land, whether inclosed or not, on which there are no
buildings or of which not more than one twentieth part is covered with
buildings, and the whole or the remainder of which is laid out as a garden or
is used for purposes of recreation, or lies waste and unoccupied.”

Signage

There is no signage in situ on the Claimed Land. The gritting bin that is sited
on the Claimed Land has a sign clearly labelling it as such.

Playing/Wildlife/Picnic

On inspection, 22" éﬁugust 2018, there was no playing, or picnics taking
place. There wa o og walking, football, rugby, cricket, kite flying, drone
flying, cycling, evidence of bonfires, snowman building, carol singing,
paddling pools, trampolining, water balloon fights, camping, fireworks,
pretend teddy bears picnics, hide and seek, bouncy castles, slides, swings,
pushing prams, hand stands, roly polys.

The Commons Registration Act 1965 (The CRA)

Section 22 of the CRA, defined Village Greens into three types. The decided
Cases when referring to Section 22, added letters by which they are now
usually referred to as (a), (b), and (c) Greens.

Section 22, defined "Town or Village Green" as land -

(a) which has been allotted by or under any Act for the exercise or
recreation of the inhabitants of any locality, or

(b) on which the inhabitants of any locality have a customary right to
indulge in lawful sports and pastimes, or

(c) on which the inhabitants of any locality have indulged in such sports
and pastimes as of right for not less than 20 years."

In the immediate locality of the Claimed Land is sited a large Class (a) Green
with a village pub. Sholver Green is registered as a village green under
Section 15 of the Commons Act 2006, meaning it is protected against
development. There are no conservation areas, scheduled ancient
monuments or other heritage designations within or in proximity to the area.

There are no other statutory designations in the locality apart from one listed

building within the Sholver area, the Grade 1l Church of St Thomason
Northgate Lane, built to the design of the architect Henry Cockbain of

Page 40




Firstcholce

HOMES CeDH Ak

7.4

8.1

8.2

9.1

Middleton and opened in 1872. The old village of Sholver was cleared, the
only evidence of its existence being the survival of The Old Pullet Inn (now
the Northgate) cited on the old village green, now formally designated the
Village Green of the locality.

The Application is made by Fred Williamson (the Applicant) to register the
Claimed Land as a Class (c) Green in the same locality as the actual Village
Green which is both the historic Viliage Green and a statutorily designated
Village Green.

The Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 ("CROW")

The definition of Class (c) Greens was amended by Section 98 CROW by
substituting a new third limb of the definition:

"(1A} land falls within this sub section if It is land on which, for not less than
20 years a significant number of the inhabitants of any locality, or any
neighbourhood within a locality, have indulged in lawful sports and pastimes
as of right, and either

(a) continue to do so, or

(b) have ceased to do so for not more than such period as may be
prescribed, or determined, in accordance with prescribed provisions”.

No period, for the purposes of paragraph (b) of subsection (1A) was ever
prescribed.

The Commons Act 2006 (CA)
Qualifying Criteria

(a) The relevant sub-section is Section 15(2) which enables registration of
land as a TVG and the common requirements for registration in the
sub-section can be listed as follows;-

(i) a significant number of;

(i)  the inhabitants of any locality, or any neighbourhood within a
locality

(i) ... have indulged

(iv) ... inlawful sports and pastimes;
(V) ... as of right;
(vi) ...onthe land;

(vii) ... for a period of at least twenty years (the Qualifying Period)

Page 41




fFirstcholce

HOMES OLInap

(b) and they continue to do so at the time of the Application.
9.2 The Application is made under the provisions of Section 15 (2).
10. The elements to be proved by the Applicant.
10.1  Significant Number

(@) The use of the Claimed Land has to be by a significant number of the
inhabitants of a locality or a neighbourhood within a locality.

(b) In Part 7 of the Application Form the justification for the Application to
register the Claimed Land is stated as being;-

"For the following reasons: The land has been used for more than 20
years by the residents of Lower Sholver and Moorside for recreational
activities: dog walking, football, rugby, cricket, kite flying, drone flying,
cycling, bonfires, snowman building, carol singing. The green is a focal
point for our community and a safe place where children can play close
to their homes and away from traffic. In January 1996 Barratt Homes
paid Oldham Borough Council the sum of £30000 as a contribution
towards the cost of providing an area of public open space “Hodge
Clough Road 2. The land is used by wildlife: Deer, Fox, Bats.

(c) The right being claimed on the understanding of FCHO is a right for the
inhabitants of St James Ward, Lower Sholver, Moorside, Oldham.
According to the Profile of St James Ward 2016, the population was
11,862, seeing no movement since 2001.

(d) The evidence presented by the Applicant as set out in the various
letters in support is of use of the Claimed Land by residents of Hodge
Clough Road and one person of Leywell Drive, over the Qualifying
Period. As stated above, it is submitted that the letters are of little
evidential value and should properly be disregarded.

(e) The Petition, is of no evidential value. The signatories simply state that
they agree with the view of the Applicant rather than provide their own
evidence to be tested in this claim.

() Itis noted that one person who has written a letter in support appears
to no longer reside in the locality and that there is no clear evidence of
the length of residence of any of the persons who support the
Application. The number of letters in support totals 11.

(e) In so far as the Application defines a local area, those who have written

letters in support of the Application largely come from one street in St
James Ward.

Page 42




Firstcholce

HOMES OLIHAR

10.2

() The location and number of residents living in St James Ward
supporting the Application with letters or joint letters of support, is as
follows:

Hodge Clough Road - 15
Leywell Drive — 2

(@) The Applicant resides in St James Ward on Hodge Clough Road. The
Applicant does not claim to have used the Claimed Land at all. In his
letter of support written jointly with his household he simply attests to its
use by other un-named persons. The Applicant provides no evidence
of the use of the Claimed Land by himself or his co-signatory Mrs
Marlene Williamson. There is no evidence to support the length of time
he claims to have resided in the locality.

(hy The documents provided by the Applicant, do not necessarily
demonstrate that the Claimed Land is used by a significant number of
local residents spread over the Applicant's Qualifying Area, namely St
James Ward. The letters and joint letters in support indicate 0.14% of
residents may support the claim. That percentage is not a significant
number.

(i) A general use of land by the local community, according to Sullivan J In
(R (on the Application of McAlpine Homes) -v-Staffordshire County
Council [2002] EWHC 76 (Admin), has to be demonstrated. A single
street is does not represent a local community.

Inhabitants of a Locality and a neighbourhood within a Locality.

(a) The Applicant has to demonstrate that the use of the Claimed Land is
by a significant number of the inhabitants of any locality or any
neighbourhood within a locality and not just a general use by the public
at large.

(b)  The "locality" from which a significant number of the users live, must
be an entity known to the law: Ministry of Defence -v- Wiltshire County
Council Ch D (Harman J) 03/05/1995.

(c) The locality does not have to be defined in the Application. However if
not, the Registration Authority must, from the evidence provided by the
Applicant, be capable of identifying it. R (on the Application of Laing
Homes Limited) -v- Buckinghamshire County Council (2004) JPL 313.

(d) The Application Form at Part 6 requests the Applicant to identify the
"Locality" or "Neighbourhood". The Applicant has entered "St James
Ward" but has also entered “Lower Sholver” and “Moorside” and
“Oldham” and given a postcode "OL1 4PW” and stated “Hodge Clough
Road".

Page 43




Firstchoice

HOMES DLIHAn

(e) All bar one of those providing letters in support reside on Hodge Clough
Road which is not a locality or a neighbourhood, or an entity known to
law.

(f) It is not known whether the persons who have given letters in support
regard themselves as residents of St James Ward or residents of
Lower Sholver. There is no evidence that clarifies the position.

(9) The Applicant has not submitted a plan identifying either the locality or
of the neighbourhood.

(h) Prior to local government reorganisation in 1974, a predecessor
Authority to the Oldham Metropolitan Borough Council was the County
Borough of Oldham, which ceased to exist as of 1st April 1974, by
virtue of the 1972 Act. The County Borough of Oldham's functions and
powers became vested in the Cldham Metropolitan Borough Council.

(i) St James Ward is an electoral ward in the Oldham Metropolitan
Borough.

() There has not to FCHO's knowledge been an entity known to the law
as Lower Sholver or Moorside, or Hodge Clough Road within the
Qualifying Period.

(k) In Cheltenham Builders Ltd v South Gloucestershire District Council
[2003] EWHC 2803 (Admin). stated that whereas the term locality in the
context of TVGs meant a legally recognised administrative unit, a
neighbourhood need not be an administrative unit and might include a
housing estate. He also rejected the notion that a neighbourhood is
any area of land that an Applicant chooses to delineate on a plan. He
said at [85];-

"The registration authority has to be satisfied that the area alleged to
be a neighbourhood has a sufficient degree of cohesiveness, otherwise
the word “neighbourhood” would be stripped of any real meaning. If
parliament had wished to enable the inhabitants of any area (as defined
on a plan accompanying the application) to apply to register land as a
village green, it would have said so.”

() The pronouncement of Sullivan J. was subsequently confirmed in
Oxfordshire County Council v Oxford City Council [2006] UKHL 25
where Lord Hoffmann spoke at [27] of a neighbourhood as not being an
area of legal or technical significance.

(m) In Paddico Ltd v Kirklees Metropolitan Council & Others [2012] EWCA
Civ 262 at first instance Vos J. confirmed at [97] the prior jurisprudence
and said "in section 22(1A), the term ™neighbourhocod" is to be
understood as being a cohesive area and must be capable of
meaningful description in some way™:

Page 44




Firstcholce

HOMES OLTHAR

(n) The Applicant has not demonstrated that "Lower Sholver and Moorside
" is a "neighbourhood" as opposed to another area.

10.3 Lawful Sports and Pastimes

(@ It was recognised in R -v- Oxfordshire County Council ex parte
Sunningwell Parish Council (2000) 1AC335, that dog walking and
playing with children fall within what, in the present time, constitutes
lawful pastimes.

(b) FCHO does not contest that those uses may have occurred on the
Claimed Land.

(i) The following activites and community events have been identified
from the Application and letters in support. Below is listed the numbers
of letters where it is stated the activities have, or are being undertaken
and have been witnessed:

(A) dog walking, 1

(B) football, 4

(C)  rugby, 1

(D)  cricket, 2

(E)  kite flying, 1

(F)  drone flying, 1

(G) cycling, 4

(H) bonfires, 1

(n snowman building,
(J) carol singing

(K)  paddling pools 1
(L) trampolining 1

(M)  water balloon fights 1
(N) Camping, 3

(O) fireworks 3

(P) pretend teddy bears picnics, 1
(Q) hide and seek, 1
(R)  bouncy castles, 3
(8) slides, 1

(T) swings, 1

(U)  pushing prams, 1
(V)  hand stands, 1
(W) roly polys, 1

(i) The following are the numbers of letters wherein it is stated activities
and community events have been participated in:

(A)  dogwalking, 4
(B) football, 0

(C) rugby, 0

(D) cricket, 0

(E) kite flying, O

Page 45




Firstcholce

HOMES CLLHAR

(F) drone flying, O

(G) cycling, 0

(H)  bonfires, 0

{n snowman building, 0
(J)  carol singing, 0

(K)  paddling pools, 0

(L)  trampolining, 01

(M)  water balioon fights, 0
(N) Camping, 0

(0) fireworks, 0

(P) pretend teddy bears picnics, 0
(Q) hide and seek, 0

(R) bouncy castles, 0

(S) slides, 0

(T) swings, 0

(U)  pushing prams, 0

(V) hand stands, 0

(W) roly polys, 0

(X)  blackberry picking, 1

(i) The following are not activities and community events, that can be
asserted, amount to use of the Claimed Land: Use by a bee, badger,
duck, deer a bat or a Fox is not within the ambit of the legislative
provisions.

(v} The Applicant has submitted a photograph of a person in a body of
water — there is no body of water on the Claimed Land. Other pictures
that are not of the Claimed Land have also been submitted.

10.4 As of Right

(@) The Applicant has to demonstrate that those using the Claimed Land
have done "as of right” and not "by right'. As of Right means "nec vi,
nec clem, nec precario” - without force, without stealth and without
licence” All three elements have to be demonstrated by the Applicant.

(b) As described earlier, the Claimed Land is open and accessible to the
public at large. The letters in support of the Application make no
reference to any impediment to the public entering onto the land.
Indeed that is consistent with the land being maintained by the Owner
so that it can be enjoyed both visually and physically by the public at
large.

(c) The public's use of the Claimed Land has been nec vi and nec clam.
However, it is not nec precario - without licence, but "precario” by
license and therefore "by right”.

(d) FCHO contends and demonstrates herein that use of the Claimed Land
during the Qualifying Period, has been by a licence granted by the

_ Page 46




Firstcholce

HOMES Cx CHEM

(e)

t)

Owner, although arguably initially granted by its predecessor Local
Authority

The Claimed Land was acquired at two separate points in time and
held under two different titles as detailed above for the purpose of the
creation of a “"Council Estate”.

The Inspector on a TVG Application that was considered in Barkas v
North Yorkshire CC Scarborough Council [2011) EWHC 3653, drawing
on the principle established by the obiter dictum in Beresford that use
by the public of land held under the Open Spaces Act 1906 and the
1875 Act, will be permissive (precario),in his Report to the Registration
Authority, concluded by analogy:

The same principle must apply to recreation ground laid out under
statute as an area for public recreation on a council estate. Council
tenants, who are the primary objects for the provision of recreation,
must have had a legal right to use the land for harmless recreation. It
would be absurd to think of them as trespassers unless they first
obtained the permission of the council to use the land for harmless
recreation. Where the recreation ground, as in the present case, is laid
out and maintained as a recreation ground open to the public pursuant
to statutory powers, it seems to me that the public must similarly have a
legal right to use the land for harmless recreation. Again, it would be
absurd to regard them as trespassers. This view is supported by the
obiter comments of Lord Walker in para 87 of Beresford. | therefore
consider that at least until 2003, when SBC ceased to be owner of the
remaining council houses, recreational use of the Field by local people
was by right and not as of right.

The Inspector's analysis also relied upon a judgment of Denning J (as
he then was) in HE Green & Sons v The Minister of Health (No 2)
[1948] 1KB 34 ("Green"} where it was held that a compulsory purchase
order was not invalid where, utilising section 80 of the Housing Act
1936, the construction of a new housing estate was proposed along
with nurseries, a health centre, a youth centre, shops, a public house
and other amenities that might be equally used by residents of
neighbouring housing estates.

The claimant submitted to the court that the analysis of the Inspector
was wrong because the power to provide a recreation ground was
expressly limited by the terms of section 80 of the Housing Act 1936 to
serve a beneficial purpose in connection with the requirements of the
persons for whom the relevant housing accommodation was provided.
Those persons, the claimant asserted, were the council tenants of the
Western Estate, who belonged to the working classes: it follows from
this that only users of this description had a statutory right to use the
playing fields, thereby enabling registration on the basis of user from
the other housing estates surrounding the land. The argument it seems
was that whilst use of the land by members of the general public would

Page 47




frfirstc_holce
HOMES OLIuthpe

be intra vires the authority, such use would not be pursuant to a
statutory right but pursuant either to a revocable license or as of right
It was suggested that the case of Green was inapplicable, as it did not
expressly deal with statutory rights at all.

The judge was not impressed with the claimant's arguments and
-robustly rejected them. It was held that in order to accept the claimant's
submissions It was necessary to say that while there is statutory power
to confer an entitlement to use the playing fields on those residents of
the Western Estate "there is no power to provide the same facility for
others, even although the recreation grounds provision is within the four
corners of the wording of the Act".The judge reinforced his reasoning
from a number of sources. First, he considered the Green case
illustrated that an exercise of the power under section 80 of the
Housing Act 1236 could be essentially for the benefit of the public.
Secondly, the judge considered his judgment to be ‘consistent with the
position of a local authority as a public body' whose "powers and its
duties are related to the fact that it is representative of those who come
within its area of authority. That area is far larger and wider than a
housing estate o part of the local authority's area." Thirdly, some
comfort may have been drawn from the Inspector's description of the
land “as having all the appearance of a typical municipal recreation
ground” complete with entrances and exits that had been constructed
by the landowning authority to enable public use. The conclusion of the
judge was that the provision was public in its nature and that members
of the public could not sensibly be described as trespassers, nor in
these circumstances was it necessary to draw undesirable distinctions
as to which users were members of the "working classes". The judge
therefore decided that the Registration Authority had properly rejected
the application to register the playing fields on the basis that otherwise
qualifying user was permissive.

(9) Consequently the Owner's Land has been held by the Owner for the
whole of the Qualifying Period on trust for recreational purposes.

(h) Consequently recreational use of the Owner’s Land has been “by right”
for the whole of the Qualifying Period.

(i)  The maintenance regime of the Owner's Land encourages and enables
the public to enter onto the land for recreational purposes, as described
in the Application.

() The requirements necessary to demonstrate that use of the land by the
public, is “precaric” following the judgement delivered by their
Lordships in R —v- City of Sunderland ex parte Beresford [2003] UKHL
60, has been met.

(k) The licence granted is a temporary licence which can be withdrawn at
any time, or extinguished by Notice as the case may be.

EageAQ




m Firstcholce

HOMES OLDA kA

10.56 Claimed Land
(@) The Ciaimed Land must be clearly identified by means of a plan.

(b) A plan accompanying the Application identifies an area of land of
9,915m2.

10.6 Physical Extent of use

(a) the Application does not demonstrate a restriction as to the extent of
the use of the Claimed Land for lawful sports and pastimes.

(b) there are no permanent or transient physical impediments preventing
the public from using and accessing all parts of the Claimed Land.

(c) The Applicant does not need to show that every square inch of the
Claimed Land is used, see R (on the Application of Cheltenham
Builders Limited) —v- South Gloucestershire District Council [2003]
EWHC 2803 (Admin). in that Case, Sullivan J said:-

“A common sense approach is required when considering whether the
whole of the site was so used. A Registration Authority would not
expect to see evidence of use of every square foot of a site, but it
would have to be persuaded that for all practical purposes it could
sensibly be said that the whole of the site had been so used for 20
years”.

(d) The evidence, in so far as it is presented by the Applicant in the does
not address the extent of the use claimed.

(e) There are no public footpaths or bridleways cross the Claimed Land.
10.7 Twenty Years Use

(a) There is no direct evidence of twenty years use as there is no direct
evidence of residency by any of the witnesses or those supporting.

(b) In the absence of such FCHO disputes that the Application and the
Statements in support provide evidence of recreational use over the
whole of the Qualifying Period.

10.9 Continue to do so

(@) FCHO does not contest that the Claimed Land is used by members of
the public for recreational activities.

11. Right of Way Uses

(@) There is no a public right of way on the Claimed Land.

Rage-49




Firstcholce

HOMES OLOHAM

12. Summary

12.1  FCHO objects to the Application and contends that the Owner's Land should
not be registered as a Village Green. The Application is misconceived: the
statutory ingredients necessary to show that the Owner's Land qualifies as a
Village Green have not been made and cannot be established. The
Applicant contends that the Claimed Land is public open space.
Management of land as public open space under section 10 of the Open
Spaces Act 1906 does not lend itself to that land being registered as a
Village Green.

12.2  The Applicant has failed to prove the following

(a) Significant number - the Application has not established that a
significant number use the Claimed Land and the spread is not
sufficient to support the claim, and

(b) Neighbourhood within a locality - the Applicant has not identified a
cohesive entity that would be understood by those living in the area as
their "neighbourhood",

(c) Capable of registration — the Applicant has not demonstrated that the
Claimed Land is capable of being registered as a Village Green

12.3 FCHO has demonstrated that the Owner's Land, has not been used “as of
right” for the Qualifying Period but “by right” — “precario”. The use has been
by permission or a licence, for all of the Qualifying Period. Whether as
undeveloped housing land or as open space.

12.4 The Claimed Land is open to being regarded by the Owner and the
Registration Authority as open space. Alternatively the Claimed Land is
undeveloped housing land held on trust for the use of the local inhabitants.

13. Conclusion

13.1  FCHO requests that on the evidence the Registration Authority determines
not to register the Claimed Land as a Viilage Green.

13.2 FCHO reserves the right to add or to delete any information, as set out in

these Objections, as information is established from records held by various
public bodies, relating to the Owner's Land.

Dated this | - day of S:e@ \" 2018

Signed by Warren Bradley, Solicitor, o First Choice Homes Oldham

Limited.

Eagel-'\ﬂ




THE COMMONS ACT 2006

VILLAGE GREEN APPLICATION — LAND AT HODGE CLOUGH ROAD, OLDHAM

STATUTORY DECLARATION OF JULIE FLORENCE HALL

|, Julie Florence Hall, Legal Officer, Property and Conveyancing Service of First Choice
Homes Oldham Limited (‘FCHO’ Registered Provider of Social Housing), First Place., 22
Union Street, Oldham OL1 1BE, do solemnly and sincerely declare:

1. I make this declaration from my own knowledge and the contents of my files, unless
otherwise stated.

2. | am in receipt of an Application referenced RTG/6 from a Fred Williamson of 40
Hodge Clough Road (the Claimed Land). The Application has a petition, map, and
various letters and other documents appended to it.

3. Inlight of the Application | have investigated the title, and visited the Land at Hodge
Clough Road, that is the subject of the Application for Village Green status.

4. Oldham Metropolitan Borough Council is the Owner (the Owner) of the Claimed
Land which is registered at HM Land Registry under two Titles: First Title LA88157
Freehold - purchased by the Owner on 26th June 1966. Second Title LA43936
Freehold. Land was purchased by the Council on 19th May 1964.

5. Evidence of these titles is annexed as exhibit *JFH1’.

6. The Claimed Land was in the ownership of County Borough of Oldham up to local
government re- organisation in 1974 and thereafter came onto the ownership of the
Oldham Metropolitan Borough Council the successor authority to County Borough
of Oldham under the Local Government Act 1972 (the 1972 Act).

7. There have been various sales out of the original parcel of LA88157 including Stock
transfer land to FCHO.

8. FCHO does not know the powers utilised to purchase the Claimed Land in title
LA88157.

9. The second part of the Claimed Land is in title LA43936 which was purchased by
the Owner pursuant to Part V of the Housing Act 1957. The Owner has disposed of
some of its land including land under stock transfer to FCHO but remains the Owner
of the Claimed Land which is | would submit to be classed as either undeveloped
housing land or open space. Both designations give a licence to the public to use
the land for leisure purposes.

10.1 carried out the site visit on 22" August 2018. | attach photographs as exhibit
‘JFH2.

11.1 attach a map of the Claimed Land as exhibit ‘JFH3.’
Page 51



12.1tis clear from the map that the land is of a rectangular shape and this is borne out
by the photographs.

13.At the site visit | did not witness any person engaging in any sports or past times on
the Claimed Land. There were no desire lines indicating walk ways across the
Claimed Land. In fact the Claimed Land had clearly been mowed as opposed to
the land to the south and west which was untended.

14.1 observed a gritting bin, mowed grass, a street light sited on the Claimed Land,
clear boundaries to all sides, a distinct lack of pathways, gates or obstructions to
entry, a lack of shrubbery on the Claimed Land.

15.0n the same day | also visited a registered Village Green which is half a mile away
from the Claimed Land and in comparison one would certainly say it has all of the
halt marks of a village green. It is a discemnible ‘green’ with a village pub adjacent to
it. Across from that green is the Millennium Green.

16.In short the Claimed Land is not and never has been the village green of the locality
and from the evidence provided it is not used by a significant number of the
occupants of the locality or neighbourhood within the locality. | have seen no
evidence as to whether the claimed use of the Claimed Land has been for an
uninterrupted period of 20 years.

And | make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and by
virtue of the Statutory Declaration Act 1835.

DECLARED BY

N
Before me /@\S\

flend B@AMALL ~CMo T
Solicitor Hz

Stamp

Garratts

King Strest Bulldings

Manchester Street

Oldham

Greater Manchesler
OL8 1DH

Tel:-0161 665 3502 Fax:-0161 665 4060
www.garratissolicitors.co.uk

Page 52



THE COMMONS ACT 2006
VILLAGE GREEN APPLICATION - LAND AT HODGE CLOUGH ROAD, OLDHAM

STATUTORY DECLARATION OF JULIE FLORENCE HALL

EXHIBIT JFH1

And produced to me on fis 5 day of &:rremez2 2018

Declared by Julie Florence Hall

Before me C)[ e

Solicitor fecent Seqmaqu -G ot

Stamp

Garratts
King Strest Buildings
Manchester Street
Oldham
Greater Manchester

OL8 1DH
Tel-0161 665 3502 Fax:-0161 665 4060
Www.qarrattssolicitors.co.uk

Page 53



The electronic official copy of the register follows this message.

Please note that this is the only official copy we will issue. We will not issue a
paper official copy.

Page 54



HM Land Registry

Official copy  emmerisssso | comon o o4gs20r2

! Of re - lSter Of i This official copy shows the entries on the register of title on
5 g —IN 04 SEP 2018 af 12:51:34.

i I N This date must be quoted as the “search from date” in any
i tlt e official search application based on this copy.

The date at the beginning of an entry is the date on which
the entry was made in the register.

Issued on 04 Sep 2018.

Under 5.67 of the Land Registration Act 2002, this copy is
admissible in evidence to the same extent as the original.

This title is dealt with by HM Land Registry, Fylde Office.

A: Property Register

This register describes the land and estate comprised in the title.

GREATER MANCHESTER : OLDHAM

1 (10.06.1964) The Freehold land shown edged with red on the plan of the

above Title filed at the Registry and being 56 to 66 {even numbers)
Sholver Fold and land lying to the West and South West of Sholver Lane.

2 The land tinted green on the title plan is not included in the
registration,
3 The land edged and numbered in green on the title plan has been remeved

from this title and registered under the title number or numbers shown
in green on the said plan.

1 The Transfers of those parts edged and numbered in green on the title
Plan which were made pursuant to Part Vv of the Housing Act 1985 took
effect with the benefit of and subject to the easements and other
rights prescribed by paragraph 2 of Schedule 6 of that Act.

5 (20.01.1997) The title plan has been subdivided into two parts,
& {07.05.1998) The title plan has been subdivided into three parts.
7 (04.05.2012) The land has the benefit of the rights reserved by but is

subject to the rights granted by the Transfer dated 7 February 2011
referred to in the Charges Register.

B: Proprietorship Register

This register specifies the class of title and identifies the owner. It contains
any entries that affect the right of disposal.

Title absolute

1 {13.06.1964) FROPRIETOR: OLDHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL of PO Box 33, Civic
Centre, West Street, Oldham OL1 1UL.

C: Charges Register Page 55

This register contains any charges and other matters that affect the land.



Title number LA43936

1

The land tinted yellow on the title plan is subject to the following
rights reserved by a Conveyance dated 17 December 1936 made between (1)
Thomas Mellodew and Company Limited {Vendors) and (2) Edmund Spencer
{Purchaser) : ~

"EXCEPT AND RESERVING nevertheless unto the Vendors:-

1. The right to pass and repass with or without animals carriages and
other vehicles over and along the roads and passages or portions of
roads and passages as are comprised in the property hereby conveyed and
assigned.

2. The full and free right of running of water and soil to and from any
other land and buildings of the Vendors through the gutters drains
sewers pipes and watercourses upon the land and premises hereby
conveyed and assigned and to enter upon the said premises for the
purpose of making any connections with or repairs to such gutters
drains sewers pipes and watercourses making reasonable compensation to
the Purchaser and his successors in title for any damage caused
thereby."

A Conveyance and Assignment of the land tinted pink on the title plan
dated B February 1960 made between (1) William Henry Spencer and Edmund
Spencer and (2) Thomas Platt contains restrictive covenants and
reserves rights.

“NOTE: Copy filed under 0OL5899.

‘The land is subject to rights of drainage and ancillary righte of

entry.
The paths and passages are subject to rights of way.

{24.10.1995) An Agreement dated 6 June 1995 affecting the land edged
blue on the title plan and other land made between {1) Oldham Borough
Council and (2) Lovell Partnerships (Northern) Limited relates to
planning obligations pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.

The said Agreement also contains covenants.

~NOTE: Copy filed under GM216307.

{29.01.1996} A Licence Agreement dated 11 January 1996 affecting the
land edged yellow on the title plan and other land made between {1) The
Oldham Borough Council and (2) Barratt Homes Limited relates to
building development and planning obligations pursuant to Section 106
of the Town and Country Planning Act 19%0.

“NOTE: Copy filed under GM619490.

(10.10.1996) The parts of the land affected thereby are subject to the
leases set out in the schedule of leases hereto.
The leases grant and reserve easements as therein mentioned.

(20.01.1998) The parts of the land affected thereby are subject to the
following rights granted by a Deed of Grant dated 5 January 1998 made
between (1) The Oldham Borough Council (Grantor) and (2} Norweb PLC
{(Grantee) : -

IN pursuance of the said agreement the Grantor hereby grants with full
title guarantee unto the Grantee FULL AND FREE RIGHT AND LIBERTY for
the Grantee and its successors in title and all persons authorised by
it to lay construct use inspect maintain repair alter relay renew and
remove or render unusable along and under the Easement Land such
underground electric lines as the Grantee may from time to time require
in connection with its undertaking and for this purpose to break open
the surface of and excavate in the Easement Land so far as this may be
necessary from time to time reinstating the same in accordance with the
covenants on that part of the Grantee hereinafter contained TO HOLD the
said rights and liberties unto the Grantee in fee simple as appurtenant
to its undertaking and electricity distribution system

2. THE Grantee hereby covenantijwith Grantor as follows:-
age 56

{a) To exercise the rights and liberties hereby granted in accordance
with all reagulations and recuirements whether statutory or otherwise



Title number LA43936
C: Charges Register continued

for the time being in force affecting the same

{b) That as soon as reasonably possible following the initial laying of
the said underground electric lines the Grantee will back-fill the
cable trench PROVIDED however that the Grantee will not be responsible
for any further reinstatement of the Easement Land

(c) That if the Grantee carries out any excavations in the Easement
Land subsequent to the initial laying of the said underground electric
lines the Grantee will {unless otherwise agreed with the Grantor as a
future term of supply) make good at its own expense all damage caused
to the Easement Land or to the adjoining property of the Grantor in the
exercise of the rights and liberties hereby granted and the execution
of the works hereby authorised as soon as is reasonably practicable.¥

The said Deed also contains the following covenants by the Grantor:-

"THE Grantor with intent to bind the Basement Land and (so far as the
same is affected by the stipulations and restrictions in this clause
contained} the adjoining land of the Grantor into whosoever hands the
same may come and for the benefit and protection of the underground
electric lines and the undertaking and electricity distribution system
Of the Grantee HEREBY COVENANTS with the Grantee that the Grantor and
those deriving title under the Grantor shall at all times hereafter
observe and perform the following stipulations and restrictions:-

(a) To keep the Easement Land forever hereafter open and unbuilt upon

(b) Not to alter the level of the Easement Land from that existing at
the date hereof

{c) That nothing shall be done or suffered to be done by the Grantor
its servants or agents upon the Easement Land or the said adjoining
broperty of the Grantor which may in any way interfere with or damage
the said underground electric lines

IN this Deed the expression "electric lines" sghall have the meaning (in
the plural) assigned to the expression "electric line" by Section 64 of
the Electricity Act 1989 and shall be interpreted and construed
accordingly and shall also included all joint boxes and apparatus
ancillary to underground electric lineg.®

NOTE: The Easement Land referred to above is hatched blue on the title
plan so far as it affects the land in this title.

9 (07.05.1998} The parts of the land affected thereby are subject to the
foliowing rights granted by a Deed of Grant dated 23 April 1998 made
betwaen (1) The Oldham Borough Council (The Grantor) and (2} Norweb PLC
{The Grantee):-

"The Grantor hereby grants with full title guarantee unto the Grantee
FULL AND FREE RIGHT AND LIBERTY for the Grantee and its succcessors in
title and all persons authorised by it to lay construct use inspect
maintain repair alter relay renew and remove or render unusable along
and under the Easement Land such underground electric lines as the
Grantee may from time to time require in connection with its
undertaking and for this purpose to break open the surface of and
excavate in the Easement land so far as this may be necessary from time
to time reinstating the same in accordance with the covenants on the
part of the Grantee hereinafter contained TO HOLD the said rights and
liberties unto the Grantee in fee simple as appurtenant to its
undertaking and electricity distribution system,

THE Grantee hereby covenants with the Grantor as follows:-

{a) To exercise the rights and liberties hereby granted in accordance
with all regulations and requirements whether statutory or otherwise
for the time being in force affecting the same

{b) That as socon as reasonably possible following the initial laying of
the said underground electric lifdg Brfntee will back-fill the
cable trench PROVIDED however that tHe Grantee will not be responsible
for any further reinstatement of the Easement Land



Title number LA43936
C: Charges Register continued

(c) That if the Grantee carries out any excavation in the Eagement Land
subsequent to the initial laying of the said underground electric lines
the Grantee will {unless otherwise agreed with the Grantor as a future
term of supply) make good at its own expense all damage caused to the
Easement Land or to the adjoining property of the Grantor in the
exercise of the rights and liberties hereby granted and the execution
of the works hereby authorised as soon as is reasonably practicable,"

IT IS HEREBY AGREED AND DECLARED by and between the parties hereto as
follows:

(a} in this clause the expression:
{1) "Develop" includes redevelop

(2) "Property" means all that freehold land comprised in title numbers
LAB8157 LA43936 GM216307 GM619490 LA115192 and OL6770

(3) "Alternative Route(s)" means a route or routes within the Property
8s near as possible to the Easement Land as shall be approved by the
Grantee as a suitable alternative for the Grantee's purpose

(b) If the Grantor shall desire to Develop the Property and it is
necessary for such development to include the Eagsement Land or any part
thereof and shall have obtained Planning Permission for such
development the Grantee will release to the Grantor such of the rights
and liberties hereby granted as require to be released subject to the
following terms and conditiens:

4.1 The Grantor shall give to the Grantee not less than twelve month's
notice in writing of its desire to implement this clause

4.2 On or before the expiration of the said notice the Grantor shall
{subject to investigation and approval of title by the Grantee's
Solicitor) by deed with the concurrence of every incumbrancer (such
concurrence to be procured by and at the expense of the Grantor) and
without payment of any consideration by the Grantee grant in fee simple
eéasements to the Grantee in respect of alternative route{g} for the
laying of the underground electric lines such grant to be in the like
form and contain the like provisions and covenants (mutatisg mutandis)
as are herein contained

4.3 Subject to all necesary labour and materials being available but
as soon as practicable after completion of the grant of easements in
respect of the alternative route(s) the Grantee shall {in the following
order of events}):-

(i) complete the laying of the underground electric lines along the
alternative route(s) and the bringing into use thereof

(ii} remove so far as necessary the underground electric lines
installed pursuant to such of the rights and liberties hereby granted
as are required to be released or render dead such underground electric
lines

(iii} surrender such of the rights and liberties hereby granted as are
reguired to be released

PROVIDED THAT:

(a) if the Grantee or its contractors are prevented from complying with
sub-clause 4.3 by reason of ocutbreak of war or ¢ivil insurrection or
fire tempest frost inclement weather or other inevitable cause or
accident or strike or lock out of workmen or the failure of the Grantee
to obtain satisfactory supplies materials or labour or by reason of
accident to the works or force majeure or by reason of the Grantee
either having to redeploy the workforce assigned to carry out the works
in order to carry out emergency work or repairg to its electricity
plant and electric lines or by ason §§ ny unavoidable cause for
which the Grantee is not respongfﬁggfi ch such case the Grantee
shall be allowed such extensions of time as are reasonable in the
circumstances



Title number LA43936
C: Charges Register continued

sub-clause shall be construed as an attempt to exclude or limit the
liabilty of the Grantee in negligence for death of or injury to any
person)

4.4.1 The Grantor shall {to which effect the Grantor hereby covenants)
be liable for and pPay to the Grantee the costs charges and expenses
incurred or sustained by the Grantee in or arising out of:

(i} the laying of the underground electric lines along the alternative
route (s}

(ii) the removal as aforesaid of the underground electric lines from
the land the subject of the rights and liberties hereby granted
required to be released as aforesaid

Land Registry fees for noting thereof on the Register of the Title
relating thereto

AND without prejudice to the foregoing if required by the Grantee so to
do shall as a condition precedent to the completion of such grant make
a4 payment to the Grantee of the estimated amount of such cosgts charges
and expenses and the Grantee will {as it hereby covenants so to do)
repay to the Grantor the difference between the estimated amount so
paid and the total amount {if smaller) of such costs charges and
expenses

{a) the Grantor may at any time thereafter serve written notice on the
Grantee requesting the Grantee to provide reasonable evidence that in
the Grantee's reascnable opinion the Grantee does have & bona fide
present or future requirement to use the Easement Land

{b) the Grantee shall within a reasonable period (but in any event not
exceeding three months) of the receipt of the said written notice
supply to the Grantor such evidence as is mentioned in sub-clause {a)
above

4.5.3 Prior te any surrender of tﬂag@&rsuant to this Clause 4 the
Grantee shall at its own expense ensufe that the Electric Cables are
disconnected and made safe the Granres makina annd ro Aamarma ~anacAd kA



Title number LA43936

C: Charges Register continued

the Easement Land or the said adjoining property of the Grantor to the
reasonable satisfaction of the Grantor

IN this Deed the expression "electric lines" shall have the meaning (in
the plural) assigned to the expression "electric line® by Section 64 of
the Electricity Act 1989 and shall be interpreted and construed
accordingly and shall also include all joint boxes and apparatus
ancillary to underground electric lines."

The said Deed also contains the following covenants by the Grantor,

"THE Grantor with intent to bind the Easement land and (so far as the
same is affected by the stipulations and restrictions in this clause

those deriving title under the Grantor shall at all times hereafter
observe and perform the following stipulations and restrictions:-

{a) To keep the Easement Land forever hereafter open and unbuilt upon

(b} Not to alter the level of the Easement Land from that existing at
the date hereof

(c) That nothing shall be done or suffered to be done by the Grantor
its servants or agent upon the Easement land or the said adjoining
property of the Grantor which may in any way interfere with or damage
the said underground electric linesg."

NOTE: The Easement Land referred to has been shown hatched brown on the
title plan so far as it affects the land in this title,

(04.05.2012) A Transfer of the land edged and numbered MAN192489 in
green on the title plan and other land dated 7 February 2011 made
between (1} 0Oldham Borough Council and (2) First Choice Homes Oldham
Limited contains restrictive covenants by the vendor.

“NOTE: Copy filed under MAN149279%.

Schedule of notices of leases

1

10.10.19%986 Part of 11 Dalesman Drive 26.07.1996 GM732777
1 &2 9599 years from

1.7.1995
NOTE: The lease comprises also other land
18.12.199¢ 83 Hodge Clough Road 01.11.1996 GM73942¢
k 999 years from

1.7.1995
NOTE: The lease comprises also other land
20,01.1597 2 Mellodew Drive 12.12.199%¢ GM741515
4 989 years from

1.7.1995
20.01.1997 1l Mellodew Drive 29.11.1996 GM741519
5 999 years from

1.7.19895
NOTE: Lease comprises also other land
07.02.1997 4 Mellodew Drive 12.12.1996 GM743150
6 989 years from

1.7.1995
07.02.1997 50 Hodge Clough Road 19.12,1996 GM743172

999 years from

1.7.1995
10.02.1997 3 Mellodew Drive 11.12.1996 GM743312
8 Page 60 999 years from

1.7.1998

NOTE: Lease comprises also other land



Title number LA43936

Schedule of notices of leases continued

10

iz

i3

14

15

17

18

19

20

21

23

24

24.02.1997
9

26.03.1997
10

27.03.1997
11

27.03.1997
12

11.04.1997
13

15.04.1997
14

06.05.1997
15

06.05.1997
1s

22.05.1997
17

28.05.1997
18

30.05.1997
19

30.05.19%7
20

06.06.1997

21

NOTE: The Lease
11.06.1997

22

16.06.1997
23

28.07.1997
24

NOTE: The lease

11.08.1997
25

NOTE: The lease

12.08.1997
28

NOTE: The lease

AN Thnan

52 Hodge Clough Road
56 Hodge Clough Road
48 Hodge Clough Road
54 Hodge Clough Road
7 Mellodew Drive

10 Mellodew Drive

42 Hodge Clough Road
8 Mellodew Drive

6 Mellodew Drive

5 Mellodew Drive

11 Mellodew Drive

12 Mellodew Drive

23 Mellodew Drive

comprises also other land

46 Hodge Clough Road
9 Mellodew Drive

16 Mellodew Drive

comprises also other land

21 Mellodew Drive

comprises also other land

25 Mellodew Drive

e 61

comprises also otEaragand

A Meadas AT aiil M= a

19.12.199¢
999 years from
1.7.199s%

17.01.1997
995 years from
1.7.1995

07.03.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995%

05.02.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

24.02,1997
989 years from
1.7.1995

21.03.19%97
999 years from
1.7.1995

14.03.1997
998 years from
1.7.1995

28.02.1957
999 years from
1.7.1995

27.02.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

28.02.1987
999 years from
1.7.1995

27.03.1997
999 years from
1.7.1885

20.03.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

22,05.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

25.04.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

27.03.19587
999 years from
1.7.1995

27.06.1997
989 years from
1.7.1995

30.05.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

27.05.1997
999 vears from
1.7.195%

GM744180

GM74632%

GM746414

GM746421

GM747499

GM747704

GM749131

GM749134

GM750635

GM750845

GM751037

GM75103¢9

GM751677

GM752032

GM752278

GM755335

GM755216

GM756764



Title number LA43936

Schedule of notices of leases continued

27

28

28

30

31

3z

33

34

385

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

29

NOTE: The lease

10.09,1997
27

NOTE: The lease

12.05.1997
26

NOTE: The lease

06.10.1997
30

NOTE: The lease

16.10.1997
31

22.10.1997
32

22,10.1997
34

NOTE: The lease

22.10.1997
Zles

29.10.19%7
35

NOTE: The lease

03.11.15%7
37

NOTE: The lease

21.11.19397
36

NOTE: The lease

08.12.1997
38

NOTE: The lease
06.01.1998
39

13.02.1998
40

NOTE: The lease

14.05.1998
41

08.0&.1398
42

05.06.1998
43

comprises also other land

14 Mzllodew Drive

comprises also other land

15 Mellowdew Drive

comprises alsoc other land

Part of 32 Hodge Clough
Road

comprises also other land

26 Hodge Clough Road
44 Hodge Clough Road

Part of 28 Hodge Clough
Road

comprises alss other land

22 Hodge Clough Road

Part of 40 Hodge Clough
Road

comprises also other land

Part of 19 Mellowdew Drive

comprises also other land

Part of 5 Leywell Drive

comprises also other land

Part of 3 Leywell Drive

comprises also other land

24 Hodge Clough Road

Part of 7 Leywell Drive

comprises also other land

Part of 11 Leywell Drive

15 Leywell Drive

Part of 9 LeyweFD]ageivéz

999 years from
1.7.1895

27.06.1997
959 years from
1.7.1995

27.06.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

15.08.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

259.08.1997
999 years from
1.7.19585

07.03.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

29.08.15997
999 years from
1.7.1995

26.09.1997
999 years from
1.7.1955

30.05.1997
989 years from
1.7.1895

03.11.1997

999 years from

1.7.1995

24.10.1997
999 years from
1.7.19858

24.10.1597
999 vyears from
1.7.1895

14.11.1997
59% years from
1.7.1995

05.01.19%8
999 years from
1.7.1995

27.03.1998
999 years from
1.7.1995

23.04.1998
939 years from
1.7.1995

24.04.1998
999 years from
1.7.1995

GM755799

GM755615

GM765736

GM768486

GM768871

GM768878

GM768883

GM765303

GM769544

GM771058

GM770802

GM774742

GM778841

GM784907

GM786221

GM786303



Title number LA43936

Schedule of notices of leases continued

43

44

45

46

47

48

NOTE: The lease

15.06.1998
44

NOTE: The lease

25.06.1998
45

NOTE: The lease

16.07.1998
47

NOTE: The lease

14.07.1998
46

NOTE: The lease

24.07.1998
48

08.11.2011
49

NOTE: The lease

End of register

comprises also other land

Part of 17 Leywell Drive

comprises also other land

Part of 30 Leywell Drive

comprises algo other land

17 Mellodew Drive

comprises also other land

19 Leywell Drive

comprises also other land

21 Leywell Drive

Land lying to the south of
Cop Road

comprises also other land.

Page 63

12.05.1998
999 years from
1.7.1995

28.05.1998
999 years from
1.7.197s

26.06.1998
929 years from
1.7.1985

26.06.1998
999 years from
1.7.1995

24.,04.1998
999 years
fromm 1.7.1995

30.09.2011

250 years from
and including
30.9.2011

GM786662

GM787374

GM788912

GM788719

GM789498

MAN184084



These are the notes referred to on the foliowing official copy

The electronic official copy of the title plan follows this message.
Piease note that this is the only official copy we will issue. We will not issue a paper official copy.

This official copy was delivered electronically and when printed will not be to scale. You can obtain a paper
official copy by ordering one from HM Land Registry.

This official copy is issued on 04 September 2018 shows the state of this title plan on 04 September 2018 at
12:51:35. It is admissible in evidence to the same extent as the original {s.67 Land Registration Act 2002).
This title plan shows the general position, not the exact line, of the boundaries. It may be subject to distortions
in scale. Measurements scaled from this plan may not match measurements between the same points on the
ground.

This title is dealt with by the HM Land Registry, Fylde Office .

Crown copyright. Produced by HM Land Registry. Reproduction in whole or in part is prohibited without the
prior written permission of Ordnance Survey. Licence Number 100026316.

Page 64



EK_.’ : =} g
"3 HM. LAND REGISTRY

5067
14y

*
|
Filed Plan of Title No.l A A 93K ﬂ {

.

_.u. e This ..__.au vdgn §

a by | __.1

-___:___—

—— » S
Scale |/2500 . i: .3.. of .3 filea:
County— | AN plan, and is shown
Q.5 mHnmn m_unwwzﬁm Bt @ larger scale ang
2 o Crown Compright Reserred edged with sod
Sanfa7 318559 Weabpoo Dgs 63 1608 Lasonn) TaCo. Ga37

thereon,
RYEE RS

‘ HEREOM 1§

e .-.n-.ﬁ.n@r—ﬂvﬂil.'—d.ndl.-htt_. £ F
See AL THE GARE T o
um aat;znrcnﬂn}i %

GISTHATION,

EEN CCTho oty

fire 2 o EnoYis
_nrub..wﬂ.'u.un A
.._.._ _..Er..ﬁ,...ﬁt..

mau-

837




\/ -
o
a
TTO
/\5
Y
~ [ %
- 5
3
° =
b o
L s
u »
8= (@ :
o
N ©
3
5| &
=
Wg o
ey
ol
=
3}
L
7]
=
> S
(=1
o= S
T -
w N P
— pord m
=)
o = M
b m
[l -
<
=
L
< w-._F_ <
1 Rm «
D ow "
[ I« =
» ut | =
WL | o=
2 O uwf g
= =
3 - tn
= = —
I o< | Z
oz =
o oL m

-

——

i 4 .
] il
———— | 7 | e ] = - "
pat ks >
| e TEme sl )
il Bl iy
[ 2 3
P - .
o .
]

[

M e e o e

h

ATy
1
o1 ket b4 |
3t el |12
g1t | g
W, ' ki . m
= U THODGE cLOUCH AOAD

kY -
R

I

| :

1
] & H
e
1

w Angailes R
S
]

i

FEEL R
AN

AD

HODGE CLDUGH RO

MANIR AR

e et ittt

1] | L3

0

pmm——— ey
e "

i

HODGE €10UCH ROMD

e
\\ 1)

wQ.”\ m...-. .\_
138 @
=

PLAN IN & PARTS
PART 2




....... . i
- 1\
/ -\:!Jl /-‘J
\. ff.... -ﬁll
m | . s R
—. |f Y /,m,,,, ;o
n o \\H\. 1 AN % e 1
ot N 1PN
~ - A/ i I N R
- = I by RS R 1¢
u X [/ " .. T A AV
“ -w |H.h.l.-n.!... m | a f s .l..!\\- -:.-n | ===
: m | — ..\ .f .—a L LKED STREET “ m \» f..u_
@ i / e Rl R S _ __ __
) s / “ .\.1..-%-..-.!-.....-..& o i " - :
@ Ly V! K -n.’ﬂ 2 — m 3 |/ p 3
&= Y, M __.. \..- .....S/..a/ m m mm| 1 | 73 ——— Dtm / |
E s e
g =D § _m.u._m M.,_MU - | 3| m._ |
- ] ‘ |
5 Ao = L= LL -
I i = / : m_ﬁj
o = ! S EE s L i o
- ﬂ» 1 - m _.an ] - M = \. .-\ - | m
J-J | = “ J = l. \ = EL N 1
. _ m m " P ol g - / | / \ r--l.l..-ll..l_
| | * m " H . f..i .
cC._ =i .\ = ,.r/
L v b= : 5 — Belvadars Risa _\\l)va W
lll‘ln"‘lllL.‘ . N
£l 3 S| AN
> o ... n .—ﬂ (12 ///..—.
DH n _" | ) 5 Il & NN, .
— = H k......ﬁvf.. — i B - \\ B
= \ " H .Uwuﬂn“..ﬂl | ) |
: | m_. m N m - H 1 N \ .“
[ e} o H ....... Iy ) ...n —/.f/— \nu -
G M m ..m. ﬁ.___. Conalabls :-“ [ .Kﬂd._o._..“
fom | ! ) ¥ | z - nlu
IR | g e B
e "“ 1Rt — JLELE! 3
| N r
o« i H % ...-/ | J ...- -
2 = W “
o ' : el | il
= gl | m = i
) | - “ — —
- | w, ¥ m En - 124
1 - | | |
—J Tyl = (LY. z | g-,ﬂ m_w.". “m.
= = | TR = i i ;
w1 Lol on
Y m W_.. u.\-n.. 4 D ! /ﬁ.l\.-l!ntlll\l\.\_ .FP m m ."
o Mu._ _.r..._ % g .m ﬂ — | A . _nm
t
o Wn x| “Ee, - 1 — w"_ ry HODGE CLOVGH ROAD rl \\ /..
I ==z |z > Bt m“ ; : | |
= M 2 L ". ¢ m mm : | ..I
Saio i i ' ) i _h.nlﬂ
iR m o Tt b Ll
B e m | Tyt !
o - i s g AA .
g e el m:r.l. F.D
I-H g Hm N o =i
i o :
: F1 : [ ,1. : :
... #. g # : .“'. i —_— i
T o :
. [ _ ) .“t.
i 77 .
- —d
A




Removale- Leases from Title

Title No.

Date

Lease

No. Rel]

Remarks

Title No,

Lease

Date {No. Ret

Remarks

Title No.

Date

Lease
No. Ref

Remarks

Ern"S?-""""l'

A0 S5

w2

11 DCLES T
Lxve

1178755

3.0 37

DEIVE fTM] of

-

{lEoae wnciy
GWI3BAAG

bEs ol

o Sadey WOl )

(LEASE weypes puso

oTHIZ

Fl FIELDDEW )

LAVD)

LAy

3

B3 HohCae,
Carnacul Ronb

EM770803

13197 38

3 LEyWEl
BRHE PAET

o)

(ense e

LhSE Adso oFreR uwlg

(Lekss Inaybes Age oy

S 74 1SS

2. 1.7

CaTI4AD,

L1-9% | 2R

ST SIS

201577

£y 72889

13-2- 93| .0

7 LEYIEL
2RIVE

(Lense ine

AADESS £

(iease el

kDEL ALFS o7,

D)

= 74 DS

7.2.57

Fe ] Ty

1y 5. 9% | Lt

[V -A R
DRIVE

BTS2

=.2.997

7432 2

o297

Gy 2om O P TBGIL] |
L1862

8.578] 42

s Lﬁm

9.692143

1[3%&10&\!’

)

1563 A4 |

N%ﬂ‘i bUVE

(] mamm aciloes ks g__%cf_ W) o
k&c%&
B 744120 4.2 .97 O csfnuﬁ;w 2ooo Em 187371 P 6 46

us

Of 30
<

M 74 G329

Zc.397

to

DS EL
%{-‘ l t-:l-al [ X ]

{tepse w

ELuoas A LS3 opiea LA

[Lesmse ioduses puscd

:%.geg_ L} Bm 158720

n7.9%] 4o

PRt SF 19
LeYWE Lt DRIV

Heoge  ~

r:?'ﬂ’?d-é 42

| =Yaal T4 LA 4 273 577

27.287

GIMIATARA

wa.orf

2

iﬁasv_ inely

oES ILga o Tujch Lﬁﬂa\

CLC i, 20 S0
= & er
L b |(Lerse wices

N

v0.9%1 &7

faar o7 7
& » OCIW

DR AtJR ST

CAATATI04-

15.4.97

0 M M 789493

24.7.4 §&-F

B tprny

EY) Lsn‘tlaw

asu Bl ]

6&.5.97

) HOOE &

s S

1D MELL 5]
[w Y- LYY

GMTATLS

71248 4A

faga
L&Al ﬂa_é

e Mt oG]
o284

Mm7AN B4 65 ¢
Em-wa:uss 22,557

mMPSC 545

28.5G7

sﬂt_ LLOWD0ED
AN,

AMMSIC37 30 .S S

Go1SI037

3o.55120

gmMISiLT

Lote. 87

S1c3 2

Clemes it Also

Lo

22 e

GAISS33%

28.7.9%

EMIS2278 hlh-l.g S

24

1o MEtLobid k)

(enm smcdes also il L-mh)

CAT1SS 2l

2577

5

2t seunhew Mg

(@A nCultsy Ao oz LAMD) |

CANISS LS,

3191

okt

15 Meu bl ORiX]

(\m_@.__;_m:m Ao cn-LE!.Wﬁ\

CQMISS TS

B9

U,

(LBRSE AR AS AUBa

TRy

GUTSLTEA-

12-2949

23

LA
35 Meuchew
BRE

(censr ity

MRS P

.ud'n-\&.l-wﬂb\

[ AV [V

R b X

29

o MobE
Casuan Rpaly

{ vener vac

Ladorrs,

FrZE5736

25197

’)!3 ﬁpp% TAET

30

esoven_poats °*)

(terse was

)

STHIA

Lavb)

EM768488

1£-10.57

3]

8( Hobee
n b

176887

32 1.9

3=

IKH &ﬂﬂb

EM765883

2210.92 33

%ww« Eofb,

1176 8878

231097

3G-

1+3
%ﬂ&?{ 55{3' ”)

(LEASE ivew)

pEL Rlsp oTHED LAVD)

FrI767303

291097

35

G0 HookE &
2242 frjer m’j

(LErSE 1M

LIbEL Al

S0 nTdEL, M.vb)

#r777 1058

al-li-y=

3¢

& ey VEIL BrjvE
fearr o)

(1ease iwal

p»e: Bl

o oTire Laws)

o)
0]

3ag

LAHET R 4IWNINBAG TITR B A3 SEC0. AT1A4




E 187 LEGAL STAFF REQUIREMENTS

Relerences raquired on naw tille filed pians for 1. P.'s and absolvie DFL'S 1ol ling parly within:
(a) o S oniecd RNk pvecee remoaliaco

e, onkecy Eieurw - Pner‘ea: ey oo AL CD,

So far as affectad by: . -
= Y Reln M iun i e on LAASAZE o AT

O LR ARG AL, W_b%_:%#\ MTES

No referances required {at this stage for); e%m - ( . 5 A -)

Additional notes required on Officlal Searches, Form 94:

Additional noles required on Cerificates In Form 102:

Slgnad wvie HEQ, Dalf..csivsnrivrvaicns -

Senl to Field (or see MB 64D)

Hl
=

Cucl a me? te O}TRA aF ILDZSO wcal 6o | PL . ishetn
o ulf- 4 P«Fm Ptad‘w -ld?u’ ydlcwi

no Cho tuserd - [DOPWM b/g’qj

Title Neo. Date | Plot Nos. Title No. Date | Piot Nos. Title No. Date | Plot Nes. Title No, Date | Plot Nos.
M74IS5IS jo.aq?| | - 13
o203 (inc.)
—— . ——errs _2[=_ et e — —
DFL Mapping Instructions LESSORS TITLE LESSEES TITLE gg:“ ------------------------------ HEQ
MBE4E procedure wiil [not] apply. Flod Flew  Seomds

Standard Fom of Lease Hefers To -

lease torm clavse , ., . page.......... dembsaclause. ... .. . page._. ...
ben. anse. dause.._......... Page...... sub, sasecluse.. . ... 15T N——
Nz 4l als]l 7l niM | 1 B4 :nl.w4 48{48{ 4 43) 54 41 £
& L. titop]1o 161 1 rt_!;
123)v 24 1291001 2711 201200 LLE LG R AR L TERNT NN [ 1671540 521 80{ 18 1D €21140{ 1847 83187 1800901 70171, 241
naslies|tenaslyesftach o 7 1oEnR1zPhEus gl 1 1



Land Registry

Oﬂ:ICIaI CODQ | Title number LA88157 ' Edition date 03.05.2011
OF re ISte I' OF . — This official copy shows the entries in the register of title on
g = 4 September 2018 at 12:50:35.
. | — This date must be quoted as the "search from date" in any

tl tle official search appiication based on this copy.

SO — The date at the beginning of an entry is the date on which
the entry was made in the register.

— Issued on 4 September 2018.

— Under .67 of the Land Registration Act 2002, this copy is
admissible in evidence to the same extent as the original,

— For information about the register of title, see
www.gov.uk/land-registry.

~ This title is dealt with by HM Land Registry Durham Office.

A: Property register

This register describes the land and estate comprised in the title.

GREATER MANCHESTER : OLDHAM

1 (11.07.1966) The Freehold land shown edged with red on the plan of the
above Title filed at the Registry and being Bent Gate Farm, Sholver Lane,
Oldham.

2 The mines and minerals are excepted.

3 The land edged and numbered in green on the title plan has been removed

from this title and registered under the title number or numbers shown in
green on the said plan.

-

The transfers of those parts edged and numbered in green on the title plan
which were made pursuant to Part V of the Housing Act 1985 took effect with
the benefit of and subject to the easements and other rights prescribed by
paragraph 2 of Schedule 6 of that Act.

5 (03.05.2011) A new title plan based on the latest revision of the Ordnance
Survey Map has been prepared.

6 (04.05.2012) The land has the benefit of the rights reserved by but is

subject to the rights granted by the Transfer dated 7 February 2011
referred to in the Charges Register.

Page 70 U

10038

|




IRTILY:

NG LQO 1D/

B: Proprietorship register

This

register specifies the class of titte and identifies the owner. It contains any

entries that affect the right of disposal.

Title absolute

1

PROPRIETOR: OLDHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL of PO Box 33, civic Centre, West Street,
Oldham oL1 1uL.

C: Charges register

This register containg any charges and other matters that affect the land.

1

Page 2

The land is subject to rights of drainage rights in respect of water, soil,
gas and electricity supply services and ancillary rights of entry,

The paths and bassages are subject to rights of way.

NOTE: Copy filed under GM216307.

The said Agreement also contains covenants.

NOTE: Copy filed under GM216307,

NOTE: Copy filed under GM619490,

(06.06.1997) The parts of the land affected thereby are subject to the
leases set out in the schedule of leases hereto.
The leases grant and reserve easements as therein mentioned,



HiLe 1unper LABL 1o/

C: Charges register continued

the Grantee in fee simple as appurtenant to its undertaking and electricity
distribution system

2. THE Grantee hereby covenants with the Grantor as follows:-

(a) To exercise the rights and liberties hereby granted in accordance with
all regulations and requirements whether statutory or otherwise for the
time being in force affect the sme

(b) That as soon as reasonably possible following the initial laying of the
said underground electric lines the Grantee will back-fill the cable

trench PROVIDED however that the Grantee will not be responsible for any
further reinstatement of the Easement Land

(c) That if the Grantee carries out any excavations in the Easement Land
subsequent to the initial laying of the said underground electric lines the
Grantee will (unless otherwise agreed with the Grantor as a future term of
supply) make good at its own expense all damage caused to the Fasement

Land or to the adjoining property of the Grantor in the exercise of the
rights and liberties hereby granted and the execution of the works hereby
authorised as soon as is reasconably practicable.”

The said Deed also contains the following covenants by the Grantor:-

"THE Grantor with intent to bind the Easement Land and (so far as the same
is affected by the stipulations and restrictions in this clause contained)
the adjoining land of the Grantor into whosoever hands the same may come
and for the benefit and protection of the underground electric lines and
the undertaking and electricity distribution system of the Grantee HEREBY
COVENANTS with the Grantee that the Grantor and those deriving title under
the Grantor shall at all times hereafter observe and perform the following
stipulations and restrictions:-

(a) To keep the Easement Land forever hereafter open and unbuilt upon

(b} Not to alter the level of the Easement Land from that existing at the
date hereof

(c) That nothing shall be done or suffered to be done by the Grantor its
servants or agents upon the Easement land or the said adjoining property of
the Grantor which may in any way interfere with or damage the said
underground electric lines.

IN this Deed the expression "electric lines" shall have the meaning (in the
plural) assigned to the expression "electric line" by Section 64 of the
Electricity Act 1989 and shall be interpreted and construed accordingly and
shall also include all joint boxes and apparatus ancillary to underground
electric lines."

NOTE: The Fasement Land referred to above is tinted yellow on the title
plan so far as it affects the land in this title.

8 (07.05.1998) The parts of the land affected thereby are subject to the
following rights granted by a Deed of Grant dated 23 April 1998 made
between (1) The Oldham Borough Council (The Grantor) and (2) Norweb PLC
(The Grantee):-

"The Grantor hereby grants with full title guarantee unto the Grantee FULL
AND FREE RIGHT AND LIBERTY for the Grantee and its succcessors in title and
all persons authorised by it to lay construct use inspect maintain repair
alter relay renew and remove or render unusable along and under the
Easement Land such underground electric lines as the Grantee may from time

R MR

50 00

Page 3 Page 72




IR et i L T A T N R V]

C: Charges register continued

Page 4

to time require in connection with its undertaking and for this purpose to
break open the surface of and excavate in the Easement land so far as this
may be necessary from time to time reinstating the same in accordance with
the covenants on the part of the Grantee hereinafter contained TO HOLD the
said rights and liberties unto the Grantee in fee simple as appurtenant to
its undertaking and electricity distribution system.

THE Grantee hereby covenants with the Grantor as follows:-

(a) To exercise the rights and liberties hereby granted in accordance with
all regulations and requirements whether statutory or otherwise for the
time being in force affecting the same

(b} That as soon as reasonably possible following the initial laying of the
said underground electric lines the Grantee will back-fill the cable

trench PROVIDED however that the Grantee will not be responsible for any
further reinstatement of the Easement Land

(c) That if the Grantee carries out any excavation in the Easement Land
subsequent to the initial laying of the said underground electric lines the
Grantee will (unless otherwise agreed with the Grantor as a future term of
supply) make good at its own expense all damage caused to the Easement

Land or to the adjoining property of the Grantor in the exercise of the
rights and liberties hereby granted and the execution of the works hereby
authorised as soon as is reasonably practicable.”

IT IS HEREBY AGREED AND DECLARED by and between the parties hereto as
follows:

(2) in this clause the expression:
(1) "Develop" includes redevelop

(2) "Property" means all that freehold land comprised in title numbers
LABB157 LA43936 GM216307 GM619490 LA115192 and OLE770

(3) "Alternative Route(s)" means a route or routes within the Property as
near as possible to the Easement Land as shall be approved by the Grantee
as a suitable alternative for the Grantee's purpose

(b) If the Grantor shall desire to Develop the Property and it is necessary
for such development to include the Easement Land or any part thereof and
shall have obtained Planning Permission for such development the Grantee
will release to the Grantor such of the rights and liberties hereby granted
as require to be released subject to the following terms and conditions:

4.1 The Grantor shall give to the Grantee not less than twelve month's
notice in writing of its desire to implement this clause

4.2 On or before the expiration of the said notice the Grantor shall
(subject to investigation and approval of title by the Grantee's Solicitor)
by deed with the concurrence of every incumbrancer (such concurrence to be
procured by and at the expense of the Grantor) and without payment of any
consideration by the Grantee grant in fee simple easements to the Grantee
in respect of alternative route(s) for the laying of the underground
electric lines such grant to be in the like form and contain the like
provisions and covenants (mutatis mutandis) as are herein contained

4.3 Bubject to all necesary labour and materials being available but as

soon as practicable after completion of the grant of easements in respect
of the alternative route(s) the Grantee shall (in the following order of

events): -

Page 73



Hue number LAB8B157

C: Charges register continued

(i) complete the laying of the underground electric lines along the
alternative route(s) and the bringing into use thereof

(ii) remove so far as necessary the underground electric lines installed
pursuant to such of the rights and liberties hereby granted as are required
to be released or render dead such underground electric lines

(iii) surrender such of the rights and liberties hereby granted as are
required to be released

PROVIDED THAT:

(a) if the Grantee or its contractors are prevented from complying with
sub-clause 4.3 by reason of outbreak of war or civil insurrection or fire
tempest frost inclement weather or other inevitable cause or accident or
strike or lock out of workmen or the failure of the Grantee to obtain
satisfactory supplies materials or labour or by reason of accident to the
works or force majeure or by reason of the Grantee either having to
redeploy the workforce assigned to carry out the works in order to carry
out emergency work or repairs to its electricity plant and electric lines
or by reason of any unavoidable cause for which the Grantee is not
responsible in each such case the Grantee shall be allowed such extensions
of time as are reasonable in the circumstances

(b) notwithstanding any provision of this sub-clause 4.3 the Grantee shall
not under any circumstances be liable to the Grantor for any special
indirect or conseguential loss or damage arising under contract or
otherwise including negligence and breach of statutory duty The term
"consequential loss" shall include but is not limited to costs claims
damages or expenses calculated by reference to loss or reduction of revenue
or profit or loss of contracts (provided that nothing in this sub-clause
shall be construed as an attempt to exclude or limit the liabilty of the
Grantee in negligence for death of or injury to any person)

4.4.1 The Grantor shall (to which effect the Grantor hereby covenants) be
liable for and pay to the Grantee the costs charges and expenses incurred
or sustained by the Grantee in or arising out of:

(i) the laying of the underground electric lines along the alternative
route(s)

(ii) the removal as aforesaid of the underground electric lines from the
land the subject of the rights and liberties hereby granted required to be
released as aforesaid

(1ii) the preparation and completion of the documentation required in
respect of easements for the alternative route(s) and the surrender of such
of the rights and liberties hereby granted as are required to be released
as aforesaid including stamp duty and (if appropriate) all Land Registry
fees for noting thereof on the Register of the Title relating thereto

4.4.2 The Grantor and the Grantee shall take into account betterment and/or
deferment of renewal in calculating the said costs charges and expenses
incurred or sustained by the Grantee referred to in clause 4.4.1. herecf in
that the cost of diverting the underground electric lines due to
development only relates to the underground electric lines installed
pursuant to such of the rights and liberties hereby granted or equivalent
replacement underground electric lines and not the cost of any additional
or higher voltage underground electric lines which the Grantee may wish to
lay along the alternative route(s)

s Page 74 AN RNER



[N YA

IR Bl WIS I T

C: Charges register continued

Page 6

AND without prejudice to the foregoing if required by the Grantee so to do
shall as a condition precedent to the completion of such grant make a
payment to the Grantee of the estimated amount of such costs charges and
expenses and the Grantee will (as it hereby covenants so to do) repay to
the Grantor the difference between the estimated amount so paid and the
total amount (if smaller) of such costs charges and expenses

4.5.1 That if the Grantor shall at any time during which this Deed remains
effective consider that the Grantee has ceased to make any substantive use
of the Easement land for the exercise of the rights and liberties hereby
granted for a continuous period of not less than one year then:

(a) the Grantor may at any time thereafter serve written notice on the
Grantee requesting the Grantee to provide reasonable evidence that in the
Grantee's reasonable opinion the Grantee does have a bona fide present or
future requirement to use the Easement Land

(b) the Grantee shall within a reasonable period (but in any event not
exceeding three months) of the receipt of the said written notice supply to
the Grantor such evidence as is mentioned in sub-clause (a) above

4.5.2 In the event that the parties agree that the Grantee is unable to
provide satisfactory evidence as aforesaid the Grantee shall surrender this
Deed without any consideration and the Grantor shall (a) accept the
surrender and (b) release the Grantee from its covenants and other
obligations under this Deed

4.5.3 Prior to any surrender of this Deed pursuant to this Clause 4 the
Grantee shall at its own expense ensure that the Electric Cables are
disconnected and made safe the Grantee making good any damage caused to the
Easement Land or the said adjoining property of the Grantor to the
reasonable satisfaction of the Grantor

IN this Deed the expression "electric lines" shall have the meaning (in the
plural) assigned to the expression "electric line" by Section 64 of the
Electricity Act 1989 and shall be interpreted and construed accordingly and
shall also include all joint boxes and apparatus ancillary to underground
electric lines."

The said Deed also contains the following covenants by the Grantor.

"THE Grantor with intent to bind the Easement land and (so far as the same
is affected by the stipulations and restrictions in this clause contained)
the adjoining land of the Grantor into whosesoever hands the same may come
and for the benefit and protection of the underground electric lines and
the undertaking and electricity distribution system of the Grantee HEREBY
COVENANTS with the Grantee that the Grantor and those deriving title under
the Grantor shall at all times hereafter observe and perform the following
stipulations and restrictions:-

(a) To keep the Easement Land forever hereafter open and unbuilt upon

(b) Not to alter the level of the Easement Land from that existing at the
date hereof

(c) That nothing shall be done or suffered to be done by the Grantor its
servants or agent upon the Easement land or the said adjoining property of
the Grantor which may in any way interfere with or damage the said
underground electric lines."

NOTE: The Easement Land referred to has been shown hatched brown on the
title plan so far as it affects the land in this title.

Page 75



Jtue nuimuer LAs819/

C: Charges register continued

(04.05.2012) A Transfer which included the land edged and numbered

MAN192482 in green on the title plan and other land dated 7 February 2011
made between (1) Oldham Borough Council and (2) First Choice Homes Oldham
Limited contains restrictive covenants by the vendor.

9

Page 7

NOTE: Copy filed under MAN149279.

Schedule of notices of leases

Registration date
and plan ref,

06.06.1997
edged and
numbered 2 in
blue

NOTE: The Lease

10.07.1997
edged and
numbered 3 in
blue

25.07.1997
edged and
numbered 8 in
blue

NOTE: The lease

28.07.1997
edged and
numbered 4 and
5 in blue

28.07.1997
edged and
numbered 6 in
blue

NOTE: The lease

30.07.1997
edged and
numbered 7 in
blue

31.07.1997
edged and
numbered 9 in
blue

NOTE: The lease

01.08.1997
edged and
numbered 10 in
blue

NOTE: The lease

01.08.1997
edged and
numbered 11 in
blue

Property description

part of 23 Mellodew Drive

comprises also other land

22 Mellodew Drive

part of 21 Mellodew Drive

comprises also other land

20 Mellodew Drive and
parking space

part of 16 Mellodew Drive

comprises also other land

18 Mellodew Drive

part of 15 Mellodew Drive

comprises also other land

part of 14 Mellodew Drive

comprises also other land

36 Hodge Clough Road

Page 76

Date of lease
and term

22.05.1997
999 yvears from
1.7.1995

30.05.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

30.05.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

10.06.1997
599 years from
1.7.1995

27.06.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

27.06.1997
999 years from
1.7.1985

27.06.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

27.06.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

27.06.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

Lessee's title

GM751677

GM754002

GM755216

GM755313

GM755335

GM755485

GM755615

GM7557%9

GM755800

L



UG iUt LAQO L f

Schedule of notices of leases continued

10

1

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

Page 8

Registration date
and plan ref.

15.09.1997
edged and
numbered 12 in
blue

NOTE: The lease

22.09.1997
edged and
numbered 13 in
blue

NOTE: The lease

25.09.1997
edged and
numbered 14 in
blue

25.09.1997
edged and
numbered 15

and 16 in blue
NOTE: The lease

22.10.1997
edged and
numbered 17 in
blue

NOTE: The lease

29,10.1997
edged and
numbered 18 in
blue

NOTE: The lease

11.11.1997
edged and
numbered 19 in
blue

18,11.1997
edged and
numbered 23 in
blue

NOTE: The lease

21.,11.1997
edged and
numbered 20
and 21 in blue

NOTE: The lease

01.12.1997
edged and
numbered 22 in
blue

Property description

part of 25 Mellowdew Drive

comprises also other land
part of 30 Hodge Clough
Road

comprises also other land

34 Hodge Clough Road

part of 32 Hodge Clough
Road

comprises also other land
part of 28 Hodge Clough
Road

comprises also other land
part of 40 Hodge Clough
Road

comprises also other land

38 Hodge'clough Road

part of 3 Leywell Drive

comprises also other land

part of 5 Leywell Drive

comprises also other land

part of 19 Mellowdew Drive

NOTE: The lease comprises also other land

Page 77

Date of lease
and term

27.05.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

28.07.1997
999 vears from
1.7.1995

25.,07.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

15.08.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

29.08.1997
999% years from
1.7.1995

30.05,1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

26.06.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

24.10.1997
999 years from
1,7.1995

24,10.1997
998 years from
1.7.1995

29.08.1997
999 years from
1,7.1995

Lessee's title

GM756764

GM761117

GM765712

GM765736

GM768878

GM769303

GM770213

GM770802

GM771058

GM769544



Hitle number LA88157

Schedule of notices of leases continued

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

Page 9

Registration date
and plan ref.

10.12,1997
edged and
numbered 24 in
blue

06.01.1998
edged and
numbered 25 in
blue

16.01.1998
edged and
numbered 26 in
blue

20.01.1998
edged and
numbered 27

13.02.1998
edged and
numbered 28 in
blue

NOTE: The lease

10.03.1998
edged and
numbered 29 in
blue

14,05.1998
edged and
numbered 30 in
blue

29.05.1998
edged and
numbered 31 in
blue

09.06.1998
edged and
numbered 32 in
blue

NOTE: The lease

15.06.1998
edged and
numbered 33 in
bilue

NOTE: The lease

25.06.1998
edged and
numbered 34 in
blue

Property description

4 Leywell Drive

2 Leywell Drive

1 Leywell Drive

6 Leywell Drive

part of 7 Leywell Drive

comprises also other land

14 Leywell Drive

16 Leywell Drive

22 Leywell Drive

part of 9 Leywell Drive

comprises also other land

part of 17 Leywell Drive

comprises also other land

part of 30 Leywell Drive

NOTE: The Lease comprises also other land

Page 78

Date of iease
and term

21.11.1997
999 years from
1,7.1995

21.11.1997
989 years from
1.7.1995

20.11.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

20.01.1998
999 years from
1.7.15995

09.01.1998
99% years from
1.7.1995

06.02.1998
999 vears from
1.7.1985

27.03.1998
999 years from
1.7.1995

24,03.1998
999 years from
1.7.1995

24,04.1998
999 years from
1.7.1995

12.05.1998
999 years from
1.7.1995

25,05.1998
999 years from
1.7.1995

Lessee's title

GM772943

GM774745

GM775815

GM776040

GM778841

GM7BO666

GM784930

GM785745

GM786303

GM7B6662

GM787374

T,



[Tle numper LABS 10/

Schedule of notices of leases continued

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

Hegistration date
and plan ref.

03.07.1998
edged and
numbered 35 in
blue

07.07.1998
edged and
numbered 36 in
blue

14.07.1998
edged and
numbered 37 in
blue

14.07.1998
edged and
numbered 38 in
blue

NOTE: The lease

14,07.1998
edged and
numbered 39 in
blue

NOTE: The lease

28.07.1998
edged and
numbered 40 in
blue

04.08.1998
edged and
numbered 41 in
blue

04.09.1998
edged and
numbered 42 in
blue

17.09.1998
edged and
numbered 43 in
blue

22.09.1998
edged and
numbered 44 in
blue

07.12.1998
edged and
numbered 45 in
blue

Property description

10 Leywell Drive

20 Leywell Drive

28 Leywell Drive

part of 19 Leywell Drive

comprises also other land

part of 17 Mellodew Drive

comprises also other land

24 Leywell Drive

24 Leywell Drive

18 Leywell Drive

8 Leywell Drive

26 Leywell Drive

part of 32 Leywell Drive

NOTE: The lease comprises also other land

Page 10

Page 79

Date of lease
and term

29.05.1998
999 years from
1.7.1995

05.06.1998
599 years from
1.7.1995

26.06.1998
999 years from
1.7.1995

26.06.1998
999 years from
1.7.1995

26.06.1998
999 years from
1.7.1995

26.06.1998
999 years from
1,7.1995

26.06.1998
999 years from
1.7.1995

15,07.1998
999 years from
1,7.1995

27.02.1998
999 years from
1.7.1995

31,07.1998
999 years from
1,7.1995

29,05.1998
999 years from
1.7.1995

Lessee's title

GM787913

GM788224

GM788719

GM788720

GM788912

GM789649

GM790083

GM792337

GM793360

GM793568

GM799763



LIue NHunmper LAQO 1o/

Schedule of notices of leases continued

Registration date Property description Date of lease Lessee's title
and plan ref. and term

42 09.11.2011 Land lying to the south of 30.09.2011 MAN184084
edged and Cop Road 250 years from
numbered 46 and including
and 47 in 30.9.2011
blue

NOTE: The lease comprises also other land.

End of register

page 80 T

Page 11



i
h
{

\

This ofiicial copy issued on 4 Septembar 2018 shows Tho siato of ts title plan o3 4 Saplember 2018 at 12:50.35.

it 15 adm:ssible i evidencs fo the $ame axient a8 ha oegnet (3 67 ard Regisuzatan Act 2007

I

] = " HM Lal'ld Reglstrl_.j Titla number LABRIST
; ) B - [ - ol .t Orenance Survey r3ap reference SD24075E - &
e Scals 11250 0 L]
Adminisiyative afea Greater Manchaester: Oldham :
. = = e T e E IR
: S v B va vrn o n S B! BN Lo

)
Thie ttie plan shews tha genesal positen nat the gxact ing, of the boundanes 1t may e subect ko dstoiong In scale Measurements szated from this plan may net maieh measuraments betwean G saMa points on the grountd
Thin titlo 18 doalt with by HM Laxd Reglstry, Durham Otlice.

Page 81



THE COMMONS ACT 2006
VILLAGE GREEN APPLICATION - LAND AT HODGE CLOUGH ROAD, OLDHAM

STATUTORY DECLARATION OF JULIE FLORENCE HALL

EXHIBIT JFH2

And produced to me on fie §™  day of wePzmsse. 2018

Declared by Julie Florence Hall

Before me @)g—ri___,

Solicitor Hecand gedng -Cmusty -

Stamp

Garratts

King Street Buildings

Manchester Sireel

Oidham

Greater Manchoster
OL8 10H

Tel-0161 665 3502 Fax-0161 665 4060
www.garatissolicitors.co.uk

Page 82
























THE COMMONS ACT 2006
VILLAGE GREEN APPLICATION - LAND AT HODGE CLOUGH ROAD, OLDHAM

STATUTORY DECLARATION OF JULIE FLORENCE HALL

EXHIBIT JFH3

And produced to me on fe $%*  day of szeTemEee 2018

Julie Florence Hall

h MC&J«( .........................

Signed....

Declared

Dated oS, SEFEMBRER 201K

............................................................

Before me M

2
Solicitor Heesn R ravite-T Pl TT

Stam
P Garralis
King Street Bulldings
Manchesler Sireat
Oldham
Grealer Manchaster
OL8 1DH
Tel:-D161 665 2502 Fax:-0161 665 4060
www.garraltssolicilors.co.uk

Page 90



{z firstchoice
HOMES OLDHAM

First Choice Homas Oldham
First Place, 22 Union Street
Oldham, OL1

Claimed Land- Hodge Clough Road

tre
1BE
iN

Page 91




This page is intentionally left blank



Date: 21% September 2018
Our ref: RB/BI
Your ref; Alan Evans

Commons Registration Officer
Oldham Coungil

Civic Centre

West Street

Oldham OL1 1UL

Dear Sir

Corporate and Commercial
Services

Legal Services

Level 4, Civic Centre, West Street
Oldham, OL1 1UL

DX 710000 Oldham

Tel: 0161 770 4701

Land at Hodge Clough Road, Lower Sholver, Moorside, Oldham (“the Land")
Town or Village Green Application made by Mr Fred Wilkinson dated 8.6.18

(“the Application”)

Oldham

Council

On behalf of Oldham Council as landowner of the Land, please find enclosed Objections (“the
Objections”) to the Application in respect of the Land in response to the Notice dated 8% August
2018 published by the Council as Commons Registration Authority together with exhibits 1-8

inclusive referred to in the Objections.

Please acknowledge safe receipt and contact the writer if you have any queries or wish to
discuss any matter in connection with the Objections.

Group Solicitor (Corporate)
Legal and Democratic Services
Oldham Council

Civic Centre

West Street

Oldham

OL1 1UL

Tel: 0161 770 4701

Fax: 0161 770 3701

e-mail: rebecca.boyle@oldham.gov.uk

working for a co-operative borough Page 93

www.oldham.gov.uk



IN THE MATTER OF:

LAND KNOWN AS ‘HODGE CLOUGH’ OFF HODGE CLOUGH ROAD,

LOWER SHOLVER, MOORSIDE, OLDHAM

OBJECTIONS ON BEHALF OF OLDHAM METROPOLITAN BOROUGH
COUNCIL

The Site

1. The Application land (‘the Land’) is an area of 2.45 acres of open land known as
‘Hodge Clough” at Hodge Clough Road, Lower Sholver, Moorside, Oldham. The
freehold interest in the Land is owned by Oldham Borough Council who hold the
Land in two registered absolute freehold titles being LA43936 and LA88157
(appendices OMBCI and OMBC?2). These objections are made on behalf of Oldham
Metropolitan Borough Council (‘the Council’) of Civic Centre, West Street Oldham
OL1 1UL.

2. The Moorside area lies some three kilometres northeast of the centre of Oldham, its
eastern boundary stretching for just over a kilometre along the Ripponden Road

(A672). Sholver is the most extensive of the two estates within Moorside and is

Page 94



separated into two halves. Top Sholver, which is mostly social rented stock, (with
older terraced dwellings on the Ripponden Road frontage)} and Bottom Sholver
(referred to by the Applicant as Lower Sholver) which is at a lower elevation and
consists mainly private housing developed on land formerly occupied by social rented

housing. The Land lies to the western edge of Bottom Sholver.

. The Land was purchased by the Council in the 1960s (LA88157 — 26/06/66, LA43936
- 19/05/64) to construct a large estate of new houses and flats to rent, one of a number
of such edge-of-town estates built to house the population of large areas of town
centre housing which had in the 1950s been designated as substandard and earmarked
for clearance. Building of the Sholver new housing began in May 1966 and was

completed in 1971, the estate being built in two parts — Top and Bottom Sholver.

. Large scale demolition occurred in the mid-1980s which was followed by

redevelopment of Bottom Sholver with market housing in the 1990s,

. The Land is in the form of an irregular rectangle. It forms an area of open grassland
adjoining the unmaintained open moorland. The Land is maintained by the Council’s
Environmental Management Department. There is a gritting bin on the eastern edge of
the Land. There is a street light sited on the eastern edge of the Land. The Land is

regularly mowed by the Council.

. That part of the Land within title LA43936 was purchased by the Council pursuant to
Part V of the Housing Act 1957 (Appendix OMBC3). The Council does not know
which specific statutory powers were utilised to purchase title LA88157. Attached as
appendix OMBCS is the witness statement of Deborah Taylor, an employee of the
Council, confirming that the two deeds wallets for the title deeds for the Land are
marked with a red symbol that denotes that the sites were acquired and held for

housing purposes.

. However, the Council possesses, for both titles, ‘Deed Record Cards’ (appendix
OMBC4). The Deed Record Card for LA43936 is dated 19" May 1964, The Deed
Record Card for LA88157 is dated 29" June 1966. The Deed Record Cards state the
prices paid by the Council. Both Deed Record Cards list the titles as being acquired
under the ‘Housing’ Committee. The Council considers the Deed Record Cards to

provide sufficient evidence, on the balance of probabilities, that the Land was

Page 95



acquired by the Council in 1964 and 1966 under its Housing Act powers. This
conclusion is relevant to the ‘as of right’ test (see below). Appendix OMBCS5 supports

this evidence as referred to in paragraph 6 above.
Notification

8. Oldham Metropolitan Borough Council is the Commons Registration Authority
(*CRA’) for the purposes of the Commons Act 2006.

9. By notice dated 8" August 2018 the Council as CRA gave notice of the Application to
register the Land as a town or village green for the purposes of the Commons Act

2006. The deadline for any objection being 24" September 2018,

The Application

10. The Application was made by Mr Fred Wilkinson by a Town or Village Green (Form
44) application received by Oldham Metropolitan Borough Councii on 27" June
2018. The Application is accompanied by a statutory declaration in support signed by
Mr Wilkinson and dated 8" June 2018.

11. Mr Wilkinson confirmed in the application form that the Application is pursued under
s.15(2) of the Commons Act 2006.

12. Mr Wilkinson described the relevant locality for the Application at note 6 as: ‘Saint
James Ward, Lower Sholver, Moorside, Oldham. OL1 4PW. Hodge Clough Road’.

13. Mr Wilkinson provided the following justification at no.7 on the form:

“The land known as: Hodge Clough Road’, should be granted ‘village green

status’, for the following reasons:

1. The land has been used for more than twenty years by the residents of
Lower Sholver and Moorside for recreational activities: dog walking ~
football - rugby — cricket - kite flying — drone flying — cycling — bonfires
(5 November) — snowman building — carol singing (Christmas).

2. The ‘Green’ is a focal point for our community and a safe place where

children can play, close to their homes, and away from traffic.

Page 96



3. In January 1996 ‘Barratt Homes Limited’ paid ‘Oldham Borough
Council’ the sum of thirty thousand pounds ‘as a contribution towards the
cost of providing an area of public open space.’ ‘Hodge Clough Road’.

4. The land is used by wildlife: deer — fox — bats.”

14. Mr Wilkinson stated on the Application that the Land is owned by ‘Oldham Council’.
15. Under no.11 on Form 44 Mr Wilkinson states:

‘The land known as ‘Hodge Clough Road’ is being considered for housing
development by 'First Choice Homes Oldham’. The land is the focal point of
our close knit community. It is a place where many activities take place: dog
walking — an activity for many people in the community/ Also a safe area for

children to play’.

16. The Application is supported by 11 signed letters' in support and a petition® with 125
signatures (some of these are repeated from the letters’ authors). The table attached

summarises the duration and nature of the claimed user.

17. The Council submits that the submitted evidence is of questionable value. A number
of the letters are jointly signed so that the extent of use by specific individuals is
indeterminate. The petition is supported by a broad statement of use which cannot
apply universally to all signatories, for instance ‘drone flying’ has not existed as a

pastime for 20 years.

18. The evidence submitted is not sufficient to justify the finding of a town or village
green. Before the application could be approved and the existence of a green

confirmed the evidence would require to be tested under examination at inquiry. The

! Some with multiple signatures

* I agree that the field on Hodge Clough Rd should be granted village green status for the reasons stated
below:

The green has been used for over 20 years by residents for the following activities: dog walking, bonfire on
November 5%, snowman building, drone flying, kite flying, cycling, football, rugby, cricket, golf, frisbe [sic),
rounders and children’s party activities including bouncy castles. The green is also a communal place where
chance meetings of participants of the above activities have forged and developed ¢lose neighbourhood ties
and friendships, it is the heart, focal point of our community and a safe place where children can play close
enough to their homes and away from traffic’.

Page 97



19,

Council reserves its right to cross examine any live witnesses called on behalf of the

Applicant and to make submissions on the deficiencies of the evidence forms.

S.106 Agreements

The Applicant places specific reliance upon a section 106 agreement entered into by
the Council. on 1™ January 1996 Oldham Borough Council and Barratt Homes
Limited entered into an agreement (‘the 1996 Agreement’) under s.106 of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990 (‘the TCPA’). The 1996 Agreement was entered into
in relation to a planning application (ref: 033351/95) made by Barratt Homes Ltd in
relation to ‘land at Hough Clough Road, Oldham’. Item 3 of the 1996 Agreement
states ‘the Developer [Barratts Homes Limited] shall upon completion of this
Planning Obligation pay to the Council the sum of £30,000 (receipt whereof is hereby
acknowledged) as a contribution towards the cost of the Council providing an area of
public open space in the area of the Land and the Council shall within a reasonable

period provide and lay out the area of public open space’.

20. The land the subject of the 1996 Agreement is to the immediate north, north east, and

21

cast of the Land the subject of the Application (see plan attached at appendix
OMBC7). There is no plan or information in the Council’s possession to confirm
where the sum paid by Barratts under the 1996 s.106 Agreement was applied. If the
Applicant is suggesting the Land was the land laid out for public open space then he
has fundamentally undermined his application as the use of the Land would not be as
of right (see Barkas). The Council cannot confirm the Land was the public open space

laid out as a result of the 1996 Agreement.

However, the Council entered into a 5.106 on 6™ June 1995 (‘the 1995 Agreement’)
with Lovell Partnerships (Northern) Limited. The 1995 Agreement relates to the
development for housing of land under titles GM619490 and GM216307. Paragraph 8
of the 1995 Agreement provides:

‘8. In consideration of the sum of £29,965.65 paid by the Developer to the
Council on the date hereof (the receipt of which the Council hereby

acknowledges) the Council will within a reasonable period provide and layout

Page 98



the area of public open space shown edged blue on the plan marked ‘Public

Open Space’ annexed hereto’.

22. The Council’s copy of the 1995 Agreement does not have the annexed Public Open
Space plan. However, the titles to both LA88157 and LA43936 make specific

reference to the 1995 Agreement:

‘An Agreement dated 6 June 1995 affecting the land edged biue on the title
plan and other land made between (1) Oldham Borough Council and (2)
Lovell Partnerships (Northern) Limited relates to planning obligations

pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.’

23.0n title LA88157 the Application Land is coloured blue. On title LA43936 the
Application Land is outlined in blue. The Council considers that on the balance of
probabilities the Land the subject of this Application is the land laid out for Public
Open Space under the 1995 Agreement. This conclusion is relevant to whether any

use of the Land has been ‘as of right’ (see below).

APPROACH AND BURDEN OF PROOF

24. The process of determination involves simply applying the law to the facts; there is no

discretion, nor are land use merits material.

25. The burden of proving that land has become a TVG lies on the applicant, on the

balance of probabilities. In Beresford v Sunderland City Council [2003] UKHL 69,
Lord Bingham quoted Pill L in R v Suffolk CC ex parte Steed (1996) 75 P&CR

102 at 111:

"it is no trivial matter for a landowner to have land, whether in public or

private ownership, registered as a town green..."”
continuing:

"It is accordingly necessary that all ingredients of this definition should be
met before land is registered, and decision-makers must consider carefully
whether the land in question has been used by the inhabitants of a locality for
indulgence in what are properly to be regarded as lawful sports and pastimes

and whether the temporal limit of 20 years’ indulgence or more is met.”

Page 99



26. It is necessary, in order to achieve registration under the CA 2006, for all the relevant
elements to be established. Therefore if an application fails on one element, it must
fail overall; where there is a fundamenta! flaw, a claim cannot be rescued by success

in relation to all the other elements.

Legal Framework

27. The Application in question has been made under s.15(2) Commons Act 2006

(“CA™). This section provides as follows:

15 Registration of greens
(1) Any person may apply to the commons registration authority to register
land to which this Part applies as a town or village green in a case where
subsection (2), (3) or (4) applies.
(2) This subsection applies where—
(a) a significant number of the inhabitants of any locality, or of any
neighbourhood within a locality, have indulged as of right in lawful

sports and pastimes on the land for a period of at least 20 years; and
(b) they continue to do so at the time of the application.

(6) In determining the period of 20 years referred to in subsections (2)(a),
(3)(a} and (4)(a), there is to be disregarded any period during which access to
the land was prohibited to members of the public by reason of any enactment.
(7) For the purposes of subsection (2)(b) in a case where the condition in
subsection (2)(a) is satisfied-
(a) where persons indulge as of right in lawful sports and pastimes
immediately before access to the land is prohibited as specified in
subsection (6), those persons are to be regarded as continuing so to

indulge; and

Page 100



(b) where permission is granted in respect of use of the land for the
purposes of lawful sports and pastimes, the permission is to be
disregarded in determining whether persons continue to indulge in
lawful sports and pastimes on the land “as of right".

...  emphasis added

28. The CRA is required to either accept or reject the application solely on the facts. Any
other issues, including those of desirability or community needs are not legally
relevant and cannot be taken into consideration. The CRA must decide whether the
application fully meets all the elements of qualifying use for land to have become
capable of registration as a TVG. The applicant must establish on the balance of

probabilities (the civil standard of proof) that use had been;

i) by a significant number of the inhabitants,

it) of any locality or of a neighbourhood within a locality,

iii) having indulged *“as of right” (i.e. without force, secrecy or
permission),

iv) in lawful sports and pastimes,

V) on the land,

vi) for a period of at least twenly years,

“A_significant number of the inhabitants of any locality, or of any neighbourhood
within a locality”

29. None of the terms in this element of the requirements is defined in the CA 2006. The
phrase is, however, taken from s.22 (1A) of the Commons Registration Act 1965, as
amended by Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000.

Significant number

30. “Significant number” under the 1965 Act was considered in R (0a0) McAlpine
Homes Ltd v Staffordshire County Council [2002] EWHC 76 by Sullivan J. He
said (para 71):

Page 101



“... In my judgment the inspector approached the matter correctly in saying
that ‘significant’, although imprecise, is an ordinary word in the English
language and little help is to be gained from trying to define it in other
language. In addition, the inspector correctly concluded that, whether the
evidence showed that a significant number of the inhabitants of any locality or
of any neighbourhood within a locality had used the meadow for informal
recreation was very much a matter of impression. It is necessary to ask the
question: significant for what purpose? In my judgment the correct answer is
provided by Mr Mynors on behalf of the council, when he submits that what
matters is that the number of people using the land in question has to be
sufficient to indicate that their use of the land signifies that it is in general use
by the local community for informal recreation, rather than occasional use by

individuals as trespassers.”

31. The Application was made on the basis that the relevant area was ‘St James Ward’.
The population of St James Ward in 2016 was 11,862 (Ward profile at Appendix
OMBC6). If all of the submitted evidence and signatures are relied upon, the
Application is supported by 857 individuals. This is not a significant number of the

population of St James Ward.

32. In spite of the terms of the Application, if the smaller area of Sholver (within St
James Ward) were relied upon the population of the area is 5500ca (The Office of
National Statistics — Mid Year Estimates 2016). It is submitted that 85 is not a
significant number of the inhabitants of Sholver. The population of Bottom Sholver
(the part of Sholver wherein the Land is located) is understood to be circa 3800 (The
Office of National Statistics — Mid Year Estimates 2016). It is submitted that 85 is not
a sufficient number in a population of 3800 to indicate ‘general use by the local

community’ (McAlpine v Staffordshire).

Locality

33. A “locality” was interpreted in the pre-2006 Act case law as an area known to law, or

some recognised administrative division of the county: see MoD v Wiltshire County

3 This is based upon assuming {generously) that all signatories to the petition are actual inhabitants who have
used the Land (but excluding repeated names.

Page 102



Council [1995] 4 All ER 931; R (oao Laing Homes Ltd) v Buckinghamshire
County Council [2004] JPL 319. More recently the Court of Appeal considered the

requirements of “locality” and “neighbourhood” within a locality in Leeds Group Plc
v Leeds City Council [2010] EWCA Civ 1438. The Court held that the singular
“neighbourhood” in the definition included the plural “neighbourhoods”. They
considered that there was no reason to disapply the presumption in s.6(c)
Interpretation Act 1978. The Court referred to Lord Hoffmann’s consideration of the

word “neighbourhood” in his speech in Oxfordshire County Council v Oxford City
Council [2006] UKHL 25, where he said (at para 27):

' “Any neighbourhood within a locality” is obviously drafted with a deliberate
imprecision which contrasts with the insistence of the old law upon a locality
defined by legally significant boundaries. I should say at this point that [
cannot agree with Sullivan J. in R (Cheltenham Builders Ltd) v South
Gloucestershire DC [2004] JPL 975 that the neighbourhood must be wholly
within a single locality. That would introduce the kind of technicality which
the amendment was clearly intended to abolish. The fact that the word
“locality” when it first appears in subsection (1A) must mean a single locality
is no reason why the context of “neighbourhood within a locality” should not

lead to the conclusion that it means “within a locality or localities”.’

34. Any chosen locality must be an area of recognised administrative significance and
certainty. Any chosen neighbourhood must be an area of pre-existing community
significance; see at para 79, Oxfordshire and Buckinghamshire Mental Health
Trust [2010] EWHC 530 (Admin.) where HHJ Waksman QC said of the term

neighbourhood:

“The factors to be considered when determining whether a purported
neighbourhood qualifies are undoubtedly looser and more varied than those
relating to locality ... but, as Sullivan J. stated in Cheltenham Builders ... a
neighbourhood must have a sufficient degree of (pre-existing) cohesiveness.
To qualify therefore, it must be capable of meaningful description in some

way. This is now emphasised by the fact that under the Commons Registration

Page 103



(England) Regulations 2008 the entry on the registry of a new TVG will

specify the locality or neighbourhood referred to in the application.”

35. St James Ward is self-evidently a recognised locality known to law. This is the
locality relied upon by the Applicant. The choice of such a large locality by the

Applicant has consequences for the ‘significant number’ test (see above).

36. The Council notes the case law on neighbourhood above (and relied upon within the
Objection of First Choice Homes Oldham dated 12" September 2018) but notes that
no neighbourhood is claimed or relied upon within the application. For the sake of
completeness the Council submits that smaller ‘neighbourhoods’ would still not lead

to the Application satisfying the ‘significant number’ test (see above).

“Indulged in lawful sports and pastimes”

37. “Lawful Sports and pastimes (LSP) " was held by Lord Hoffmann in R v
Oxfordshire County Council ex parte Sunningwell Parish Council [2000] 1 AC

335, 356 H, to be a “single composite class”, He continued:

“Class C is concerned with the creation of TVGs after 1965 and in my opinion

sports and pastimes includes those activities which would be so regarded in

our own day. I agree with Carnwath J, in R v Suffolk County Council, ex p.
Steed (1995) 70 P&CR 487, 503, when he said that dog walking and playing

with children were, in modern life, the kind of informal recreation which may

be the main function of a village green.”

38. The use of the Land by varied wildlife (bees, badgers, ducks, deer, bats or foxes) is
not within the meaning of LSP for the purposes of the Commons Act 2006.

39. The claimed use of the Land for ‘drone flying’ cannot have occurred upon the Land

for 20 years.

“As of Right”

Page 104



40. In Sunningwell, the House of Lords held that the test for a Class C green equated to

41.

that for prescription: user nec vi, nec clam, nec precario — not by force, not by stealth
and not by permisston. What matters is not the state of mind of the users, but the
outward appearance of their user, judged by the yardstick of the reasonable

landowner.

In Newnham v Willison (1987) 56 P&CR 8§, the court was considering a claim to a

prescriptive easement. The Court of Appeal approved passages from Megarry and

Wade's Law of Real Property in the following terms:

“In Megarry and Wade the following passage in my view presents a correct

summary of the position on the authorities. The heading is ‘User as of Right':

‘The claimant must show that he has used the right as if he were
entitled to it, otherwise there is no ground for presuming that he enjoys
it under a grant. From early times English authorities have followed the
definition of Roman law: the user which will support a prescriptive
claim must be user nec vi, nec clam, nec precario (without force,
without secrecy, without permission). The essence of this rule is that
the claimant must prove not only his own user but also circumstances
which show that the servient owner acquiesced in it as in an
established right. Since the necessary conditions are negative, it is
usually the servient owner who alleges that the user was either forcible,
secret or permissive; but the burden of proof on these matters

nevertheless rests on the claimant.’

“Then the authors deal with forcible user, saying that it extends not only to
user by violence, as where a claimant to a right of way breaks open a locked
gate, but also to user which is contentious or allowed only under protest and
there are references to Eaton v. Swansea Waterworks and Dalton v. Angus.

The text goes on:

‘If there is a state of “perpetual warfare™ between the parties there can

obviously be no user as of right; and if the servient owner chooses to

Page 105



resist not by physical but by legal force... the claimant’s user will not

help a claim by prescription.’

42. The Supreme Court Judgement given on 21 May 2014 in R (on the application of
Barkas) (Appellant) v North Yorkshire County Council and another (Respondents) is
the leading authority on whether use has been “as of right”, which satisfies the legal
criterion for registration, or “by right”, which does not. In the words of Lord

Neuberger:

“ 24...where the owner of the land is a local, or other public authority which
has lawfully allocated the land for public use (whether for a limited period or
an indefinite period), it is impossible to see how, at least in the absence of
unusual additional facts, it could be appropriate to infer that members of the
public have been using the land “as of right”, simply because the authority has
not objected to them using the land. It seems very unlikely that, in such a
case, the legislature could have intended that such land would become a
village green after the public had used it for twenty years. It would not merely
be understandable why the local authority had not objected to the public use:
it would be positively inconsistent with their allocation decision if they had
done so. The position is very different from that of a private owner, with no
legal duty and no statutory power to allocate land for public use, with no
ability to allocate land as a village green, and who would be expected to

protect his or her legal rights.”
43. Also at [46] he said this:

The field was, as I see it, ‘appropriated’, in the sense of allocated or
designated, as public recreational space, in that it had been acquired, and was
subsequently maintained, as recreation grounds with the consent of the
relevant Minister, in accordance with section 80(1) of the 1936 Act: public

recreation was the intended use of the Field from the inception.
44. At [65] Lord Carnwath also states:

‘Where the owner is a public authority, no adverse inference can sensibly be

drawn from its failure to ‘warn off” the users as trespassers, if it has validly

Page 106



and visibly committed the land for public recreation, under powers that have

nothing to do with the acquisition of village green rights’.

45. This was to be contrasted with Oxfordshire County Council v Oxford City Council

[2006] 2 AC 674 where, although the land was in public ownership, it had not been
laid out or identified in any way for public recreational use and indeed was largely
inaccessible ... (and where) .. It was held that the facts justified the inference that the

rights asserted were rights under the 1965 Act.

46. The question then, arising from the decision in Barkas, is whether land has been
lawfully allocated under statutory powers for public recreation? If it has then user will
not have been ‘as of right’ as the public will already have an entitlement to use the
land for recreation. Barkas accordingly makes it clear that the public use or
recreational use of land pursuant to a statutory power to provide recreation land would
be sufficient to entitle local inhabitants to use the land for that purpose so as to defeat

a claim to that use being ‘as of right’.
47. At [23] in Barkas Lord Neuberger said this:

Where land is held for that purpose, and members of the public then use the
land for that purpose, the obvious and natural conclusion is that they enjoy a
public right, or a publicly based licence, to do so. If that were not so, members
of the public using for recreation land held by the local authority for the
statutory purpose of public recreation would be trespassing on the land, which

cannot be correct.

48. The use of the Land by local inhabitants has not been without permission but rather
by licence from the Council as owner of the Land. The Land has been held by the
Council for the whole of the claimed period for recreational purposes stemming from
its powers to acquire land under the Housing Acts®. Further, the Council has laid out
the Land for use as Public Open Space under the 1995 Agreement with Lovell’s. The
laying out and matntenance of the Land as Public Open Space since 1995 is fatal to

the Applicant’s claim that the Land should be registered as a town or village green.

“For a period of at least 20 years”

* In Barkas the land was held under the Housing Act 1936.

Page 107



49. The evidence provided by the Applicant and supporters is very limited as to the period
of use. The petition is generalised and essentially a statement of support rather than
confirmation of 20 years user. Only five of the letters claim more than 20 years of use
and one of them (Miss Williamson) has moved away from home so that her use is,
presumably, no longer that of an inhabitant of the locality. Similarly, it is not clear
that the letter of J D Braddock is claiming any current use by inhabitants. The issue of
twenty years user is one that would have to be tested by examination of the evidence

in inquiry.

DOCUMENTS

50. Appended to these objections are all the documents concerning the land which have

been found in searches of the files held by the Council.

CONCLUSION

51. The Council submits that the application should fail for all the reasons set out in this

document.
52. Specifically:

i. the application has not demonstrated user by a ‘significant number’ of the

inhabitants of St James ward.

ii. the use of the Land has been under licence from the Council as Public Open

Space and not ‘as of right’.

iii. the Applicant has not demonstrated 20 years user of the Land

33. The Council reserves the right generally to refine, alter or amend these objections in

light of any further material or clarification from the Applicant; in the event that more

Page 108



relevant documents and evidence is discovered. It also reserves the right to submit

such material.

54. The Council reserves the right to produce such relevant witness statements and/or
statutory objections that is considered necessary to support its objections at any

inquiry.

Anthony Gill
KINGS CHAMBERS
MANCHESTER

20" September 2018

Page 109



The electronic official copy of the register follows this message.

Please note that this is the only official copy we will issue.

We will not issue a
paper official copy.

The exhibit referred to in the
Objections above on behalif of
Oldham Borough Council

and marked “Exhibit OMBC 1.

Page 110



HM Land Registry

Official copy Title number LA43936 Edition date 04.05.2012

Of l-e ister Of This official copy shows the entries on the register of title on
g 07 AUG 2018 at 15:53:07.
. | This date must be quoted as the "search from date" in any
t|t e official search application based on this copy.

The date at the beginning of an entry is the date on which
the entry was made in the register.

Issued on 07 Aug 2018.

Under .67 of the Land Registration Act 2002, this copy is
admissible in evidence to the same extent as the original.

This fitle is deait with by HM Land Registry, Fylde Office.

A: Property Register
This register describes the land and estate comprised in the title.

GREATER MANCHESTER : OLDHAM

1 {10.06.1964) The Freehold land shown edged with red on the plan of the
above Title filed at the Registry and being 56 to 66 {even numbers)
Sholver Fold and land lying to the West and South West of Sholver Lane.

2 The land tinted green on the title plan is not included in the
registration.
3 The land edged and numbered in green on the title plan has been removed

from this title and registered under the title number or numbers shown
in green on the said plan.

4 The Transfers of those parts edged and numbered in green on the title
plan which were made pursuant to Part V of the Housing Act 1985 took
effect with the benefit of and subject to the easements and other
rights prescribed by paragraph 2 of Schedule 6 of that Act.

5 (20.01.1997}) The title plan has been subdivided into two parts.
6 {07.05.1998) The title plan has been subdivided into three parts.
7 (04.05.2012) The land has the benefit of the rights reserved by but is

subject to the rights granted by the Transfer dated 7 February 2011
referred to in the Charges Register.

B: Proprietorship Register

This register specifies the class of title and identifies the owner. It contains
any entries that affect the right of disposal.

Title absolute

1 {10.06.19564) PROPRIETOR: OLDHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL of PO Box 33, Civic
Centre, West Street, Oldham OL1 1UL.

C: Charges Register
This register contains any charges and other matters that affect the land.
J yenarges apage 141

10f 9



Title number LA43936

i

The land tinted yellow on the title plan is subject to the following
rights reserved by a Conveyance dated 17 December 1936 made between (1)
Thomas Mellodew and Company Limited (Vendors) and (2) Edmund Spencer
(Purchaser) : -

"EXCEPT AND RESERVING nevertheless unto the vVendors:-

1. The right to pass and repass with or without animals carriages and
other vehicles over and along the roads and passages or portions of
roads and passages as are comprised in the property hereby conveyed and
assigned.

2. The full and free right of running of water and soil to and from any
other land and buildings of the Vendors through the gutters drains
sewers pipes and watercourses upon the land and premises hereby
conveyed and assigned and to enter upon the said premises for the
purpose of making any connections with or repairs to such gutters
drains sewers pipes and watercourses making reasonable compensation to
the Purchaser and his successors in title for any damage caused
thereby."

A Conveyance and Assignment of the land tinted pink on the title plan
dated B8 February 1960 made between (1) William Henry Spencer and Edmund
Spencer and (2) Thomas Platt contains restrictive covenants and
reserves rights.

-NOTE: Copy filed under OL5B99.

The land is subject to rights of drainage and ancillary rights of
entry.

The paths and passages are subject to rights of way.

(24.10.1995) An Agreement dated 6 June 1995 affecting the land edged
blue on the title plan and other land made between (1) Oldham Borough
Council and (2) Lovell Partnerships (Northern) Limited relates to
planning obligations pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 19%0.

The said Agreement also contains covenants.

-NOTE: Copy filed under GM216307.

{29.01.1996) A Licence Agreement dated 11 January 1996 affecting the
land edged yellow on the title plan and other land made between (1} The
Oldham Borough Council and (2) Barratt Homes Limited relates to
building development and planning obligations pursuant to Section 106
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1590.

-NOTE: Copy filed under GM619490.

{10.10.1996) The parts of the land affected thereby are subject to the
leases set out in the schedule of leases hereto.
The leases grant and reserve easements as therein mentioned.

{20.01.1958) The parts of the land affected thereby are subject to the
following rights granted by a Deed of Grant dated 5 January 1998 made
between (1) The Oldham Borough Council {(Grantor) and (2) Norweb PLC
{Grantee) : -

IN pursuance of the said agreement the Grantor hereby grants with full
title guarantee unto the Grantee FULL AND FREE RIGHT AND LIBERTY for
the Grantee and its successors in title and all persons authorised by
it to lay construct use inspect maintain repair alter relay renew and
remove or render unusable along and under the Easement Land such
underground electric lines as the Grantee may from time to time require
in connection with its undertaking and for this purpose to break open
the surface of and excavate in the Easement Land so far as this may be
necessary from time to time reinstating the same in accordance with the
covenants on that part of the Grantee hereinafter contained TO HOLD the
said rights and liberties unto the Grantee in fee simple as appurtenant
to its undertaking and electricity distribution system

2. THE Grantee hereby covenants with the Grantor as follows:-

(&) To exercise the rights and liberties hereby granted in accordance
with all regulations and rﬁg&itﬁgeiffzyhether statutory or otherwise

20f 9



Title number LA43936
C: Charges Register continued

for the time being in force affecting the same

(b} That as soon as reasonably possible following the initial laying of
the said underground electric lines the Grantee will back-fill the
cable trench PROVIDED however that the Grantee will not be responsible
for any further reinstatement of the Easement Land

{c} That if the Grantee carries out any excavations in the Easement
Land subsequent to the initial laying of the said underground electric
lines the Grantee will (unless otherwise agreed with the Grantor as a
future term of supply) make good at its own expense all damage caused
to the Easement Land or to the adjoining property of the Grantor in the
exercise of the rights and liberties hereby granted and the execution
of the works hereby authorised as soon as is reasonably practicable.®

The said Deed also contains the following covenants by the Grantor:-

"THE Grantor with intent to bind the Easement Land and (so far as the
game is affected by the stipulations and restrictions in this clause
contained}) the adjoining land of the Grantor into whosoever hands the
same may come and for the benefit and protection of the underground
electric lines and the undertaking and electricity distribution system
of the Grantee HEREBY COVENANTS with the Grantee that the Grantor and
those deriving title under the Grantor shall at all times hereafter
observe and perform the following stipulations and restrictions:-

(a) To keep the Easement Land forever hereafter open and unbuilt upon

(b} Not to alter the level of the Easement Land from that existing at
the date hereof

{c) That nothing shall be done or suffered to be done by the Grantor
its servants or agents upon the Easement Land or the said adjoining
property of the Grantor which may in any way interfere with or damage
the said underground electric lines

IN this Deed the expression "electric lines" shall have the meaning (in
the plural) assigned to the expression "electric line" by Section 64 of
the Electricity Act 1989 and shall be interpreted and construed
accordingly and shall also included all joint boxes and apparatus
ancillary to underground electric lines."

NOTE: The Easement Land referred to above is hatched blue on the title
plan so far as it affects the land in this title.

9 (07.05.1998) The parts of the land affected thereby are subject to the
following rights granted by a Deed of Grant dated 23 April 1998 made
between (1) The Oldham Borough Council {The Grantor) and {(2) Norweb PLC
(The Grantee):-

"The Grantor hereby grants with full title guarantee unto the Grantee
FULL AND FREE RIGHT AND LIBERTY for the Grantee and its succcessors in
title and all persons authorised by it to lay construct use inspect
maintain repair alter relay renew and remove or render unusable along
and under the Easement Land such underground electric lines as the
Grantee may from time to time require in connection with its
undertaking and for this purpose to break open the surface of and
excavate in the Easement land so far as this may be necessary from time
to time reinstating the same in accordance with the covenants on the
part of the Grantee hereinafter contained TO HOLD the said rights and
liberties unto the Grantee in fee simple as appurtenant to its
undertaking and electricity distribution system.

THE Grantee hereby covenants with the Grantor as follows:-

{a) To exercise the rights and liberties hereby granted in accordance
with all regulations and requirements whether statutory or otherwise
for the time being in force affecting the same

(b} That as soon as reasonably possible following the initial laying of
the said underground electric lines the Grantee will back-£fill the
cable trench PROVIDED however that the Grantee will not be responsible
for any further reinstatement ?5 the %fﬁf?ent Land

age

30f9



Title number LA43936
C: Charges Register continued

{c) That if the Grantee carries out any excavation in the Easement Land
subseguent to the initial laying of the said underground electric lines
the Grantee will ({unless otherwise agreed with the Grantor as a future
term of supply} make good at its own expense all damage caused to the
Easement Land or tc the adjoining property of the Grantor in the
exercise of the rights and liberties hereby granted and the execution
of the works hereby authorised as soon as is reasonably practicable."

IT IS HEREBY AGREED AND DECLARED by and between the parties hereto as
follows:

(a) in this clause the expression:
(1) "Develop" includes redevelop

(2) "Property" means all that freehold land comprised in title numbers
LAS8157 LA43936 GM216307 GME19490 LA115192 and OL&6770

(3) "Alternative Route(s})" means a route or routes within the Property
as near as possible to the Easement Land as shall be approved by the
Grantee as a suitable alternative for the Grantee's purpose

(b) If the Grantor shall desire to Develop the Property and it is
necessary for such development to include the Easement Land or any part
therecf and shall have obtained Planning Permission for such
development the Grantee will release to the Grantor such of the rights
and liberties hereby granted as require to be released subject to the
following terms and conditions:

4.1 The Grantor shall give to the Grantee not less than twelve month's
notice in writing of its desire to implement this clause

4.2 On or before the expiration of the said notice the Grantor shall
(subject to investigation and approval of title by the Grantee's
Solicitor) by deed with the concurrence of every incumbrancer (such
concurrence to be procured by and at the expense of the Grantor) and
without payment of any consideration by the Grantee grant in fee simple
easements to the Grantee in respect of alternative route(s) for the
laying of the underground electric lines such grant to be in the like
form and contain the like provisions and covenants (mutatis mutandis)
as are herein contained

4.3 Subject to all necesary labour and materials being available but
as soon as practicable after completion of the grant of easements in
respect of the alternative route(s) the Grantee shall {in the follawing
order of events):-

(i) complete the laying of the underground electric lines along the
alternative route(s) and the bringing into use thereof

(ii) remove so far as necessary the underground electric lines
installed pursuant to such of the rights and liberties hereby granted
as are required to be released or render dead such underground electric
lines

(iii) surrender such of the rights and liberties hereby granted as are
required to be released

PROVIDED THAT:

(a) if the Grantee or its contractors are prevented from complying with
sub-clause 4.3 by reason of outbreak of war or civil insurrection or
fire tempest frost inclement weather or other inevitable cause or
accident or strike or lock out of workmen or the failure of the Grantee
to obtain satisfactory supplies materials or labour or by reason of
accident to the works or force majeure or by reason of the Grantee
either having to redeploy the workforce assigned to carry out the works
in order to carry out emergency work or repairs to its electricity
plant and electric lines or by reason of any unavoidable cause for
which the Grantee is not responsible in each such case the Grantee
shall be allowed such extensions of time as are reasonable in the

circumstances Page 114
40f 9



Title number LA43936
C: Charges Register continued

{b) notwithstanding any provision of this sub-clause 4.3 the Grantee
shall not under any circumstances be liable to the Grantor for any
special indirect or consequential loss or damage arising under contract
or otherwise including negligence and breach of statutory duty The term
"consequential loss" shall include but is not limited to costs claims
damages or expenses calculated by reference to loss or reduction of
revenue or profit or loss of contracts {provided that nothing in this
sub-clause shall be construed as an attempt to exclude or limit the
liabilty of the Grantee in negligence for death of or injury to any
person)

4.4.1 The Grantor shall (to which effect the Grantor hereby covenants)
be liable for and pay to the Grantee the costs charges and expenses
incurred or sustained by the Grantee in or arising out of:

(i} the laying of the underground electric lines along the alternative
route (s}

(ii} the removal as aforesaid of the underground electric lines from
the land the subject of the rights and liberties hereby granted
required to be released as aforesaid

(iii) the preparation and completion of the documentation required in
respect of easements for the alternative route(s) and the surrender of
such of the rights and liberties hereby granted as are required to be
released as aforesaid including stamp duty and (if appropriate) all
Land Registry fees for noting thereof on the Register of the Title
relating thereto

4.4.2 The Grantor and the Grantee shall take into account betterment
and/or deferment of renewal in calculating the said costs charges and
expenses incurred or sustained by the Grantee referred to in clause
4.4.1. hereof in that the cost of diverting the underground electric
lines due to development only relates to the underground electric lines
installed pursuant to such of the rights and liberties hereby granted
or equivalent replacement underground electric lines and not the cost
of any additional or higher voltage underground electric lines which
the Grantee may wish to lay along the alternative route{s)

AND without prejudice to the foregoing if required by the Grantee so to
do shall as a condition precedent to the completion of such grant make
a payment to the Grantee of the estimated amount of such costs charges
and expenses and the Grantee will (as it hereby covenants so to do}
repay to the Grantor the difference between the estimated amount so
paid and the total amount (if smaller} of such costs charges and
expenses

4.5.1 That if the Grantor shall at any time during which this Deed
remains effective consider that the Grantee has ceased to make any
substantive use of the Easement land for the exercise of the rights and
liberties hereby granted for a continuous period of not less than one
year then:

{a) the Grantor may at any time thereafter serve written notice on the
Grantee reguesting the Grantee to provide reasonable evidence that in
the Grantee's reasonable opinion the Grantee does have a bona fide
present or future reguirement to use the Easement Land

(b) the Grantee shall within a reasonable period {(but in any event not
exceeding three months) of the receipt of the said written notice
supply to the Grantor such evidence as is mentioned in sub-clause (a)
above

4.5.2 In the event that the parties agree that the Grantee is unable to
provide satisfactory evidence as aforesaid the Grantee shall surrender
this Deed without any consideration and the Grantor shall {(a) accept
the surrender and (b} release the Grantee from its covenants and other
obligations under this Deed

4.5.3 Prior to any surrender of this Deed pursuant to this Clause 4 the

Grantee shall at its own expense ensure that the Electric Cables are
disconnected and made safe the ﬁxg@téelrlaglng good any damage caused to

50f 9



Title number LA43936
C: Charges Register continued

10

the Easement Land or the said adjeoining property of the Grantor to the
reasonable satisfaction of the Grantor

IN this Deed the expression "electric lines" shall have the meaning (in
the plural) assigned to the expression "electric line" by Section 64 of
the Electricity Act 1989 and shall be interpreted and construed
accordingly and shall also include all joint boxes and apparatus
ancillary to underground electric lines."

The said Deed also contains the following covenants by the Grantor.

"THE Grantor with intent to bind the Easement land and (so far as the
same is affected by the stipulations and restrictions in this clause
contained} the adjoining land of the Grantor into whosesoever hands the
same may come and for the benefit and protection of the underground
electric lines and the undertaking and electricity distribution system
of the Grantee HEREBY COVENANTS with the Grantee that the Grantor and
those deriving title under the Grantor shall at all times hereafter
observe and perform the following stipulations and restrictions:-

{a) To keep the Easement Land forever hereafter open and unbuilt upon

{b) Not to alter the level of the Easement Land from that existing at
the date hereof

{c) That nothing shall be done or suffered to be done by the Grantor
its servants or agent upon the Easement land or the said adjoining
property of the Grantor which may in any way interfere with or damage
the said underground electric lines."

NOTE: The Easement Land referred to has been shown hatched brown on the
title plan so far as it affects the land in this title.

(04.05.2012) A Transfer of the land edged and numbered MAN192489 in
green on the title plan and other land dated 7 February 2011 made
between (1) Oldham Borough Council and (2} First Choice Homes Oldham
Limited contains restrictive covenants by the vendor.

~NOTE: Copy filed under MAN149279.

Schedule of notices of leases

1

10.10.1996 Part of 11 Dalesman Drive 26.07.1996 GM732777
1 & 2 999 years from
1.7.1995
NOTE: The lease comprises also other land
18.12.1956 83 Hodge Clough Road 01.11.19%6 GM739426
3 999 years from
1.7.1995
NOTE: The lease comprises also other land
20.01.1997 2 Mellodew Drive 12.12.1996 GM741815
4 999 years from
1.7.1995
20.01.1997 1 Mellodew Drive 29.11.1996 GM741519
5 999 years from
1.7.19%85
NOTE: Lease comprises also other land
07.02.1997 4 Mellodew Drive 12.12.199s6 GM7431S0
3 999 vears from
1.7.1995
07.02.1997 50 Hodge Clough Road 19.12.1959s8 GM743172
999 years from
1.7.1995
10.02.1997 3 Mellodew Drive 11.12.1596 GM743312
8 999 years from
1.7.1995

NOTE: Lease comprises also |5tat.1§re 1fIi6

6of 9



Title number LA43936

Schedule of notices of leases continued

8

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

24.02.1997

9

26.

27.

11

27
12

11.

13

15
14

11
15

06
16

28.

24

03

03

.03

04

.04

.05.

.05,

.05,

.05.

.05.

.05.

07.

NOTE:

i1.

08.

NOTE :

12.

28

0B.

NOTE:

22.

09.

.1997

.1997

.1987

.1997

.1997

1997

1997

1297

1997

1597

1997

.1997

: The Lease

.1997

L1997

1997

The lease

1997

The lease

1997

The lease

1997

52 Heodge Clough Road

56 Hodge Clough Road

48 Hodge Clocugh Road

54 Hodge Clough Road

7 Mellodew Drive

10 Mellodew Drive

42 Hodge Clough Road

B Mellodew Drive

6 Mellodew Drive

5 Mellodew Drive

11 Mellodew Drive

12 Mellodew Drive

23 Mellodew Drive

comprises also other land

46 Hodge Clough Road

9 Mellodew Drive

16 Mellodew Drive

comprises also other land

21 Mellodew Drive

comprises also other land

25 Mellodew Drive

comprises also other land

30 Hodge Clougl'Pg;g% 117

19.12.199¢6
999 years from
1.7.1995

17.01.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

07.03.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

05.02.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

24.02.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

21.03.1997
989 years from
1.7.1885

14.03.1997
999 years from
1.7.1895

28.02.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

27.02.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

28.02.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

27.03.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

20.03.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

22.05.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

25.04.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

27.03.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

27.06.1997
999 years from
1.7.1985

30.05.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

27.05.1997
999 years from
1.7.1985

28.07.1997

GM744180

GM74632%

GM746414

GM746421

GM747499

GM747704

GM749131

GM749134

GM750635

GM750845

GM751037

GM751039

GM751677

GM752032

GM752278

GM755335

GM755216

GM756764

GM761117

7of 9



Title number LA43936

Schedule of notices of leases continued

27

29

30

al

3z

33

a4

a7

iB

39

40

41

42

29
NOTE: The lease

10.09.1997
27

NOTE: The lease

12.09.1997
26

NOTE: The lease

06.10.1887
30

NOTE: The lease
16.10.1997
31

22.10.1897

22.10.1997

NQTE: The lease

22.10.1997
33

29.10.1997
a5

NOTE: The lease

03.11.1997
37

NOTE: The lease

21.11.1997
36

NOTE: The lease

08.12.198%7
38

NOTE: The lease
06.01.1998

39

13.02.1998

40

NOTE: The lease
14.05.1998
41

0B.06.1998

09.06.1958

comprises also other land

14 Mellodew Drive

comprises also other land

15 Mellowdew Drive

comprises also other land

Part of 32 Hodge Clough
Road

comprises also other land

26 Hodge Clough Road

44 Hodge Clough Road

Part of 28 Hodge Clough
Road

comprises also other land

22 Hodge Clough Road

Part of 40 Hodge Clough
Road

comprises also other land

Part of 19 Mellowdew Drive

comprises also other land

Part of 5 Leywell Drive

comprises also other land

Part of 3 Leywell Drive

comprises also other land

24 Hodge Clough Road

Part of 7 Leywell Drive

comprises also other land

Part of 11 Leywell Drive
15 Leywell Drive

Part of 9 Leywell Drive

Page 118

999 years from
1.7.1995

27.06.1997
999 years from
1.7.19395

27.06.1987
599 years from
1.7.199%

15.08.1597
999 years from
1.7.1895

29.08.1997
999 years from
1.7.1985

07.03.1997
999 years from
1,7.1995

29.08.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

26.09.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

30.05.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

03.11.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995%

24.10.199%87
999 years from
1.7.1995

24.10.1997
999 years from
1.7.1855

14.11.1897
999 years from
1.7.1995

09.01.1998
999 years from
1.7.1995

27.03.1998
999 years from
1.7.1995

23.04.1958
999 years from
1.7.1995

24.04.19%58
999 years from
1.7.19585

GM755799%

GM755615

GM765736

GM768B486

GM768871

GM768878

GM768BB3

GM769303

GM769544

GM771058

GM770802

GM774742

GM778841

GM784507

GM786221

GM786303

8of 9



Title number LA43936

Schedule of notices of leases continued

NOTE: The lease comprises also other land

43

44

=
L

46

48

15.06
14

NOTE:

25.06
45

NOTE:

16.07.

47

NOTE:

14.07.

46

NOTE:

24.07.

48

09.11.

49

HOTE:

.1998

The lease

.1998

The lease

1998

The lease

1998

The lease

15858

2011

The lease

End of register

Part of 17 Leywell Drive

comprises also other land

Part of 30 Leywell Drive

comprises also other land

17 Mellodew Drive

comprises also other land

19 Leywell Drive

comprises also other land

21 Leywell Drive

Land lying to the south of
Cop Road

comprises also other land.

Page 119

12.05.1958
999 years from
1.7.1995

29.05.1598
999 years from
1.7.1975

26.06.1998
999 years from
1.7.1995

26.06.1998
595 years from
1.7.1998S

24.04.1998
999 years
fromm 1.7.1995

30.09.2011

250 years from
and including
30.9.2011

GM786662

GM787374

GM788912

GM788719

GM789498

MAN18408

4

Sof 9



These are the notes referred to on the following official copy

The electronic official copy of the title plan follows this message.
Please note that this is the only official copy we will issue. We will not issue a paper official copy.

This official copy was delivered electronically and when printed will not be to scale. You can obtain a paper
official copy by ordering one from HM Land Registry.

This official copy is issued on 07 August 2018 shows the state of this title plan on 07 August 2018 at 15:53:08.
It is admissible in evidence to the same extent as the eoriginat (s.67 Land Registration Act 2002). This title plan
shows the general position, not the exact line, of the boundaries. It may be subject to distortions in scale.
Measurements scaled from this plan may not match measurements between the same points on the ground.
This title is dealt with by the HM Land Registry, Fylde Office .

Crown copyright. Produced by HM Land Registry. Reproduction in whole or in part is prohibited without the
prior written permission of Ordnance Survey. Licence Number 100026316.

Page 120



ma. 25 H.M. LAND REGISTRY 5!

1149

i i 450 g e ares wioe)
Filed Plan of Title No. A 24 936 e

) - pe S = tfl..l.h.MM!.rx...
& - Sholver Fold .r,um.“..f .
F 2
"R SHOLVER _
.s\pﬁ~ I-wnnﬁnwaﬁwwﬁmun&nnw.m&w.ﬂ .. :

T v

-

Scale /2500 %_mz mn .”_ 5_“_ e} S w }

plan, and is shown b b i B2

MOMSM"!;ZSIEN at a'/larger scale and re ,
3. ¢t 30 9407 Crowe: Copyright Resecysd . edgod with tod m

Bznlio} 334358 Wi18500 Dirhy 1183 36M [1xom) TACo. GI3T, thereasn,

e B e 1 R \
i1, THE LARD TINT. . GREe@ HEREON IS
e ..ﬂ.zaf._zorcom.s:z i S GISTRATION,
oy e SV LS .
| T L |
." .._. o "
J S e ZPLANIN 3 pARTS _

29

ﬁ.. Lt
- XT1E Y]

./m.

o

LE=
- L
L}
e

e

fficial copy is incomplete without the preceding notes page.

This o



TErET
" “ ﬂ. .- |.|. ol b L - -‘
" . V__- i .J... ... ; - m“— .“m b |
\ 3 : a
AW T Rom
T I P e Rt s N
-~ - = _ | | | ..
1 .\\ a_ _...... /uua. |||i.|mul.|||“ T _h m __ ; __ S i ." m 4—.,
g d { Aiy 'y e b ] i i - i ._.Il A
& ] LEL7) ] ] [kt “ . . ] |
| = Y Fiak i | i 18 i s g v
< [ FEREY HH ' ..m.nLJ - | ..n.
< ) i i sl s : PR - | |
e} 5l JiE 1 : i “ ...
o~ y F ’ if H i 1o : | :
N i I 1 13 ! ! - | |
— - H A i ! ] | “_
~ = AL b H r oF . |
- = i 1 ) el “ : |
N .. | | | L s i
o - s ot i [ i o 4¢:nrf
2 3 : t et e |
g | - .. L | P i At W e =
E N : ~ “
?u 1
[]
C] |
e %
L%
b Pal B _.._,.(_ ....... )
: e amm :
“ N Canatable Mal ...—||\|I um
r 4( -
3 a st
r-l m\ [P
; 3 ;
o i ,» | -
T e o it
— = . . m” ".
% I\ ]
. H "R 1
>— } e — A
=]
] -—/ \ “ .
2 Vb 1) |
— 3 i . | |
a : _ao
| ! m 3
= " g
' ™, ".—M
A v - “ llllll “ -.— lllll e
5 ; : il o IR Sr T o
= —_—
2 I
o m 1
[o]
[
Lid « =
<
_ H =
o
w
—
) -
i /
= &
o )
ow ﬂ o_v/\ nh
) = =
> HE o
= w = A
w x - o '
w ) = & :
. _— “ j
ol gl {]1] o~
. A B .
= = —
— H | ] T P
O o = — M
o . y4
| H
| 5
]
i Am
H <
\s .-
e
e ooy sty | |
- —— & B - . iy w".lah.l :

A i B e,

This official copy is incomplete without the preceding notes page.



A
\_/ B
Sl
N H
“ £
- M
o H
w0 &
(= ] ®
N
il =
p
3 N
w
2 =t
lell | 3
o=l | ~
.
L BT
@
(%]
&
=
«C
I
[a]
-
Q

1

[

|

;

i

|
i 2

J—
—

e e a8

Illlll‘li.-lllln_l T i A

i g e [
o e s H — L]
La

Cansts

] -
Lammammm == sl Wt

S09407

LAND REGISTRY

H.M.

COUNTY GREATER MANCHESTER

ORDNANCE SURVEY
PLAN REFERENCE

i
| B |
| el g o Py
T mw;_mr a0 ﬂ E B .
. |l||\. A\ e shoiviminainorin . nunnu..-lcnnolununnluuu..uunuuunnnn
fr,..uu.-....nn!--\{ (Hlu---l!.nmgm e
,..--....n..:x-\li.:-----H.I.Hu...u--:t..:l-- v.\lu
N :
; o Anam
e, m_". ."._. "".m < “f
il g :
ViR (KD R sRlipes B
Sl un _,m,,nuu.,. s uN. o
..m : HED _mn”f..wb.l\n. S,
“_“_ "“ m". m:_a\\.u .Wa@mmuhPJ \ A.
s HE {
[ H :
,.; ey .
P i .,

This cofficial copy is incomplete without the preceding notes page.



e

T — e e el —— ——

Removals Leasas from Title

Tille No.

Date

er1327 oo Se

Lease
No. Ref
l'uzl i

Remarks

Tile No. | Date |na%| Remarks

Title No.

Data

]

Remarks

Criv

En7d 5 1-97] 37 NS,

G.pe=c wne

Cies aldes gy WOC] )

i)
BEIVE (FEAT or)
(LEASE wejpes Mbo|omiiie

G 130426,

wauoL | 3

13 WohCes,

-
__l_.:dhse a2

Lbers A

e el casl

uwb)
&M770802 |18 -1-97] 38

X Leysie
(1Enss IvaybEs Bide

e R |

Deive, .

or)
ke LAVDY
GTI4L 6 148 | 3R

74155
E:\'ﬂ—ls;ﬂn

201977

i
=L o

LA oG
728841 13-2-18] b0

[l ]
74350

71-2.57

THDIT2

7.2.97

Lces uso

lomaes, crinih )

r;u:ut‘.\_m
(iease Ivcqides ALke ofifse Lawb)

OIvE .

o} YA ATANITN

T LEvIEE
ron 184991 s ax| g Y Lo

===

743312

o.297

f
(o, e
o744 1 B0

0

5 74 6325

2357 1O

=, o6

=Yg TRy —oY]
R vE

e 136203
bes, Cann) A TRLLS
[24.2.9 AP AP G B3y ps e 48

TN L)

3.673

DR
18622 47 1‘%
43 19 DeIve

Q.098

15.698] A4 |! NJIINE

45 Jevocu St

4

HALIDES,

SO

(Lepse whioss ALSS apen Lrrn)
[

gL
o a8l 4o [ReT =

T 4 379.3 57 |

G 42}

27.367)

(S =

GaAIATAAR

wa.a

Gm 158720
i) o
CACH ALyl 2O AD)

| (Leasg yweedoeg ALde otulee LAn o)

212 02 .98 61 .':2“."!“;‘, .

1

o
(Lemse wcoolonr ausd STwpp Lo

AN T 04

15.4 97

O AMRLLELIbEr WY

T4 1S

&:S.977

Mm7491 34

C.s &7

M 1SOL-DS

22 .50

#0778 498124 -7
“‘ﬁm&:—u&@m

e | O Qv

11248, 4A | Yae

e HELLOIOE]

MYISOC545

2%.-557

S reLLOSoED
NG,

MIISIoET1
ErmISIORR

305 S

Ll AELLODOE D
AN,

B SN2

S iLTT)

L.iza 121

L errmr o nigd
CATISAORD

eS| 22

ADES QUSD o

ém-us 2278

o d ST SR

CLISS 335

afhranl| 24

1o MNEWDDEW K]

(LEP\S'E A nb_i

MERTS

CaA1SS 2o

1571115

o Sl WE)
20 meastew Bud

teAsT nCLies L‘Eo airazz. LAD) |

| GAMISSELS

3391 | Ao

15 MEuobem ﬂlﬂ

(\mm

laes ALVte e M\

CIATSS TG

Be| I

{Lengm el

e, A Sl Orveiy

G TS G Tl

12-89 | 28

25

a.obow
e

(Lmﬁ- AnCal

RS AL RO Mw&

Coi T

vaS (A28

o ok,

(Lepec 1

CMZE5736

25.9-97| 30

TG, Radly

Mﬂ%ﬁqﬁ”

ccopkl_geads **)

(1eass weddis aiso

OTHEL

Lavh)

EM788 488

{&-103A3)

26 Hob&l

FM788857 1

10132

g

FMI6L883

FERNIR - B &

3, [

11768878

221097 3¢

SAN _EoRD
aF HWE?‘M

ZioVel eoAd )

(1545€ weil)

PES Alsp o7

Ee LD

F0767303

§et0.92| 35

G0 ook C
LD (LILT o8

{terse 1

NEL

oTHEL uwb)

77058

ar-)-121 38

5‘ TEyEii DEIVE
PrcY o)

(1ease wa

{uu'.i fL§o

re LAvY)

|

XS0 Omd 476010889, CZT 4 5,84, 5800 43184

Page 124

This official copy is incomplete without the preceding notes page.

e



B S o i LR o T O = =y
"

- —p—

.'-ﬂl-lll-u..l-i.".-l-r}--_:mmh-"- i S

P T T Rt o

-

g i

L T i T

o4 el B

[ ey

o

——

I : E 187 LEGAL STAFF neaumsmeurs '
grances requirsd on naw title hi 3 for and 's falling party within: :
(@) TE Tnbe D - plﬁﬂ"_’-ﬁ fE-mr"'rbuc.sL ]
et neced , Fl L] - Pm @(::.—'mm_. J
<
&
l_(b)SolarasaHectodby: L, . 3 s : 1
Se. LB AN — HTEP 1

No references required (at this stage for): = rif ‘ v ( - > L j o ‘}

Additional notes required on Officiat Searches, Form 94:

PR L L

k-

Additional notes required on Canificates in Form 102:

1250 acals o

&ADGQPM*‘Q»;WOITF-P ar |

] Prowne Proaitrcs
e o

Umopwuj / 3|47

Preched 2dged yehlpw

Slgned et HED. Date...oicrranicrms -
Sent to Fleld {or see MB 640) _
Title Na. Date | Plot Nos. Tile No. Date | Plot Nos. Title No. Date | Plot Nos. Titla No. Date | PlotNos. | |
M74ISIS jp.aq?l1 - 13
pel203 {inc)
DFL Mapping instructions I LESSORS TITLE LESSEES TITLE
MB64B procedure wili [not] apply. Floof Howr  Scomm:

ke 15000 1004y

Standard Form of Leasa Refers To :-

This official copy is incomplate without the preceding notes page

loass torm clause ... ... PAQE ... demiseclause.. ..o PaQe.. s
ben. onse. clausa._ ... page......  sub, saseciause.. . ... PEQG—T o
Deiste 10 record St puTbar
Belemncapeed 2] ;savnl;_q__uujuultwu1 2|22 3 L E » F) 43 49! o 81
5 1 | T 74 PN
itajrigdne _I_l:" 1100200121 ] 1231 2051 21291 281 1 TN 1 13081 i) 1 TIR1A041 14 145t a1 471 181t A\l ol 62 4 1 T cl
."ﬁ!‘" b Ll Lo g d D 28 [1eg{1ooR 91 1] 1pahad. o7 ios] 1 o 1R12 g1 1
1 3 3 1
-




The electronic official copy of the register follows this message.

Please note that this is the only official copy we will issue. We will not issue a
paper official copy.

ibi in the
The exhibit referred to in t
Objections above on bel'.n|alf of
Oidham Borough Cpuncn
and marked “Exhibit OMBC

Page 126



HM Land Reqistry

OFF iCiaI copg Title number LA88157 Edition date 03.05.2011

OI: l-e ister Of This official copy shows the entries on the register of title on
g 07 AUG 2018 at 15:52:05.
: | This date must be quoted as the "search from date" in any
tlt e official search application based on this copy.

The date at the beginning of an entry is the date on which
the entry was made in the register.

Issued on 07 Aug 2018.

Under s.67 of the Land Registration Act 2002, this copy is
admissible in evidence to the same extent as the original.

This title is dealt with by HM Land Registry, Fylde Office.

A: Property Register
This register describes the land and estate comprised in the title.

GREATER MANCHESTER : OLDHAM

1 {11.07.1966) The Freehold land shown edged with red on the plan of the
above Title filed at the Registry and being Bent Gate Farm, Sholver
Lane, 0Oldham.

2 The mines and minerals are excepted.

3 The land edged and numbered in green on the title plan has been removed
from this title and registered under the title number or numbers shown
in green on the said plan.

4 The transfers of those parts edged and numbered in green on the title
plan which were made pursuant to Part V of the Housing Act 1885 took
effect with the benefit of and subject to the easements and other
rights prescribed by paragraph 2 of Schedule 6 of that Act.

s (03.05.2011) A new title plan based on the latest revision of the
Ordnance Survey Map has been prepared.

6 (04.05.2012) The land has the benefit of the rights reserved by but is

subject to the rights granted by the Transfer dated 7 February 2011
referred to in the Charges Register.

B: Proprietorship Register

This register specifies the class of title and identifies the owner. It contains
any entries that affect the right of disposal.

Title absolute

1 PROPRIETCR: CLDHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL of PO Box 33, Civic Centre, West
Street, Oldham OLl1 1iUL.

C: Charges Register

This register contains any charges and other matters that affect the land.

1 The land is subject to rights of drainage rights in respect of water,

Page 127
10f9



Title number LA88157
C: Charges Register continued

soil, gas and electricity supply services and ancillary rights of

entry.
2 The paths and passages are subject to rights of way.
3 (15.11.1993) A Building Agreement and Licence dated 5 January 1993 made

between (1) The Oldham Borough Council (2) John Maunders Group PLC
relates to the building and development of the land in this title and
other land.

-NOTE: Copy filed under GM216307.

4 (24.10.1995}) An Agreement dated & June 1995 affecting the land tinted
blue on the title plan and other land made between (1) Oldham Borough
Council and (2) Lovell Partnerships (Northern) Limited relates to
planning obligations pursuant te Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1890.

The said Agreement also contains covenants.

-NOTE: Copy filed under GM216307.

g {29.01.1996) A Licence Agreement dated 11 January 1996 affecting the
land tinted pink and yellow on the title plan and other land made
between {1) The Qldham Borough Council and (2) Barratt Homes Limited
relates to building development and planning obligations pursuant to
Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

-NOTE: Copy filed under GM619490.

6 (06.06.1997}) The parts of the land affected thereby are subject to the
leases set out in the schedule of leases hereto.
The leases grant and reserve easements as therein mentioned.

7 (20.01.1998) The parts of the land affected thereby are subject to the
following rights granted by a Deed of Grant dated 5 January 1998 made
between (1)} The Oldham Borough Council {(Grantor) and (2} Norweb Ple
(Grantee} : -

"IN pursuance of the said agreement the Grantor hereby grants will full
title guarantee unto the Grantee FULL AND FREE RIGHT AND LIBERTY for
the Grantee and its successors in title and all persons authorised by
it to lay construct use inspect maintain repair alter relay renew and
remove or render unusable along and under the Easement Land such
underground electric lines as the Grantee may from time to time reguire
in connection with its undertaking and for this purpose to break open
the surface of and excavate in the Easement Land so far as this may be
necessary from time to time reinstating the same in accordance with the
covenants on the part of the Grantee hereinafter contained TO HOLD the
gaid rights and liberties unto the Grantee in fee simple as appurtenant
to its undertaking and electricity distribution system

2. THE Grantee hereby covenants with the Grantor as follows:-

(a) To exercise the rights and liberties hereby granted in accordance
with all regulations and reguirements whether statutory or otherwise
for the time being in force affect the sme

{b) That as soon as reascnably possible following the initial laying of
the said underground electric lines the Grantee will back-£ill the
cable trench PROVIDED however that the Grantee will not be responsible
for any further reinstatement of the Easement Land

{c) That if the Grantee carries out any excavations in the Easement
Land subsequent to the initial laying of the said underground electric
lines the Grantee will (unless otherwise agreed with the Grantor as a
future term of supply) make good at its own expense all damage caused
to the Easement Land or to the adjoining property of the Grantor in the
exercise of the rights and liberties hereby granted and the execution
of the works hereby authorised as soon as is reasonably practicable.”

The said Deed also contains the following covenants by the Grantor:-

"THE Grantor with intent to_bind ti? gfsemant Land and (soc far as the
age 12
20f 9



Title number LA88157
C. Charges Register continued

same is affected by the stipulations and restrictions in this clause
contained) the adjoining land of the Grantor into whosoever hands the
same may come and for the benefit and protection of the underground
electric lines and the undertaking and electricity distribution system
of the Grantee HEREBY COVENANTS with the Grantee that the Grantor and
those deriving title under the Grantor shall at all times hereafter
observe and perform the following stipulations and restrictions:-

{a) To keep the Easement Land forever hereafter open and unbuilt upon

{b) Not to alter the level of the Easement Land from that existing at
the date hereof

(¢) That nothing shall be done or suffered toc be done by the Grantor
its servants or agents upon the Easement land or the said adjoining
property of the Grantor which may in any way interfere with or damage
the said underground electric lines.

IN this Deed the expression "electric lines" shall have the meaning ({in
the plural} assigned to the expression "electric line" by Section 64 of
the Electricity Act 1989 and shall be interpreted and construed
accordingly and shall also include all joint boxes and apparatus
ancillary to underground electric lines."

NOTE: The Easement Land referred to above is tinted yellow on the title
plan so far as it affects the land in this title.

B (07.05.1998) The parts of the land affected thereby are subject to the
following rights granted by a Deed of Grant dated 23 April 1998 made
between (1) The Oldham Borough Council (The Grantor) and (2) Norweb PLC
{(The Grantee):-

"The Grantor hereby grants with full title guarantee unto the Grantee
FULL AND FREE RIGHT AND LIBERTY for the Grantee and its succcessors in
title and all persons authorised by it to lay construct use inspect
maintain repair alter relay renew and remove or render unusable along
and under the Easement Land such underground electric lines as the
Grantee may from time to time require in connection with its
undertaking and for this purpose to break open the surface of and
excavate in the Easement land so far as this may be necessary from time
to time reinstating the same in accordance with the covenants on the
part of the Grantee hereinafter contained TO HOLD the said rights and
liberties unto the Grantee in fee simple as appurtenant to its
undertaking and electricity distribution system.

THE Grantee hereby covenants with the Grantor as follows:-

{a) To exercise the rights and liberties hereby granted in accordance
with all regulations and reguirements whether statutory or otherwise
for the time being in force affecting the same

{b) That as soon as reasonably possible following the initial laying of
the said underground electric lines the Grantee will back-£fill the
cable trench PROVIDED however that the Grantee will not be responsible
for any further reinstatement of the Easement Land

{c) That if the Grantee carries out any excavation in the Easement Land
subseguent to the initial laying of the said underground electric lines
the Grantee will (unless otherwise agreed with the Grantor as a future
term of supply) make good at its own expense all damage caused to the
Easement Land or to the adjeining property of the Grantor in the
exercise of the rights and liberties hereby granted and the execution
of the works hereby authorised as soon as is reasonably practicable."

IT IS HEREBY AGREED AND DECLARED by and between the parties hereto as
follows:

(a) in this clause the expression:
{1) "Develop" includes redevelop

{2) "Property" means all that freehold land comprised in title numbers
LA88157 LA43936 GM216307 GM612490 LA115182 and OL6770

Page 129
30f9



Title number LA88157
C: Charges Register continued

(3) "Alternative Route(s)" means a route or routes within the Property
as near as possible to the Easement Land as shall be approved by the
Grantee as a suitable alternative for the Grantee's purpose

(b} If the Grantor shall desire to Develop the Property and it is
necessary for such development to include the Easement Land or any part
thereof and shall have obtained Planning Permission for such
development the Grantee will release to the Grantor such of the rights
and liberties hereby granted as require to be released subject to the
following terms and conditions:

4.1 The Grantor shall give to the Grantee not less than twelve month's
notice in writing of its desire to implement this clause

4.2 On or before the expiration of the said notice the Grantor shall
{subject to investigation and approval of title by the Grantee's
Solicitor) by deed with the concurrence of every incumbrancer (such
concurrence to be procured by and at the expense of the Grantor] and
without payment of any consideration by the Grantee grant in fee simple
easements to the Grantee in respect of alternative route(s} for the
laying of the underground electric lines such grant to be in the like
form and contain the like provisions and covenants (mutatis mutandis)
as are herein contained

4.3 Subject to all necesary labour and materials being available but
as soon as practicable after completion of the grant of easements in
respect of the alternative route{s) the Grantee shall (in the following
order of events):-

(i) complete the laying of the underground electric lines along the
alternative route(s) and the bringing into use thereof

(ii) remove so far as necessary the underground electric lines
installed pursuant to such of the rights and liberties hereby granted
as are required to be released or render dead such underground electric
lines

(iii} surrender such of the rights and liberties hereby granted as are
required to be released

PROVIDED THAT:

(a) if the Grantee or its contractors are prevented from complying with
sub-clause 4.3 by reason of outbreak of war or civil insurrection or
fire tempest frost inclement weather or other inevitable cause or
accident or strike or lock out of workmen or the failure of the Grantee
to obtain satisfactory supplies materials or labour or by reason of
accident to the works or force majeure or by reason of the Grantee
either having to redeploy the workforce assigned to carry out the works
in order to carry out emergency work or repairs to its electricity
plant and electric lines or by reason of any unavoidable cause for
which the Grantee is not responsible in each such case the Grantee
shall be allowed such extensions of time as are reasonable in the
circumstances

(b} notwithstanding any provision of this sub-clause 4.3 the Grantee
shall not under any circumstances be liable to the Grantor for any
special indirect or consequential loss or damage arising under contract
or otherwise including negligence and breach of statutory duty The term
"conseguential loss" shall include but is not limited to costs claims
damages or expenses calculated by reference to loss or reduction of
revenue or profit or loss of contracts (provided that nothing in this
sub-clause shall be construed as an attempt to exclude or limit the
liabilty of the Grantee in negligence for death of or injury to any
person)

4.4.1 The Grantor shall {to which effect the Grantor hereby covenants)
be liable for and pay to the Grantee the costs charges and expenses
incurred or sustained by the Grantee in or arising out of:

(i} the laying of the underground electric lines along the alternative

route(s) Page 130

40f 9



Title number LA88157
C: Charges Register continued

(ii) the removal as aforesaid of the underground electric lines from
the land the subject of the rights and liberties hereby granted
required to be released as aforesaid

(iii) the preparation and completion of the documentation regquired in
respect of easements for the alternative route(s) and the surrender of
such of the rights and liberties hereby granted as are required to be
released as aforesaid including stamp duty and (if appropriate} all
Land Registry fees for noting thereof on the Register of the Title
relating thereto

4.4.2 The Grantor and the Grantee shall take into account betterment
and/or deferment of renewal in calculating the said costs charges and
expenses incurred or sustained by the Grantee referred to in clause
4.4.1. hereof in that the cost of diverting the underground electric
lines due to development only relates to the underground electric lines
installed pursuant to such of the rights and liberties hereby granted
or eguivalent replacement underground electric lines and not the cost
of any additicnal or higher voltage underground electric lines which
the Grantee may wish to lay along the alternative route(s)

AND without prejudice to the foregoing if required by the Grantee so to
do shall as a condition precedent to the completion of such grant make
a payment to the Grantee of the estimated amount of such costs charges
and expenses and the Grantee will (as it hereby covenants so to do)
repay to the Grantor the difference between the estimated amount so
paid and the total amount (if smaller) of such costs charges and
expenses

4.5.1 That if the Grantor shall at any time during which this Deed
remains effective consider that the Grantee has ceased to make any
substantive use of the Easement land for the exercise of the rights and
liberties hereby granted for a continuous period of not less than one
year then:

{a) the Grgntor may at any time thereafter serve written notice on the
Grantee requesting the Grantee to provide reascnable evidence that in
the Grantee's reasonable opinion the Grantee does have a bona fide
present or future reguirement to use the Easement Land

(b} the Grantee shall within a reasonable period (but in any event not
exceeding three months} of the receipt of the said written notice
supply to the Grantor such evidence as is mentioned in sub-clause (a}
above

4.5.2 In the event that the parties agree that the Grantee is unable to
provide satisfactory evidence as aforesaid the Grantee shall surrender
this Deed without any consideration and the Grantor shall (a) accept
the surrender and (b} release the Grantee from its covenants and other
obligations under this Deed

4.5.3 Prior to any surrender of this Deed pursuant to this Clause 4 the
Grantee shall at its own expense ensure that the Electric Cables are
disconnected and made safe the Grantee making good any damage caused to
the Easement Land or the said adjoining property of the Grantor to the
reasonable satisfaction of the Grantor

IN this Deed the expression "electric lines" shall have the meaning (in
the plural) assigned to the expression "electric line" by Section 64 of
the Electricity Act 1989 and shall be interpreted and construed
accordingly and shall also include all joint boxes and apparatus
ancillary to underground electric lines."

The said Deed also contains the following covenants by the Grantor.

"THE Grantor with intent to bind the Easement land and (so far as the
same is affected by the stipulations and restrictions in this clause
contained) the adjoining land of the Grantor into whosesoever hands the
same may come and for the benefit and protection of the underground
electric lines and the undertaking and electricity distribution system
of the Grantee HEREBY COVENANTS with the Grantee that the Grantor and
those deriving title under the Grantor shall at all times hereafter

Page 131

50f9



Title number LA88157

C: Charges Register continued

observe and perform the following stipulations and restrictions:-

{a) To keep the Easement Land forever hereafter open and unbuilt upon

{b) Not to alter the level of the Easement Land from that existing at

the date hereof

{c} That nothing shall be done or suffered to be done by the Grantor
its servants or agent upon the Easement land or the said adjoining

property of the Grantor which may in any way interfere with or damage
the said underground electric linesg."

NOTE: The Easement Land referred toc has been shown hatched brown on the
title plan so far as it affects the land in this title.

{(04.05.2012) A Transfer which included the land edged and numbered

MAN192482 in green on the title plan and other land dated 7 February
2011 made between (1) Oldham Borough Council and (2} First Choice Homes
Oldham Limited contains restrictive covenants by the vendor.

~NOTE: Copy filed under MAN149279.

Schedule of notices of leases

1

06.06.1997
edged and
numbered 2 in
blue

NOTE: The Lease

10.07.1997
edged and
numbered 3 in
blue

25.07.15957
edged and
numbered B8 in
blue

NOTE: The lease

28.07.1997
edged and
numbered 4 and
5 in blue

28.07.1997
edged and
numbered 6 in
blue

NOTE: The lease

30.07.1997
edged and
numbered 7 in
blue

31.07.1997
edged and
numbered 9 in
blue

NOTE: The lease

01.08.1997
edged and
numbered 10 in
blue

NOTE: The lease

01.08.1997
edged and
numbered 11 in
blue

part of 23 Mellodew Drive

comprises also other land

22 Mellodew Drive

part of 21 Mellodew Drive

comprises also other land

20 Mellodew Drive and
parking space

part of 16 Mellodew Drive

comprises also other land

18 Mellodew Drive

part of 15 Mellodew Drive

comprises also other land

part of 14 Mellodew Drive

comprises alsc other land

36 Hodge Clough Road

Page 132

22.05.1987
999 years from
1.7.19895

30.05.1987
999 years from
1.7.1995

30.05.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

10.06.1957
989 years from
1.7.1595

27.06.1957
999 years from
1.7.1995

27.06.1597
999 years from
1.7.1995

27.06.1997
999 years from
1.7.18985

27.06.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

27.06.1997
999 years from
1.7.1885

GM751677

GM754002

GM755216

GM755313

GM755335

GM755485

GM755615

GM755789

GM7558B00

6of 9



Title number LA88157

Schedule of notices of leases continued

i0

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

15.09.1997
edged and
numbered 12 in
blue

NOTE: The lease

22.09.1997
edged and
numbered 13 in
blue

NOTE: The lease

25.09.1997
edged and
numbered 14 in
blue

25.09.1997
edged and
numbered 15

and 16 in blue
NOTE: The lease

22.10.1997
edged and
numbered 17 in
blue

NOTE: The lease

29.10.1987
edged and
numbered 18 in
blue

NOTE: The lease

11.11.1997
edged and
numbered 19 in
blue

18.11.1997
edged and
numbered 23 in
blue

NOTE: The lease

21.11.1997
edged and
numbered 20

and 21 in blue
NOTE: The lease

01.12.1997
edged and
numbered 22 in
blue

NOTE: The lease

10.12.1997
edged and
numbered 24 in
blue

06.01.1998
edged and
numbered 25 in
blue

16.01.1998
edged and
numbered 26 in
blue

20.01.1998
edged and
numbered 27

part of 25 Mellowdew Drive

comprises also other land

part of 30 Hodge Clough
Road

comprises also other land

34 Hodae Clough Road

part of 32 Hodge Clough
Road

comprises also other land

part of 28 Hodge Clough
Road

comprises also other land

part of 40 Hodge Clough
Road

comprises also other land

38 Hodge Clough Road

part of 3 Leywell Drive

comprises also other land

part of 5 Leywell Drive

comprises also other land

part of 19 Mellowdew Drive

comprises also other land

4 Leywell Drive

2 Leywell Drive

1 Leywell Drive

6 Leywell Drive

Page 133

27.05.19%87
999 years from
1.7.19895

28.07.198%7
999 years from
1.7.1995

25.07.1997
599 years from
1.7.1995

15.08.19%97
999 years from
1.7.19985

25.08.1997
599 years from
1.7.1995

30.05.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

26.06.,1997
999 vyears from
1.7.1995

24.10.1997
999 years from
1.7.1995

24.10.1557
999 vyears from
1.7.1995

29.08.1997
999 years from
1.7.1985

21.11.1987
999 years from
1.7.1995

21.11.1597
999 years from
1.7.19%5

20.11.1997
999 years from
1.7.1885

20.01.1998
999 years from
1.7.1985

GM756764

GM761117

GM765712

GM765736

GM768878

GM769303

GM770213

GM770802

GM771058

GM769544

GM772543

GM774745

GM775815

GM776040

70f8



Title number LA88157

Schedule of notices of leases continued

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

iz

i3

34

35

36

37

13.02.1998
edged and
numbered 28 in
blue

NOTE: The lease

10.03.1998
edged and
numbered 29 in
blue

14.05.1998
edged and
numbered 30 in
blue

29.05.1998
edged and
numbered 31 in
blue

09.06.1998
edged and
numbered 32 in
blue

NOTE: The lease

15.06.1998
edged and
numbered 33 in
blue

NOTE: The lease

25.06.1938
edged and
numbered 34 in
blue

NOTE: The Lease

03.07.1998
edged and
numbered 35 in
blue

07.07.1998
edged and
numbered 36 in
blue

14.07.1998
edged and
numbered 37 in
blue

14.07.1998
edged and
numbered 38 in
blue

NOTE: The lease

14.07.1998
edged and
numbered 39 in
blue

NOTE: The lease

28.07.19098
edged and
numbered 40 in
blue

04.0B8.1958B
edged and
numbered 41 in
blue

part of 7 Leywell Drive

comprises also other land

14 Leywell Drive

16 Leywell Drive

22 Leywell Drive

part of 9 Leywell Drive

comprises also other land

part of 17 Leywell Drive

comprises also other land

part of 30 Leywell Drive

comprises also other land

10 Leywell Drive

20 Leywell Drive

28 Leywell Drive

part of 19 Leywell Drive

comprises also other land

part of 17 Mellodew Drive

comprises also other land

24 Leywell Drive

24 Leywell Drive

Page 134

09.01.1998
999 years from
1.7.1995

06.02.1998
999 years from
1.7.1995

27.03.1998
999 years from
1.7.1995

24.03.1998
999 vears from
1.7.1995

24.04.1998
999 years from
1.7.1995

12.05.1998
999 years from
1.7.1995

29.05.1998
999 years from
1.7.1995

29.05.1998
999 years from
1.7.1995

05.06.1998
999 years from
1.7.1995

26.06.1998
599 years from
1.7.1995

26.06.1998
999 years from
1.7.1995

26.06.1998
899 years from
1.7.1985

26.06.1998
899 years from
1.7.1995

26.06.1998
899 years from
1.7.1885

GM778841

GM780666

GM7848530

GM785745

GM786303

GM786662

GM787374

GM787913

GM788224

GM788719

GM788720

GM788912

GM78964%

GM720083

Bof 9



Title number LA88157

Schedule of notices of leases continued

iB

as

40

41

42

04.09.1998
edged and
numbered 42 in
blue

17.09.1998
edged and
numbered 43 in
blue

22.09.19¢%8
edged and
numbered 44 in
blue

07.12.1998
edged and
numbered 45 in
blue

NOTE: The lease

09.11.2011
edged and
numbered 46

and 47 in

blue

NOTE: The lease

End of register

18 Leywell Drive

B Leywell Drive

26 Leywell Drive

part of 32 Leywell Drive

comprises also other land

Land lying to the south of
Cop Road

comprises also other land.

Page 135

15.07.1998
999 years from
1.7.1985

27.02.1998
999 years from
1.7.1995

31.07.1998
999 years from
1.7.1995

259.05.1998
899 years from
1.7.18985

30.09.2011

250 years from
and including
30.9.2011

GM792337

GM793360

GM793568

GM799763

MAN1B8408

4

90of 9



el i i HM Land Registry

Wi Corrpr

Tit'e number LABR15T

Crdnance Survey map ieference SDE4073E

¥ Secale 131280

Admuinistrative area Greater Manchester: Oldham

R |

-

Pl Gl Sy A

A

o et v | oo b § S

o

=i

Thia omcial copy fsusd of 7 Auguat 2018 shows the slate of Uhis Ulle plan on 7 August 2010 at 15.82:28,
It 18 adirmisaibie i evidence tn the sama artent os the cognal (s 87 Land Regitratien Act 2002

Thus irtig plan sNows THe Genetal pasdon, Hol the axact Ine, of the boundanes It may be subect o m acale Maet.

Thia titin ba de st with b HM | and Rentatre Fuirham MMes

Page 136

BCaiad from bis pan may fGEMaLcn MOASWEMENTS batwee e $31ha points o thy ground



parEd 4% 1964,

L

THE TRUSTEES OF THE CHARITY
OF EW AND OTHERS

- 10 =

THE MAYOR ALDEEMEN AND BURGESSES
OF THE COUNTY BORQUGE OF OLDHAM

_CONVETANCE

of land at Sholver subjeect to a
lease for 5,000 years.

Edward Haines, LL.M.,
Town Clerk, :
Oldham.

i
- @g;; R
H.M. LAND REGISTRY,

The exhibit referred to in the

FREEHOLD TITLE REGISTERED Objections above on behalf of
TITLE NUMBL? Iih A 143931 Oldham Borough Council
= NUR AL and marked “Exhibit OMBC 3

S—




| SIMPSON of "the Hermitage" Holmes Chapel in the said County ¥erchant

i
Wlbu? One thousend nine hundred and sixty-four BETWEE K }l

THE (FFICIAL CUSTODIAN FOR CHARITIES of the first part CHARLES COLLIE&
JOHNSTON of Narrow Lans House "ards End" Adlington near Haoclesfieldq
in the County of Chester Gentleman IRLS GOODIER HAWORTH of '"High Hedg
Sugar Pit Lane Knutsford in the said County Widow and JAMES FREIERICK

(hereinafter called “the trustees") of the second part and THE MAYOR

ALDERMEN AND BURGESSES OF THE COUNTY BOROUGH OF OLDHAM (hereinafter

celled "the Corporation") of the third part

WHEREA Si= |

1. By a Lease dated the Seventh day of June One thousand six '
bundred and eighty-nine and made between Francis Cartwright and John
Heywood of the cne part and John Mellor of the other part (hereinafter
called "the Leass") the lands described in the schedule hereto were
demised to the said Jobn Mellor for & term of Five thousand years from
the Seventh day of June One thousand six hundred and eighty-nine

subject (after the first three years of the said term) %o a yearly
rent of Ten pounds and to the terms and conditions contained in the
Lease

2. The lands described in the schedule hereto are vested in the

Official Custodian for Charities in fee simple subject to but with the

benefit of the Lease in trust for the Charity of Edward Mayes and é

others

3 This Conveyance is executed by three of the Trustees of the saiﬁ

Charity under an authority given in pursuance of Section 34 of the i




ey

Charities Act, 1960

4. By an Order dated the Seventh day of Féhi-'uary Ore thousand

nine hundred and sixty-four the Charity Commissioners for England
and Wales consented to the sale of the said land% for not less

+han One kundred and forty pounds snd the Corporation have agree
to purchase the same for Ome hundred and forty pounds pursuant to

Part V of the Housing Act, 1957

NOW THIS DEED WITHESSETH as follows:-

I¥ consideration of the sum of ONE EUNDRED AND FORTY POURDS

now paid by the Corporation to the trustees (the receipt whersof |

the trustees hereby acknowledge) the trustees in the neme and en 5

behalf of the Official Cuastodian for Charities convey and as Eh
trustees convey and confirm unmto the purchaser ALL THOSE the land

described in the schedule hereto TO HOLD the same unto the Corpon

ation in fee simple SUBJECT to but with the benefit of the Lease

IP IS HEREBY CERTIFIED that the transaction hereby effected

does not form part of & larger transaction or of a series of
transactions in respect of which the amount or value or the

aggregate amount or value of the consideration exceeds Four

thousand five hundred pounds

~ THE SCHEEDULE -

ALL THAT messuage and tenements land and hereditaments wit
other and every of their appurtenances situate lying and being i
Shelver aforesaid in the said County of Lancaster commonly called
or known by the eeveral or other name or names of the Great

Meadow and the land thereuntc sdjoining or belonging the ley and

Page 139




Iy
the land thereunto belonging the Over Starring the Lower 8ierring the
Little Field and the land thersunio belonging the Great Bank the
Little Benk the Broad Hollin the Over Wood the Middle Wood the Little
Meadow the Great Thawley Wood the Little Thawley Wood the Great
Yeadow High Field the Little Owland Road Little Owlend Wood Little
Dwland end the lower Mough Meadow or by what other name or names the
paid ecloses of the lands before mentioned and every or any o¢f them
then or tharetofore having been or thereafter or might be called or
known and conteining Twenty sores of land or ground or thereabouts
whether the same more or less then or late in the several or other I
holdings or ococupations of the said Thomas Mellor and John Mellor or

the one of them or the one of their essigns or under tenants Togather

with all and singular the houses outoffices buildings barne and other
dwellinghouses upon the eaid closes or any of them then sifuate
erected or standing on the said gardens crofts fields meadows togethen
with the waters watercourses paths common of paeture liberties quarrilp
privete commodities advantages emoluments whatsoever umto the said
messuage tenement land and hereditaments lying being and in any way

therewith or thereto or with the smme or any part thereof with their

appurtenancen

IN WITHNESS whereof the said Charles Collier Johnston Iris

Goodier Haworth and James Frederick Simpson =
in pursuance o Section 34 of the Charities Aot, 1960 and in the name
and on behalf of the Officiasl Custodian for Charities and also of the

trustees have hereunto eet their respective hands and aeals._—.!l

-




C

SICNED % AND DELIVERED by the g
ssid ¢ S COLLIER JOHNSTON
in the prgsence of:- )

Kv@_"-r-"_

-
7|8+, Tarmue St

Mena 2
S&«Ja..’

SICNED %u_%) AND DELIVERED by thes
88l

in the presence ofi-

A v{fM

‘n'

Page 141



J9qunp [3ddegd

uc|IBJapIsuo)

171 08WO a3, paxiew pue
[i2unon ybnosog weyp|c

1O Jjeyaq uo eaoge suonalqo
ayj) Ul 0} paaiaal yqiyxe ay |

syleway

'ON AL

{(shiuay ajqeajaday

ajqedey saeQ

7 alqeded 1uay punodsy Jo PBIyD
WJiaj jo JuaWaUIW W) Jo a3eq
siead Jo w4aj *pjoyasea)/pjoyeady
pannboe fisadouy aleq

Japuap

9N WwWoD)

Kyzadoay

Page 142



syduuay
/ /[

,%.va} Jaquinp Jeddey \.m\umm ¢uﬂ ‘oN 2Ll

{slaudy sjqeajaday

ojqedeg saaeq

- 7 ajquieg juay punosn 4o JaJyn)

i : - WJaj jo uawaduawuio?) Jo a1eqg

5Juad—jo-waaj_pjoyasea/p|oyaaly

Igiﬂx co__ua._mv_m:ou — ®~ o /m\mwmm padinbae fiaadoay aaeg
7] %ﬁg RN 1opuap
// iy 0.
\J‘déﬂ.._x\ql anjWwwo?)
L (7

MQ&D&/ ..\,L)b\ 2 .6% .WCQM‘ A1sadouy

Page 143



The exhibit referred to in the 1. Objector
Objections above on behalf of
Oldham Borough Council )
and marked “Exhibit OMBC 5 e,

2. Deborah Anne Taylor

4. Dated: September
2018

IN THE MATTER OF AN APPLICATION TO

REGISTER A TOWN OR VILLAGE GREEN

BETWEEN:

MR FRED WILKINSON
Applicant
and
OLDHAM METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL
Objector

WITNESS STATEMENT OF DEBORAH ANNE TAYLOR

| Deborah Anne Taylor state as follows:

1. | confirm that the facts and matters set out in this statement are within my own knowledge
unless otherwise stated, and | believe them to be true. Where | refer to information supplied
by others, the source of the information is identified; facts and matters derived from other
sources are true to the best of my knowledge and belief.

2. | have been employed by Oldham Council within the Legal Department for over 25 years,
primarily working within the legal team responsible for property/corporate matters.

Page 144



3. Prior to computerised records of the Council's property deeds, records were kept using a
card system containing information relating to each individual deed packet. The Deed Record
Cards documented when the property was acquired, whom it was acquired from, the
committee whose portfolio the land would belong in and any other relevant information
relating to the acquisition of the property.

4. Exhibit ‘DT1’ shows the Deed Record Card for deed packet D4158 (registered at HM Land
Registry as LA43936) and shows that the property fell within the portfolio of the Housing
Committee when acquired on 19" May 1964. Exhibit ‘DT2’ shows the Deed Record Card for
deed packet D4988 (registered at HM Land Registry as LAB8157) and shows that the property
fell within the portfolio of the Housing Committee when acquired on 29" June 1966.

5. Deed packets which contained land under the portfolio of the Housing Committee or land
that was specified as land for housing, were specifically recorded with a distinctive red mark
which took the form of a red rectangle on the cover of the deed packet.

6. Exhibit ‘DT3’ shows the deed packet cover for D4988. The red marking indicating that land
within the deed packet contains land for housing, can be seen to the top centre of the deed
packet, as well as the word ‘Housing’ to the left of it. Exhibit ‘DT4’ shows the deed packet
cover for D4158’. The red mark indicating that land within the deed packet contains land for
housing can be clearly seen to the top centre of the deed packet and also in the middle of the
deed packet.

| believe that the facts stated in this witness statement are true.

Page 145



sydeway

L ‘oN a1
MQI A7 d3quinp [addeg \MSN,% \\m‘\e\ N a3l

{slhhusy 9|qeajaday

ajqedeyg sareQ

. 7 a|qeded 1uay punocig Jo Ja|yD

S=——— WJiaj jo IUAWIDUIWWOY) JO 33e]

iz 1/P1oyaaiy
-y siead Jo wad] °pjoyases
\»@U\J\I\W\&\w &\J\\m\\\\w\w\\\ \; \m 7 W

7z \ padinboe Aysedouy aieg
hh\b\ T UojIedapisuoc) \..\\.\“,\\\ \\% 7 % ao
A

5 \l\@wﬂ\vﬁ\
i ya Q“@NNMIQ\I %\\\\\\« gy e

. Kyiadoay
177/ 4 \.&3&.\ \w\
D07, |

......L-Q.:n_cxw_. P&xiew pue

R e pajep
«:@Emuﬂm mmms_g B U

0} palisjal yqiyxe ayy

Page 146



N~
4
syJBWaY M

s . o
.%MW.\\N daqunpN [edded \.m\lmm clﬂ ON m_.:.._.mla

(s)auay ojqeajaaay

= T a|qedeyq saie

— ~——— 7 a|qedeq juay puncin Jo jajyn

e L ELU._. .‘_0 JuaWadustwuoy jo I3le(

sJe9d—jo-wJlal. ‘pjoyasea/p|oyaadd

%‘iﬂl :o_un._mv_mcou Iﬂnﬁmﬂﬂ@ zﬂ\m.u paJinbae A11adoiy areQ)
ET fES:A 4OPUBA
%Ljﬂ\\‘ a9} WWo

:......../..m ........ a._Q__._KN.. Umv_._m_.: _ucm |
L 1 SIJSE Perep \ 7

luBwWale)s ssaupm e U . WY ) v\ | f14adouyg
0} palisjal Jiqiyxa ay ) \ - .w)»QM‘




--------------------

UG5 Pelep
JusLale)S SSaUM B )
0} paLIajel JqIyxe ay |

CSBIONS. C Wava 2D 3839
O3 DRNINTIY ANNAD ASWT]

QIOWWDe §Pod My .
€oh92hs o

4 Nt
iy oA QAYOH YW

S

< OPer DS Wor 0L




........ o fyicn, HAIUX3, padsew pue

31 1 TSE - "pajep
Juawalels sseupme Ul |

—




[jouno)d
WDYPIO 901A19G 9oUabi|jaju] sSauisng s,19UNoY weyp|O Ag pasnpold

O

nw OdgNO0 Hqiyx3, paxlewd pue
j1ounog ybnolog weypic

JO Jjeyag uo aaoqge suonoelqC
Al Ul O} paiiajal Jqiyxa ayl

sawefl 1S

:910¢ °l}0ld PIEef)

Page 150



—— ‘BHOE1000L0 $2UEM] ASAINS SoLRURIQ *910Z BB e53GRED pue WBIAdOd uMDLD 'BAAIRE UMl TERLISNE S weUpIO Joile) vor Aq psonposd dey

weypio

. L '. saqued suapiud i

ARG A HuN (LS lidnd ©
f sjooyog Aieuipd @
BupsnoH ¢

dep piep ,sswep 1S

Page 151



(100Z) L1LOZ
ajiuym-Uou

18U10 %

(too2) 102
UM %

(Looz) LLOZ
lueisped %

{L00Z) LLOZ
1ysape|bueg %

L10Z SNSUaD SNO :32n0S - LolIsodwog oIuy3g

(%1 G uonendod ajews; wWeyp|O)
€Z1‘g uonendod ajewa

%9

LG

{26 uonendod 21EW Weypi)
6¢£.°'G uonejndod ajep

%V 8¥

uopended |30} Jo sBEuaad BIRWINST JEIA PIN FLOZ SNO 9UNOS S e
%9 wy %z %0 %z % %9 +Gg pabym  t9-91 pebym  g|-g pebym
T T TS 090909090 v o % 0 0
| i ] 6-5 o £ & 1 ¢
| I vL~-0l 100z pueiBul
| | 6L-5l
m I Z-02 1L0Z pusjBuz
\ -
/ 7 wm - wm 102 puebug
‘ | 6E-S5E _
P —ov
_ 6% — S 100Z Weypio
_ i s 08 T
_ ) ¥g-09 ¥10Z Weupio
:.. 69 - 59
_ : ¥L-0L
. HI H = ww 002 Sower IS
o “- mnml 5e 110Z SBwer 1S
SP{BWE] WEYMHD === SHBJ WBYHO-==— S8{BWBJ SB[ |5 == SEHBN SOWES |G { . | vi0c sower s
P07 SRR Ies) PN SHO (3N0g
paJedwio? WeYPIO pue sawep )g jo uopisodwod aby spueg by peoig
\
YRR e g 0 | e g e ’ =] ‘UONeUSE 9jRINIDE alow moje 0} padofanap Bueq aie swajsAs uonaefosd
AWPC L Mw._muerc_ __.mw bt .m “ (6°06) '8 Pu m_.m.._m_ MBU pue ‘sejeunjsotepun 8q O} Ajayij ase 8Say] Sajeapul SISAjBuE 3NNBS
aouabiyajuy ssousng Sojeunsa eak-pi SNO PLOZ 128y8s sanbiy uoljeindod,
o T T 2 : R L L L
(8'2)B¥ {L'v)og (65) 16 (L'28)5'6L upIo -0S[E MO| AJOA
62 LY .a 0)1 ..o i_T.m.e_m_.a. ._ (g w@,v vm sewep um ale suoipodoid Aouiw auyyg ‘sieak gL inoge ui amel §

0} uibaq |m 1ey) dead uoieindod psbe-ajppiw Buoss
B yum ‘piem BunoA e sl siyj "sanssi pasi|eoo| |Ea3U0D 0O}
Alay1| alojalayy aie saunbi4 "ynos pue jsem ay} o} seale
paaldap alow pue ‘peoy uspuoddiy ay) jo }sesa ay) o)
Buisnoy jo eale snojadsosd alow e oju; Jds si piem siy)

P

(1L00Z @9Ws %€ G + uonendod Weypio)

§298°LL

(L00Z @auts %0°0) uonendod ,sawer 1§

uonejndod



@ 2 w 9 O Q
gEsg_ 2 £, £ &2
HEENIED I ETY
8 25232380 uzEezdt Frziz 60L LEL vl 9.0L SjueLIelD J)joU3] }I0M JO INO 0L
2§ mmwwmmmmmmnmmm_mwmmwm - .
FE FEPEEAEEEEEEEEEEEE 1 [ ¥0 0 o I_ow.. m, <
R R R E B - d E B - v 000's3 HESSSRSES FTS | e k| z = - ! il — =
- i 1 E &R i ] ﬁ 000'0L3 £1 'L LT S0z {Hoddng swosuj Buuwne|s) sjualed suoT
B x| 2 = . & = . . . A a Dg.mwu ...... P i iy 23HTHL e peTm——— e e =
| 6'S v'e m_, ] l_ BEQ i .....<mm._8=.w oll htmhm.am.ﬁmﬁ%_nsm
& g e 5 L - L & 2 - - 000023 " 5= me == L
Vi ; " etwseny waypio---- $ 000623 3| L0 z 62 juawkojdwiaun
b MR O ! el = - - - - cg.omu
— . | 000'SE3 " (18quinuy}
(]
- - I M S i Sl e S T = — + Qg.ovu v:m-m:m Em—.—t—o mmEm—J #m mmEm—)
| 0D0'SP3
$152 127D teancy ~— 000'053 §10Z dMQ :924n08 - ($9- abie) sjuewne|d Jyauaq JJom jo jn
aWoou| poYasnoy UBlPe ¥9-8L P 1 1B]2 Jljausq i JO N0
— ol
8'6 82 Vi 209 pakojduse yjog W
ose  eee ey |eee || awgriing (%¥'v1)
T R (Ao et M e = sjjauaq  om-jo-jno  Buiwep sjuspisasl jo  suoipodosd
A (B B oLt SRR obelone anoge aie aisyl JeASMOH swil-in} Ajeloadss
L e .-|.--lfi,_.i.ilj . .
_me wa 86 ﬁmm_ | s80's. . pokojduiz (96£'29) pafojdwa ale sjuepisas Jo uoilodoid ybiy vy
- e mmeﬂ. ——— ‘pJem 2] SS0I0E uoljelEA Juedijiubis s| a1ay) jeu}
1 10Z SNSU8) SNO @24N0S - ($/-9} PEDE) SNjE}S SILOU0I] ay) ueyy Apybys si (GLE'y23) sauwer 1S Ul awoodul abelaay

(%1 ¢l = abesane weyp|O) (%285 = abelane weyp|O} (026'¢2Z3 = abesane weypiQ)
sjuewIie|d JIJauaq Y4oM-40-3N0 ajey uawdojdwg awoaU| pjoyasnoH uelpsiy

%y L | %€°29 & siLeve3

auwoou| pue Awouod]




|eJuaD uoyappays)
M YHomelppes
YuoN Yuaselppes

YINoS Yuomsippes
yinos ucueppeyn

Q
=
k-]
a
o
]
=3
s
=
]
a2
F

w
m

yuoy uaihoy
me3 yuomspey
9j2A YI0tpep
BIpUBXS]Y

isInypon
she IS
yeweapn

pooMmUg|oH

sower 15

Yinog uotioy
uojduwiorn

pasipieiep

T e e o e — | ———

aleany weypjo---- : 8t

10T 3330 Admog

AHaaod |an4

ea Jes s Jes  ia v (EEEE
gg 6'¢cc 89 ccl L'Le £'89 E
vee [vos  [va |z oo |[NEETEE

pajdnaao
Jaumg %

paidnaao
Jaump v,

pajual
ajeAld %

pajual
|BI90S %,

pajuai
31BALd Y%

pajual
I1B{30S %

LL0Z SNsua) SNO 8nos :ainua] buisnoy

(89Z'621 3 = ebesane weyp|O)
adlld asno}4 pjog abeltaay

& S8z'SLL3

0c ZE siaew ABsaua Aed-aid
e _ sjedas j0 ajeys Juadep uy esnoy deey o) pioye ue ;
sz Jfedas 1o ajers Jusoep u) esnoy deey o} pioye ueg

Jyauag BujsnoH Jojpue uonanpay xe| ||aunos Bujwe)s

%o

weyp|o | ,saweris

€10z AaAang AJlUnuiuocs) INoA pue noa
9102 112UN0J teyp|o :@2.nos - BUISNOH

's19)ow ABlaus Aed-aid yum (9%z¢)
sjuapisal jo uoidodosd ybiy e si alay; ybnoyje ‘suou
weyp|O yim aui ul Ajpeoiq ale siojedipul Buisnoy Jaylo
‘abelane weyp|O 8y} yum aull ul si pue ‘(%1°ZL 0} %0°2)
100z 2ouis umolb sey uoilBpOLIWIODOE P3JUal dleAlld

‘'sajelse abie| Ajaane|al om) Lim ‘pajual |BIooS SI
Buisnoy Jo 9,z /2 pue ‘obeiane uey} os ss9) Ing ‘(% 09)
paidnaoo-Jaumo Ajueuiwopald sI plem siy) Ul BuisnoH

Page 154

(%01 = abeiane weypjQ)
AlaA0d |9n4 Ul SpjoyasnoyH

%C°6

SP|OYasSNOoH JO Jaquunpn

{3t 8361

BuisnoH




yimog uopappeyy

yinog uojdoy
sower 15
pRaYIB|BAN

| pu— L
@ - - s
8 .
| |
I
' |
| IS |
EEE e
T wwon vortoy
| 1
i
] e onoppend
| ] won ousepen

1s€3 yuomsyE,

meyg

| o yuomsye
o{EA Yoopayy
yrewem

weypio
| wpuexsry

sley s

pooMugioH
18I0YP10D)

T wos yromeippeg
T ymoN yuomsippes

T 1em yuomarppes

DAY Weymo -

+HDZ DUAH samnoy ) Qm
saljiwiey awWwooaul mo| uj Bujal| uaipyo
¥l 2’9 uaJpjiyo aloul Jo 3aly |
T —— = —
| 409 _T.S : uaip|yo oz_

% WEeup|Q | % seweris :43IM Sp[OYasnoH

S10Z DHWH/LLOZ SNSU8D SNO '9d1nog Ualpliyd o 1aquinnN

(¢4G° 2 = abelane weypiD)
SPIOYasnoy Papmolstan)

La 04 BRAAS

{9%1 '€ = abeiane weyp|y)
sployasnoy juaied auo

‘¥ %< 81

i ~— " - 1] 1
¥ = . Ja
_m_m.- % L S¥ _ N LIEm
5¢ ov vy {uaippya yuapuadap Inoyyim) sjuesed auon
[ T i T et i g ke T I b R - o
_ bL % 16 6EL L (uaipiiyo Juepuadep i) B.E_mm_,m__o._
ARPLEESSRSENT § 1 " | e L
6'6 20l LEL sajdnod Buniqeyod
= v g == ﬂf.;, ST = |
£l L6E 6¥E _ m.&a:oﬁmct..ng
n..ll e I I d |II|-F| o sk anHar "
AR 9Cl 06 JoA0 pue gg pabe sployasnoy uosiad a|buig
_ _ o mm ..ou:.._ | _uemu wEn;wmbﬁﬁ:%@lm@.a.m:ﬁ

A - ————

} LOZ snhsua) SNO 924n0s - :o_u_mOQEOU ployasncH

Page 155

"$aljILUR) SLo2Ul Mo| Ul Bulal a1e ualp)iyd jo (%9°92)
Japenb e 1ano Aes 0] s yoiym ‘ebelsane si Ausaod piiyo
‘(%6°CL) ualpjiyo wapuadap yym sjualed auo| ale asay}
jo Auew pue (weyp|Q 10} %Z'0E O} pasedwod ‘%G'/¢)
69 Jano asouy} Buipnjoxa ‘abe Bupjiom Jo }npe auo yjm
spjoyasnoy jo suoipodosd ybiy ale asay] -uoiisodwod
ployasnoy jo suloped Bunssisiul swios sey sawer 18

(%€ 0¢ = abelaae weyp|0)
spjoyashoy uosdiad ajbuig

§%9°82

uolnjIsodwo?) pjoyssnoH




uojdwiory

T uwos vovioy

yuoN uojhoy

(B wwon upomarppes
T vwmos unowaippes |

[ 19m uuomarppes

1883 yuomsiey

‘ i [

Sewer 'ig

TS won wkopeed

-
s

meys

s [
| | ]
|
i

6%9

 em

6¢s

L6Y

P e

133N %
L

e

slen 15

-—an_r!:-_..-n! .-.!i_-n.-ul!un .

P | ———— — e e iea - -

elpuexapy

b s—— T

YINag LCHBPPEYD
{eA YI01pa

rinypie]
poasmuyoH

[MEINETY Y

. ﬂ.u-.-g<|-__..-:.—v.—.@..“ o

. w_ HH - wﬂmwmgmoz

syley pue ysybu3z ou o-,v apesb je s3509 §

P e e | “r g ity |

VWA 4

%....EH.

%o

34d -924n0§ - G1/¢L0C SHNSAY SO

e T T

smo ,4

maom

nw

"94,2°¢C Je abelaAe weyp|Q ayj mojaq
Ajeuibiew s (Buiuies) 1o uonesnpl juswAoidws ul JoN)
g133N Jo 8beyjusosad oyl lemo| Buleq  slID
pue abelane weyp|Q ay} uey} Jaybiy Buiag shog ‘paxiw
ale sawoono abelg uojepunod ‘syjep pue ysibu3z
Buipnipur s3809 ¢ ueb (o) uoipodold pajoadxa

ay} mofaq isnl s|iym ‘sbeisae mojeq s (%g')L) SISO
OU Y}M SIaAB3| [00YDS O uoipodold ay| "abelaae weyp|o
ay} yum auy ui st (% 6¢) suoijeaylienb ou ypm uoipodoid
ayy pue ‘(9,/°GlL) sealbap aAeYy S)npe ma4 paxiu
JeUMBLWIOS ale piem SIY) Ul S|SA3| ||IMS pue uoijesnpd

T....ﬁ. | s ‘.

o, weyp|o 9, ,SOLEL IS JuawdojaAap JO |2A8] pooL)

3)Q 92.n0S - §1/¢10Z 3be1S UoNEPUROS SIE3A AluET

(%€ LG = abeiane weypiO)
juawdo|aaap poor) siea) Alieg

X %L GG
S|INS pue uoesnp3

(%962 = abelare weyp|o)
SUOIIEOLI[END OU YIM S}HNPY

%C 6¢C

(%9°'g| = abesane weyp|Q)
aa1Baq yym sinpy

B %LG1




Leet S'veL (oned) seaued oy syjeap g2 Japun

weyp|o T ] L -
. A w— - — |
LeEl _m.ci : (ones) sesneo jie sypesp g2 Japun
sowep g s S — - —
T 625 6'425 (oned) s,g Jepun u sesuepusye Y
i | —— ..|. = S I e ol e e o L.|m
162l T..P_ (AR (of3el) QHO- suoissiuwpe [eydsoy AoueBiewz
P . o e =

g Jee) Z1-800Z puelbu3 ujjeaH 2and / £1-8002Z sansnels aposid3 |endsoy

S3WoNQ YljeaH

25200 J0 WIPMIBAD B

waemispun e G1-ZH0Z UBIam Ayjjeay jo jou uaJpliyd o
m.mmm e s Awaeu_Em;m\ms_.m_&__.ﬂ._ﬂu_m.._e sheis _&._.nwﬁwL "abeiane weyp|O ay) mojag yioq m
N‘mM e s -ie.m:_,“o.ﬂ UM ‘weyp|o Ul 1samo| Yig ayy si Aouejoadxa ajl| ajews)

pue ajew yjog -abeiane ay} anoge Apybiis ale syjesp G/
Japun jo uoiodoud ayj (9% / ¥2) obelane weyp|O au} uey)
Jaybiy yonw ale (9,2 62) saies Bupjows ‘1anamoy ‘weyp|o
ul 1semoj ayj} s jybBremuspun ualp|iyo jo sbejuasiad

"yjjeay Jood pue swajqosd yjeay wuus) buoj Jo swia) ul
‘SWIOU WeYP|O yiim aul| ul Ajpeolg s| sawer 1S Ul yjjesH

9, s)eem g-g Je Buipespisesiq m..mﬁoi

AT ok - - x e i

£1-8002 Salisnels apos|d3 [eydsoy [ §10Z U103V / 9107 81D auluuag

sinoiaeyag yjleaH

(%208 = abelane weyp|0) (%19, = abesane weyp|Q) (%€ 91 abelane 'weyp|Q)
Aouejoadxg 911 ajewa Aouejoadx] 24111 9|16\ swia|qo.d yjjesy wial-buom

& €6 OVl Q %0°LL
)V .




v6 wJaey Ajipoq Ajjen)ay
66 Aanful Inoyim asus|oIp
8Ll Hayl
8zl jnessy uowwon/Aeiyy
61 abeweq jeuiwii)

,Sawer 1S - G0z Sawuod G doj

€08 89 29z ¥0L awud jejoy
F 4 F o A= 1 i L i ]
23 85 8. .mmm# _ uuey >__uom__asu<
Z01 88 9. Ss WY BIYIA
= ) B I||. e e | % iy _._ﬂmm 1
L2 120 N 2N By
48 80T ¥ol 8L affeweq [eupwunin
=5 F F = — _
; { [ : £1ejBa
SR =T (=~ ] o= T ST
89 65 8€ 8z Buytemg Arejbang
ERER o gy = == — =T |
oL rmm 601 m weuy
== F = I A = | ol i

102 vL0Z 510Z
weypio | Wweypiy | ssweris | sewerig

diN9 :9nos - (uogejndod gpo‘g| 12d Saje.) Sal3sie}s sy

(%2 Z abeiany Weyp|o 'v1.02 9oUIS %8'¢-)
InoiAeyag [e1208-1UYy

1 /89

TRAA Ypomeippeg
uojdwoin

Weymo

|enual uopeppeys
yuop umoy

YUON UopBppeYD
Yinog uoueppRYD
PEISIEAN

1S, Yuomsjey
oA yICIPIN
sipuexary
mmypied

S

"

! |
: |
| T wuon ynomsippes
T upos wowappss
g 8 8

N -
.l_ed ) 3]

sBuIsAY WYMo -

. 102 D) Awouooy mey:eainoy
CO_«N_SQOQ 000°04 Jad ajes anolAeYyeq |eI20S-UY SL0Z

‘abelaae weyp|0
3y} aAoge Jsnf sulewsal |j3s 9je) 9]y dU) ‘ISASMOH
'GlL0Z pue | 0g ussmiaq sjusploul InciAeysag |eloS-ljuy
laquinu 3y} U] 8sealdep 9%K{'€ B MBS SSWEr IS

‘Bulliem@
Alelbing pue HEY ‘sawl) {IoIYSA ‘S)NESSY Ul SSSealoul
0} anp s 8WLD Ul 8sealoul ||e1aA0 3y ) "abelane weyp|O
ay) mojaq Apyblis sulewss Ing 'GLOZ PUB $10g Usamiaq
%0l Jen0 AQ pasesloul sswep ‘3§ Ul d)el awud a8yl

Page 158

(%6'g L+ abeiane weyp|Q 'v10Z 20UIS %' 9E)
sBuijemq Aiejbung

§ Sy

(%€ 61+ abesane weyp|O ‘10z 2oWS %6°0L+)
SAWLID JO Jaquinu [e)o)

§ 106




‘s|sAjeue s|y3 o} yydap jo |aAa|
Jdayying e bujpiaoad ‘sjuapissl
|ed0| Wouj }oeqpas) apn|dul

II1M yoiym ‘sajyoid piem

£10Z Aaning
AUNLILLOSD INOA PUE NOA 182IN0S

o, 0p S92IAleS
}|B3Y O] SS82J. poos) ¢
9/, 1S 9N JO S|9A3| MOT 2
%4G S3991)s Uea|n ‘L

a2y} 03 sajepdn jopid aseajal

[l1Mm 9 dedA ay) ul 13djen

asuabjjeju) |e207]

£9A1| 03 asejd
poob e alaymawos bBuiyew u)
juepodwi aJe Yyoiym si103oe

S 1813960] |joMm U0 106 wﬁ::Euxuua_u_:Ec
_mm ve Ewm.m_u._:_o: m_n.omn m._a.._a.. aoejd e sy ﬂcoE:on__m_wz
8c ce SyjuoW Z| }SE| Ul PaI3ajUn|oA aABH
m.mw. £€C b.::EEom ym_.,_ﬂ» =__uo>_o>=_i_.__ntvo>_o>=_ >._0>\_mow..,*
,Mmlr[ ; MNI.I - sieak om) )se| u| assom job sey ﬁaoE_._onmIm_ﬂ_ﬂ_
bl iw G sseak om) Ise] U) to>En_E__mm__ EE:S:H&Z
Gl ; w1 Tk aA|| 0] aor|d SE BalE |B3O| Y}IM paYsHessIq
e ant] o) adeyd se eeie 220 yiMm poysHES

£10Z A3AINg AIUNWWOY JNOA PUE NOA: UOISaLOD pue uojesado-09

(o8¢ = abeiane weypiQ)
syjuow Z| 3se| ul palalajun|oA 9%

%<€¢€

: | m m H w - w 5 3
poerprpdglibiil feiles
P o EiffiitiFsagstiEbnlq
. . R | A
== - Sor%
e e - 0§
S S s
3 B - - shuday weypo - 0L
ot BUROA % -

Page 159

‘sabelane weyp|o ay}

MOJaq ||B ale Baie |BD0| 2y} YlIM UOIOBJSIIES PUE S|9AL|
BuuaslunoA  ‘JUBSWISAJOAUI Ajunwiwod Jo suondasiad
abelane ay) mojeq ||am pue

ybnoiog ay) sso1oe }samo| ay) alam (9%8°9Z) Ssawer 1S
Ul suolodle  |BOO| 9102 2Y) 10} S|eAs| nouun]

(%0°9¢ = abelane weyp|Q)
ouany 9,

%8°9¢

(%1 2 = abeiane weyp|o)

%29

eale |B2O| M UOIJOBJSIIES

Allunwwon pue uolelado-09




‘Jpa SeoN0WON

OO/ 00 TIE0 WM J.aNY Je punoj 2q ued saoiou yybuAdoo sigedidde ay}

‘sosodind |EI0JBLLUWOD 10§ PasN a4 Jou 2q [[Bys podal siy] “pajwi DV © (S1L0Z @Bpamouy) ‘910z BIEP Ployasnoy) ulooy pue (awooul pjoyasnoy) yaaysked

‘0°2°A 95U2217 JuaLILIBA0S) uad( By} JBpPUN PaSUaI)| SJNSIEIS [BUOKEN 10) 2010 BY} WO BIEP WOl pajdepy :So1ISRE}s SNSuan pue SNO

Buisuaol

‘sabed pooytnoqybiau ay) Woly papeojumop aq
os{e ueo a|joid [enpinipul Yoe] "ejep ajioid piem uo 3212 pue mojaq yuij ay) asn aseajd sajyold piem 910z 8Yl Jo} pasn }3Se]ep |{n} Y} PEOJUMOP O

yn'AoB weyp|c® a2uabijsiurssauisng (uo a2jag 3auabijsju) ssauisng ay) Joejuod aseald 'Sajuold PIEA 810Z Sy} U0 uoyeulOojul Jaypun) 104

uonew.oju] Jayun4

WEep[O JNOqE SINSHEls pue Joieesay

910z ®le Suoiosa|d [1ounos) Weyp|o ‘INOW sosd] ‘g0z Jeqwaldas ‘AaaIng AJuNwWo) JINOA pue NoA
5102 (dD) Awouoog maN

'G1-Z10Z dWON ‘9102 218D auluuad 'g|-800Z Saposid3 [ejdsoH

'Z1-800Z Pue|bul YieaH 2liand ‘GLOZ U109 ‘Z1-8002 (SNO) SOUSHEIS [BUOHEN 10 32110

'910Z sda)g aAsod

'L LOZ Snsua) (SNO) SoUsNelS [BuoieN 1o} 23W0 'S 1/ 10Z (24Q) uonesnp3 oy juawiedaq

"LLOZ SNSua) (SNO) SONSHE)S [BUOHEN 10} 30O '§10Z SWOISND PUE SNUaAY WH

"e102 (003Q) abueyd syewn ) pue
ABiaug Joy Juswedaq ‘gLoz Blep siyauag 1ounod weyplO ‘1HOW sosd| ‘€10z Jequiaydag ‘Aemng

Ayunwiwod oA pue no ‘910z Ansibay pueT ‘|10 snsusg (SNO) Soisijels |euolieN Jo a0

‘9102 Biep joayshed |OVD

‘1102 shsua) (SNO) sonsnels |euoneN Joj 820 'S1L0Z eleq (dAQ) suoisuad pue YI0AA Joj Juswiiedag
"P1.0Z Sejewnsa JeaA pIN (SNO) SoiisielS (BUOHEN JO) 8210

‘1102 snsua)d (SNO) sonsnels {eUoleN Joj 89130

160

:Apunwwos pue uonesadoon I,
11111 Lo m.a

‘YjjesH

:uopeanpg
:uonisodwon pjoyasnoH
:BuisnoH

:awoou| pue Awouody]

:uone|ndod

S82IN0S




&'

e ————

£ OBINO NIUXT, POYBW PUE ™ s iy ™
00 LBeI0n LB, i o v T e 0t o
10 jleyaq uo aroqe suondalqc yy— =,
ay) ul o} pansjel Jiquyxs ay)

innen Wok

[ ]

-

~ . T
HOT) Sa ¢ 1]
. 1t L W
)
R
* ] \-U R

1
W )
) i) 1l
Xy 1"

"

! "

[}

Ipcivedere Rise

1
[}

———— =z

wanrs StACLY

-
e

-~

-

c=zsseT




This page is intentionally left blank



1. Objector
2, John Ogden
3. 1% Statement

4. Dated: 6™ November
2018

IN THE MATTER OF AN APPLICATION TO
REGISTER A TOWN OR VILLAGE GREEN

BETWEEN:

MR FRED WILKINSON
Applicant
and
OLDHAM METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL
Objector

WITNESS STATEMENT OF JOHN OGDEN

Page 163



}John Ogden state as follows:

1.4 confirm that the facts and matters set out in this statement are within my own knowledge
unjess otherwise stated, and | believe them to be true. Where | refer to information supplied
by others, the source of the information ts identified; facts and matters derived from other
sources are true to the best of my knowledge and bellef,

2. L have heen employed by Oldham Council for 31 years and during that time have worked in
the Parks and Environmental Services Department. ) started at the Council has a gardener over
30 years ago working on maintaining grounds throughout the borough, during my years’
service | have progressed inlo my cureent role of Area Operations Supervisor based at
Alexandra Park based at Alexandra Park, My cusrent area to Supervise is Oldham East Roylon
and Shaw Districts helping my Manager maintain Parks and open spaces for the past 10 years
I have helped manage the site above within my area.

3. Exhibit JO1' shows the land subject to the Village Green Application. | confirm that the
land has been maintained and mowed by Oldham Council for a number of years prior to 10
years, as above worked within the area of Oldham East Moorside Sholver.

| believe that the {acts stated in this witness statement are true,

SigRed ..ot S
JOHN OGDEN
Date ...iun LG LE N 2AES BB S

Page 164



ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES. @
<3 Q. Oldham
Counclil
3/5 SET Mowing Route Lees / Saddieworth and Oldham East area.
| WEEK ENDING 03/08/2018 |
3 &
cla £
g 24 BE § %J g 5 DATE.
% |22 810 ju |8 (§ | s
“(ER|B |E |4 |5 |8 (8 |8IE
5|28 = ’ par < |uw r ju n| O
1. Miils rec football lees a4 23 /7[, J
2 Lees park / L i
> Springhead football ) v’ L
4. Ashfield crescent v
5 Coopar street school }‘//,4 — 4
8. Stoneleigh quamy V | v/ J
T Grotton Kilns VIV
B Shaw strest school 4///1 — ———
L Ladd hill park aré 30/7/14)
0. 1" Churchill fields (waekly) 4 B
Lt King George Fields SV wooh
12 Dlggle school ﬂ%’}_ . | -
b Denshaw schaool v S 20/7/cf
4. * Dobcross School v , 6 v L
15, Dawson fields v |V ! W om
16. Whitehall Lane VIV S
s Verne Drive \/, s t/, /7/
18: Swift road sholver a4 w
1. St Thomas school \/f v ) e owm
20, Sholver Youth Centra a4 i hom
21. Sholver green open v
space N
22, Pearly Bank \/, = '/’ R e ow
" B ] Hodge cloogh road S TATEE NENEAS
24, “Watérhead park / V4 tL [V‘

Page 165



I
5|8
x o = w
= Evl ! S |z | .
g EE 5 | g g "'é ¢ § DATE.
X gh E (2 El2 % &
g |ESIBE 4|5 |E B BB
(& Z20| E L,__J /i < w x 7] n | 0Ow
. Littlemoor scheol V| v / 2 ¢ /—, /,:l
_ . Greenacres cem V44 . / !
T St Annes school B N .
8. Cow lane/ heap st / L -
. 5t James church i v ! 2 6/ 7’// g
<05 Stoneleigh park \/ v /ou
__3l Mayfield school vV 2 / P / o
- Sacred heart school N —T | L
exk Horton milj school 1/; ! f// ' Er ¢
3. ALevandniy  PARK ViV 27/7/v8
L% |penstaw vitrace 1L a4 2Lié/4
L Vawes & v 2 /8 4
3T, ’ Vs
38.
a8,
40.
M.
42, :
4.
44,
45,
46.
47,
I}
Comments: Jw Quah 25™ L ep 3 G precdes
. o .
}Egned, 73/,4,750#./,? 7 | Signed (manager) 7,/ i
75 et 2 7

Page 166



Historic Maps

Page 167



Page 168



pusbay asay o3 puaba) dew maj o]

£10213q0320 50 :9)Ep uonaNpold
LOZSEC00 | ABAINS BOUBLELG & LOT SIYOp DFEQRIRE PUT JYBUIASOD WAOLD G

woxsdewsz@sajes

WwoY ausdewa mam ﬂwe
:4q pajddng .

AQ pamwy

0BT pUT S AR
s3yBysup aINspunolsy

Aqpasnpoyy  SMNSPUNOJIC) @

6261 PogorT)
WIN Buddery
N Uop3

7568 paswoy

2564 paseaing
. 005°7'L e pajupg
005'Z't RNes

3 -

2561  iajepdepy
& pUS |BUONEN  tawrep deyy
SBELOY 'SO9YEE 49Y pH9
GLLPES ESZERP-SWI 3o woday
6LLPES ESZEPY SWI ey uand

vOP L10'weypi0'peoy ybno)d
abpoH o puen'weypig ranjeys

g ays

o) S ERRIANE

HFATOHS

R e
...w. ....
oys =,

.olisdew?

o S AV T
. K] LK vl \

L] ‘. rFa
- = L -~

COLIrST GOIHST

L. H
BoLEL
=
...f I.|1. a4 eiY
T
i
- sn“_ s
&
=
o]

“Wrier

BUraIRF

Hrret BaTIaL

Page 169



pustE] asay o puabaj dew man o

£10Z 4290320 SO 3)ep uoiINPO.d
LOTSEO00L ARMING DURURIEG SLOT SIYDY ISRARITP PUR JYDUATIOO UMOID)

woyapsdewa@dsaies
WO 3NSARID MMM,
:£q payddng

[P L T M T
syBisut 21nspunig

fqpasnposy  SMNSPUNOIL) @

8508 poyanay
€264 Wbuites
ViH uonp3
ZLEL PAsWIY
Z261 paleams

8361 pogean]
€468 Wuides
Vi uop3
ZUBi PASHOY
Zi6t podanng

GEY DEgRYaT
Ty

261 planEy

z 000'Z:L e paulg
0sZ'LitL 2:Nes

3 m
EL6L  ieyepdely
N puSy jeUonEN  awepy depy
G8ELOF 'SOOTEE 49y PHD

GLLYES ESZEPP-SIWE  yoy poday
GLLPBS ESZEPY SW3 ey Wuad

vOP 110 Weyp|0'peoy ybnol)
aBPOH 4O PUET'WERYPIN SBAOYS

Seag AUsS

.a]isdews

L. 12,24

1134

aoreet

| Ewidy

oyviar

Page 170



pusbs] atay o> puabie) dew maja o)

£102 1390130 50 :8yep UO[1ONpoId

LOLSEOO0L APAIMS SOURURIO S10Z SIYbY BSEqRIER PUR JYLUATCT UMOS) (3
woyaysdewagsajes
EOU.N«_mnﬂEw..S;;

:Aq panddng

WO TINEPUNOI0 FARA
sMBisV) aInspunoIo

Aqg paangosd E:m—uﬂﬂeo @

BSEL pogaan
0861 Whuides
Wi UoRR3
WiN pasiany
Wit pehenng
< 000°Z:L  :ye pajupy
0sZ'LiL #e5
3 M
0861 =mpduyy
N

PUS JEUOIEN  sweN dey

SSELOV'SOOVBE  4OH PO
6LLP6S ESZEVY-SWI 3oy woday
GLLPES ESTEPP SWI 39y waD

vOF 1710'weypiQ'peoy ybno)s
abpoH jo pueT'weypig tanioys

sy=eq ays

oisdewd

barsty

oawrit

[T L

o ...u..-u_lt1111.....1.

bOITEL

L L

onvireg

sorier

LU

ol

Page 171



eihapsil:e“

Site Details:
Sholver, Oldham,Land of Hodge

Clough Road,Oldham,OL1 4QA

b

Report Ref: EMS-443253_594119

Client Ref: EMS_443253_594119
Grid Rek:

3948605, 407385

Map Name: National Grid

1987-1992

Map date:

1:1,250

Scale:

22588
13553
m‘r""gﬁ

Surveyed 1992
Rewsed MA
Leveled NiA

Copynght 1992

Edion NiA

Editen HA

Surveyed 1992
Rewsed WA
Copynght 1992

Lavelled N'A

Printed at:  1:2,000

Ed:ben /A

Rewvised HEA
Copynght 1997

Leveled KA

Surveyed 1992

Produced by

@ Groundsure

Groundsure Insights

www, groyndsure com

Peraverend by

E
£e
prig-

rad
25§
BE S
A8

© Crown copyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Survey 100035207

Production date:

05 October 2017

Page 172

To view map legend click here Legend




< g
- N i
w z‘-$_-h g
3

A=) ) g
() o~ " ut

Sxcls fxads 2 €8 s

== gggég 1315 8 §f it
) -] £ =@ [=]

. 22 3 HiE red 538 59
o - - -
8¢ % & £48 258 B3
I- l-ﬂrmm I & [-3 w Y e
=5 mma |2 gsg g.gg £ 0
m go_ mge S = [ ] nxa 138

m A

55 ITL[E 2 g g i°

=5 22l 3 BB & 3

1=} IZIog - N ol | ] nq

5"3 us i M Z - e = .E Ay g&'

& 5:!3 & ] : ‘| §5

3 5: E8. |E B L B E Eg

D > = o o - 2

2 238 etz § ; 3 o i3
& 28 §s2ig g 3 E £3
in 26 [£ = g = @ ug

Qo

L

i
|2 —

e o

&

ANTA0R
48718

Page 173

To view map legend click here Legend

10




Page 174



Section 106 agreement dated 6 June 1995

Page 175



Page 176



L ——

PY

’l

T THIS PLANNING OBLIGATION is made the (;h day of /QUM—- BETWEEN
_ (1) THE OLDHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL of the Civic Centre PO Box 33 West Street Oldham
oLl 1UL (hereinafter referred to as "the Council™) (2). LOVELL PARTNERSHIFS
(NORTHERN) LIMITED of Marsham House Gerrards Cross Buckinghamshire (hereinafter
referred to as "the Developer") WHEREAS
1. THE Developer is the freshold owner of the Land
2. THE Council is the local planning authority for the purpose of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990 (hereinafter referred to as "the Act") for
the area within which the Land is situated
3. THE Developer has by writicen appllication dated the 14th November 1994
apd bearing the Council's reference number 32460/94 applied for
permission to develop the Land in the manner and for the uses set out in
the plans specifications and particulars comprising the said applicatiecn
4. The Council 1s satisfied that subjeet to the provisions of this Planning
Obligation the development disclosed by the said application is such as
» may be approved by them under the Act and other Acts and Regulations
appertaining thereto and accordingly have jssued a notice of planning
permission of even date (hereinafter referred to as the *Planning
Permission')
5. The Council and the Developer have agreed to enter into this Planning
i Obligation with the intention that the obligations contained in this
] Planning Obligation may be enforced by the Council against the Developer
: or any pPersoun or persons deriving title from him
E NOW IT IS HEREBY AGREED BY AND BETWEEN THE PARTIES HERETO AS FOLLOVWS:
Preliminary
- 1. pDefinitions and interpretation
In this agreement:
| 1.1 wrhe Land" means the land described in the first scheduls
1.2 wplans" means the layout plans elevations sections landscaping scheme:*
and other drawings and specifications describing  the Developer.
-1 -

Page 177

This offici is i
ficial copy is incomplete without the preceding notes page



SR

1.3

i —+nmmmh.11nm
.

1.4

‘ 1.5
1.6

1.7

1.9

1.10

| 1.11
1.12

1.13

proposals for the development of the Land and such engineering and other
calculations and such other documents relating to the Works as have been
approved by the Estates Surveyor

"pwelling House” means 2 dwelling or dwellings and shall include any
garage outbuildings car parking area and garden land and any other land
or structure appurtenant to it

“the Site Highways" means the roads footways and footpaths with the
verges street-lighting landscaped areas and other things appurtenant
which it is intended shall become highways maintainable at the public
expense and which form part of the Works

"the Works" means the works proposed to be carried out on the Land
details of which are set out or referred to in the second schedule

“the Completion Date" means 3 years from the date hereof subject to the
provisions of Clause 7 hereof

“the Estates Surveyor" means the Director of Economic Development of the
Council for the time being or such other officer of the Council as the
Council may appoint from time to time

"the Site Plan™ means the plan annexed to this Agreement

"Planning Permission" means detailed planning permission under
Number 32460/94 for the carrying out of such of the Works as constitute
development within the meaning of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
Section 55

"the Properties" means the existing properties surrounded by the Land
"the Developers Solicitors" means Messrs Glaisyers Glickman of 6th Floor
Arlwright House Parsonage Gardens Manchaster M3 2LE

Words importing omne gender shall be construed as Aimporting any other

gender

Words importing the singular shall be construed as importing the plural

and vice versa

Page 178

This official copy is incomplete without the preceding notes page.




- 1.14

1.15

1.16

1.17

1.18

1.19

his official copy is incomplete without the preceding notes page

Whera any party comprises more than one person the obligations and
liabilities of that party under this agreement shall be joint and
several obligations and liabilities of those persons

The clause and paragraph headings in the body of this agreement and in
the schedules do not form part of this agreement and shall not be taken
into account in its construection or interpretation

Reference to a statute or a provision of a statute include any provision
of a statute amending consolidating or replacing it for the time being
in forece

Words denoting an obligation on a party to do any act matter or thing
include an obligation to procure that it is done and words placing 2
party under a restriction include an obligation not to permit or allow
infringement of the restrictinﬁ

References to this agreement shall include the schedules to this
agreement

Any reference to & clause or schedule shall be te 2 clause or schedule
of this agreement

THIS Planning Obligation is made in pursuance of Section 106 of the Act
and the covenants herein contained by the Developer shall be covenants
which shall be enforceable by the Council against the Developer and all
persons deriving title by through or under the Developer

THAT the Land shall be permanently subject to the conditions
restrictions and provisions regulating the development and use thereof
contained in this Planning Obligation

The covenants on the part of the Developer contained in this Planning
Obligation shall not be enforceable against individual purchasers or
lessees of dwelling units forming part of the Works or against statutory
undertakers in relation to any parts of the Land acquired by them for

electricity sub-stations gas governor stations or pumping stations

— Page 179




5.1 The Developer shall develop the land in accordance with the Planning

Permission and this Planning Obligation and shall not use the land for

any other purpose or development

5.2 The Developer shall within 3 months from the date of this Planning

' Ohligation commence the Works in accordance with the Planning Permission

and within 1 month of necessitating the same submit any alterations to

the Estate Surveyor for approval

' 5.3 The Developer shall within 9 months from the date of this Planning

‘ Obligation submit for written approval to the Director of Technical

Services for the time being to the Council plans of a detailed Highways

and Drainage Scheme in connection with the Works

e Works or as soon as possible

5.4 Within 12 months of the commencement of thi

thereafter to the satisfaction of the Director of Technical gervices for

the time being to the Council both to enter into an Agreement with the

Council (under the provisions of Section 38 of the Bighways Act 1980)

providing for the construction and adoption of such roads and footpaths

as are comprised in the Works and at the same time to enter into an

aAgreement with the Council or other televant Statutory Undertaking 25

I appropriate (under the Provisions of Section 104 of the Water Industry

' Act 1991) - in respect of all main sewers as 2are comprised in the Works

Such Apgreements are to be supported by Bonds for such amounts as the

Council may in its absolute discretion require given by a suitable

l finaneial institution

5.5 To carry out the VWorks at his exclusive expense and in accordance with

the Plans and Planning Permission in a good and workmanlike manner to

the reasonable satisfaction of the Council and with all practical speed

so that the Works shall be completed by the Completion Date

5.6 Tn carrying out the Works to use sound materials and to take down and

remove any work or materials which shall not be in accordance with

statute building regulations or the Plans or Planning Obligation of

- -

Page 180 e

cial COopy 15 1nc Pl pIeCedlng notes page.
This off1 O ete without the 2]




5.7

5.8

3.9

5.10

5.11

5.12

which shall not otherwise have been carried out in acecordance with this
agraement within 14 days of service by the Council of notice to do sa

To keep the Site Highways main sewers play recreation and landscaped
areas forming part of the Works in good repair and in a clean and tidy
condition to the reasonable satisfaction of the Estates Surveyor until
the same shall be adopted by the local authority or other body or some
other arrangement is made to the reasonable satisfaction of the Council
for the future repair maintenance and use of them until adoption

To observe and use all reasonable endeavours to ensure that its
employees and sub-contractors and suppliers observe the reasonable
dirsctions from time to time given by the Estates Surveyor for gaining
accass to the Land

Not to erect or bulld or permit to be erected or built on the Land any
temporary structures or advertising signs save such as may be authorised
in writing to the Estates Surveyor (such authority not to be
unreasonably withheld or delayed)

Until the completion of the Works to keep and maintain the Land {or the
parts of it for the time bsing remaining unsold} {n a neat and tidy
condition and to prevent so far as may be reasonably practicable any
matters or things which may be unnecessarily unsightly or offensive
visually or otherwise and to mzintain all completed but unsold Dwelling
Houses in repair and good marketable condition

Not to name any of its Site Highways or give any name to the Works as a
vhole or any part of them without the prior written approval of the
Council to the name or names

Not to deposit on the Land or mazke up or manufacture on it any building
or other materials or goods except those required for the Works and as
soon as the Works are completed to remove immediately from the Land all

surplus building and other materials and rubbish

A

DPacno 101
1 O L0 L

This official copy is incomplete without the preceding notes page.




5.13 In carrying out the Works to do all acts and things required by and to

perform the building work in conformity in all respects with the

provisions of all statutes applicable and any orders or regulations made

under them and the byelaws or regulations of any statutory undertakers
public utilities and other such bodies and to pay all proper fees
charges fines penalties and other payments whatsoever which during the
progress of the Development may become payable or be demanded by such

undertakers utilities or other such bodies in respect of the Works

5.14 To indemnify and keep indemnifled the Council from and against all
claims demands and liabilitles however arising in raspect of the

!

!

materials and workmanship used by the Developer in the Works or any part
of them

{

5.15 To indemnify the Council {notwithstanding any supervision or approval of
the Council or any person acting on behalf of the Council) against any
liability less claim or proceeding in respect of any injury or damage
whatsoever to any person or to any property real or perscnal lmn S0 far
as such injury or damage arises out of or in the course of or by reason
of the negligent axecution of the Works

5.16 That it is entered on the register maintained by the National House
Building Council (“"the NHBC")} and that every dwelllng House built by it
on the Land will be built so as to comply with the requirements of the

' NHBC

| 6.1 The Council its Estates Surveyor and other authorised persens may enter
upon the Land to view the state and progress of the Works and to inspeect
and test the materials and workmanship and for any other reasonable
purpose including the exercise of the powers given to the Council by

this Planning QObligation under the Act upon preach by the Developer of

any requirement of this Planning Obligation

Page 182

This ici is i i
ig official copy is incomplete without the preceding notes page




6.2 The Council shall not be under any liability whatseever in respesct of
any defeet in the design of the Works by reason of having approved the
Plans or otherwise

6.3 Any information given to the Developer by the Council in this Planning
Obligation or otherwise as to the position of sewers wlres cables pipes
or other conduits within or over the land or any information given as to
levels or soil conditions is to the best of the Council's knowledge
correct but 1f given on the understanding that the Council and its
servants and agents shall not be liable for any inaccuracies and the
Developer is expacted to earry out its own  surveys and sits
investigations

6.4 Any notice under the terms of this agreement or by statute required to
be served by the parties to this Planning Obligation shall be in writing
and shall be sufficiently served by the Council being sent by Recorded
Delivery or Registered post to the Developer at its registered office
for the time being and by the Developer by being sent by Recorded
Delivery or Registered post to the Council at the office address of the
Estates Surveyor

6.5 Nothing contained or implied in this Planning Obligation shall pre judice
or affect the rights powers duties and obligations of the Council in the
exercise of its functions as a local authority and the rights powers
duties and obligations of the Council under all public eor private
statutes byelaws orders and regulations may be as fully and effectually
exercised in relation to the Land and the Works

7.1 If delay in commencing or completing any part of the Works shall arise
solely from one or more of the following causes

7.1.1  Force Majeure
meaning any event or circumstances (whether arising from natural causes
human agency or otherwise) beyond the control of the Developer including
fire explosion flood or lightning

-7 -

' Page 183

This official copy is incomplete without the preceding notes page.



Severe weather conditions adverse to building

Outbreak of war eivil commotion local combination of workmen scarcity of
labour strike or lockout affecting any of the trades employed upon the
Works or any of the trades engaged in the preparation manufacture or
transportation of any of the goods or materials required for the Works
delay of the Company in complying with its obligations under this
Agreement or from any other authority or body needing to give approval
ta the Works or to provide essential services thereto or by reason of
extension variation or alteration made to the Works

Shortage of and consequent delay in obtaining essential materials
Hostilities and acts of the Queen’'s enemies

Procedures required for obtaining the consents for or appertaining to
the construction of the Works and all necessary sarvices

Compliance with all legislations and statutory rules orders regulations
or diractions

Accidents to the Works for which the Developer is not responsible
Restrictions imposed by Government Local Authority or any statutory or
other competent authority

Lack of sales of the Dwelling Houses

Any other matter affecting the progress of the Works which ghzll be
beyond the control of the Developer and would be beyond the control of
any developer or any mortgagee or chargee of this Agreement

and as soon as practicable after such delay written notice of the delay
and the cause thereof is given to the Couneil

Then the Council shall in writing allow such extension of time for the
completion of such part of the Works as shall be reasonable and proper
having regard to the circumstances but such extension shall not in any

event exceed the period of such delay and if there shall be any dispute

Page 184

This official copy is incompiete without the preceding notes page.




10.

il.

12.

or difference between the Council and the Developer as to such extension
of time then the same shall be referred to an expert as hereinaftar
providad

In consideration of the sum of £29,965.65 paid by the Developer to the
Council on the date hereof (the receipt of which the Council hereby
acknowledges} the Council will within a2 reasonable period provide and
layout the area of public open space shown edged blue on the plan marked
"Public Open Space" annexed hereto

NOTHING in this Planning Obligation shall be taken or construed as
absolving the Owner £from obtaining any other censent or approval
required by law

IF any difference or dispute arises between the parties hereto touching
or concerning their respective rights duties liabilities or obligations
under or by virtue of this Planning Obligation the same shall be
referrad to a member of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
(RICS) to be agreed between the parties or failing agreement upon the
request by one party to the other party for arbitration that party may
after 21 days of that request by him request that an arbitrator be
appointed by the President for the time being of the said RICS or his
duly authorised deputy on the application of either party and in this
respect such referral shall be construed as a submission to arbitration
within the meaning of the Arbitration Acts 1950-1979 or any statutory
modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force

EACH party shall bear and pay any costs which they incur in the
preparation and execution of this Planning Obligation

THIS Planning Obligation shall be registered by the Council in the
Register of Local Land Charges in accordance with S106(11) of the Town

and Country Planning Act 1990

Page 185

This official copy is inceomplete without the preceding notes page.



a—— o =

L

This official copy is incomplete without the pre

FIRST SCHEDULE
The Land
Al} that plot of land at Sholver in the Borough of Oldham (being 4.03 acres or
thareabouts) shown edged red on the Site Plan and being
1. Part of the freehold land registered with Title Absolute at HM Land
Gt IS0
Registry under Title Numher 6M620863
2. Part of the freehold land registered with Title Absolute at HM Land
Registry under Title Number GM216307
(But excluding the Properties now erected within the site)
SECOND SCHEDULE
The Works
All site and buildings investigations inspections and surveys and all ground
works and preparation construction and landsecaping and any and all other works
and operations necessary to convert the Land into a residential development of
66 two storey dwellinphouses and bungalows in aeccordance with the Plans and
Planning Permission Number

and of the following types:-

House Tvpe Humber of Units
Kingswood 3 bedroom semi-detached 15
Oakwood 3 bedroom semi-detached 19 /E;g£“/
Dashwood 3 bedrfg?&eta ched 12 44{ M
Harewood 3 bedroom detached 12
Brattan 2 bedroom bungalow 8

66

I |1

Pacge 186

ding notes page.

-



i ~-
- . o
- - t - e

IN WITNESS whereof the Council and the Owner have caused their

respective Common Seals to be hereunto affixed the day and year first before

written Number in Ssal Book
22180 )9s E

THE COMMON SEAL of the
OLDHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL
was hereunto affixed

in the presence of:—

R. WILLIAMS
PRINCIPAL SOLICITOR

THE COMMON SEAL of
LOVELL PARTNERSHIPS
{NORTHERN) LIMITED
was hereunto affixed
in the presence of:-

T M Mt et S
r

W

-

(MM

w Tl

e Page 187 i

This official copy is incomplete without the preceding notes page.



Page 188



(O

(L

[ohs

(4,
| 5,

(7.

(8.

(Dord. GREEN
(NS OPPORT 0F ViLLAacE & TAT LY
FoR LAY AT HOoMGE CLOOGHRoA),
LOWER SHO LVER O LDHAN, (REE AE/RYG/L).
REPLY To ORYECLTIONR BY O LDHAM
METROPA LIT AM BOROUGH Codnlll,
RY FRFD \]W/ILLIAMSON THE APOLICANY,
REFt AE/RTG/b)

FREA /ity RoW R NaY THE APPLICANT.
THE APPLICANT (X MR FRED WiLLiaMRoW.
AL A Do V&“.(zo.?
AR ARdve. (1o.)
AS ARove. (io.)
A% ARovE. (0.
A ARGCYE, (10.]

LETTERY OF ORTFCYIOMNARE SO INTLY
SIGMEDN A THERE REEmM Y 1o BRe Ne POLUY
IM M OLTIRCE L etLERY FRIM ONE AMMRER,

ALL Llve W7 NERSES Wict MAKE THEMREA
AVAILARLE Fopr CROSS ExAMIM AT .

Page 189



@ A &

8. ReFeR To THE AepLicAToN For VIL\LJ?GE
GREEN STYATLU S, PO [) THARO Vi) ARe
COVERED,

3. THE ADDALRS 1R IS TAmeS Ward, THIS
Jo£s Not [PLY THAT £VERBONY REMIDING [N,
THE WARY, Would WaNT To Ve The LAy,

49, TwWENTY YEARYS USE 6F THE LANY,

Som£Pe0PLE W/Ho BavGHT THE Ha uReR axl ‘THE
EQTATE FApm Nev/ (MoRE Thad TWELTY
Ye ARS HGQ? HAVE SIMCE SOLN OP AND Maye )
onN« New PeoPLe Naw OCCoPY THE HOQRER,
Bot, Ry AN LARGE  PEoPLE NAYE USEQ THE
LA For Rec REAYIONAL PORPAREY FoR
OVER TwENMTY YenRrl.

% [~ ([ ~4018,

/

Page 190



@0(5

I QouPPORT OF ViLLace GREENS ALY
FoA LAND AT ModeE CLougH RoAl,
Low £R SHOLYER, OLYHAM. (REE AE/RTG/G).
RepPlY To ORTECTIONY RY FIRSY CHOLCE
MomEL OLMHAM.
RY FREM \JiLLianS o THE RPALICAUT,

bol | TRY (M QPECTING THE LAY BETWEEN Yhe
HouRY OF (- 00 HRL AND A0-05 MRS,
Vo O MILLSEE CHILAREM PLAY (WG AuD Probre
ExERCIZING THELR DAGY,

0. 7D,

(c) THI& 1S TYHE ADDARLRS OF THEL A" Fop
REGIRTARATIAN,

(d) | THEWRITTEN EVIRENCE 1R FAOM PEoPLE Who
URETHELAND,

(e) THE PE~(Y1oN WASSIGNED RY ORERN OFTHE
LAND . THEY \W//o LD LIKE (T REGISTERED
AS A VILLAGE GREEN Ro ketPING THE
GREENM RPACE FREE FROM Ho GG DEVELOPHAY

(Pl Tue One PeRRON \Wmo APPEARY To Ma LonG ER
RESIDE [y THE LocALLTY, Doge LI [u

MooRYUAE AN UXER THe La) on A
ReEGULAR BAYIN.

Page 191



o

(9)

(8)™

QDo

THE ﬂPPLlEjMT (FREN \&/iLLigmBon] ALgue
WiItH H s WiFE [RARLENE \/ILL AmSor) Hay

LW EA AT N2 40, HOVGE CLoOBH Raad, ek
| MAY 199),

SAIT SANES WARD 18 YHE AdRESS o
HE LAY, THELAND (S URE RY THE
EXINENTR OF RoT oM SHoLV AR AND

' MooRYE AV BY AdYo UL \JHa \WAU—=Y T4
LIE I

Bo%mrg&m LVER, [MooRSINE, O LAHAY,
S AN ADDRLEY KuowN RY LAw.

CHECK ORTIECTIONS RY O.r1.8.C. Mue Couplerl.

THE LOCALITY I8 DEFIUE).

1Y 18 FROM THIS ADMRESS , YHAY THE

LOCALITY " AFTHE LANY CAU REINENTIFED,

LoWER SHOLVER, Moo RSINE, O LYHA.
[§ A ENTIY Y,

Page 192



Dors

(
0.4

(a)) THE LAND 12 O8E) - \WitHaur FaRes~
WiteoouT Effﬂu{H “ \WITHOOYC LICENCE,

£ O.
Eﬁf@m
[d.Q

() Mow/ MANY IR A RIGN(FLCAMY NUrBER T
ALL THE PEOPLE \Who S(C:‘NE& THeE PEC|TIow
Wit A¥ ome Tine U THE LAY,

(o)  Tme NejgHROORHGA (& THE Peare Wig
LIVE ONTHE EATATE REFER T THERPET I 104,

(¢) THeCLAIREY Land (8 USEN RY AD U LY
AND CHILDREN FROM THE MNEIGHRO ORHABY,

m [~ 1-30 18

/

Page 193



It s o the
3CiVRIZE 06 Hodzz
Claygh AGS - Doz
w:lning, Rugty.
Partizs, SRinvnan
tuakding, o just <3
onigagizes,

plyhg in ths <l

ani enyeymg ihe
i opeecs apgd fraxh

| chanain Den iz

wikibiz from the
villay enins ugio
| §iaie B

|, emoerian! amerly, _




CHILAREN EMdSOYING THE
OPEN GREEN SPACE ON HODLGE
CLOUVGH AoAad.

PLHOTO EVINENCE I RoPPorT
OfF ViLLARE CREEN S‘-;’Mu%.(RTé/Lo)

Aspo-































]

Ul T4l




206



SPILL ING [Ty U] USS19) SHEI[IA SN, Y

HO5N01Y ADAOH




HYNO0TO HOAOH NO
dINVO TIVE.LOOA ATLHYDIN V




ATLNV.ILSNOD SHONVHD INVH.L dH.L




STAID ® SAOLd — HINOOTIHM HIV TIV




SJdHAVId 4O HOV.LIOHS ON SHIHH.L




TIV d0d dOVdS




IONIHFG-TTIM TV.LNHIN ® TVOISAHd H.LO4d
SH.LOINOJ™d
NAAd HAVH TIV - NHAdTIHO ANV SLNAJVd




HSIDYHIXH LHD SAIINMO ® SOOAd




.H-..:.ltl..._..r
W s -

SR tw.:n..nn.u. M. :_Hh* p

LNO SAVHILI A9ONd 4O HINVD V




JINLL ALJAVd




NVINMONS LNVID
V a1ing O MONS 40 ALNA1d




LOV HH.L NO NI S.LdD JdAITATIMN HH.L NIAH




TIV Ad dJAOFfNH d9 OL .LASNNS




LHOYIN AdUAH HNO LNHIHAAIA V




DEVELOPERS

=
O
%
fx,
5.
<
=
02
a5
=
14
fx)
A
=
o)
%
P
=
e
[
=
<
%
av
—~




suroonauerd-erdind mes/ sding Aqg o1sniy

i .. ; e ——
= — = ol ||..I__..lll_..l._..|.|,.._l_..rl..|l.ll =
- S i -II..P-I-II'I -

Ezﬁ zmmo daLdILoAd mmmpo.
1040 SV AASINDODTA A0 SNLV.ILS NIFAD
AOVTIIA AALNVAD 39 ATNOHS ® NMOAD
S(NVHATO NI NAD V SI LI - SNOLLVIANAD
TANLAI ANV LNITFAND A0J dALOALOAd
A9 ATAOHS LASSV ALINAININOD SIH.L




APPLICATION FOR REGISTRATION OF LAND AT HODGE CLOUGH ROAD,
LOWER SHOLVER, MOORSIDE, OLDHAM AS A TOWN OR VILLAGE GREEN
APPLICATION NUMBER: RTG/6

REPORT

By
Alan Evans
Kings Chambers
36 Young Street
Manchester M3 3FT

Page 223



CONTENTS

RECOMMENDATION 3
1. INTRODUCTION 3
2. THE APPLICATION 3
3. THE APPLICATION LAND 5
4. THE OBJECTIONS TO THE APPLICATION 6
5. THE APPLICANT’S RESPONSE TO THE OBJECTIONS 10
6. ANALYSIS 10
Introduction 10
The statutory purpose of the acquisition of the land within which the 11
Application Land lies
Did the Council provide and lay out the Application Land as public open 12
space?
The power of the Council to do what it did 13
Was use of the Application Land as of right? 16
7. OVERALL CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATION 17

Page 224




RECOMMENDATION
The Application should be rejected

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 I am instructed in this case by Oldham Metropolitan Borough Council in its capacity as the
registration authority for town or village greens within its administrative area and I will
refer to the Council in this capacity as “the Registration Authority”. I will use the

expression “the Council” when referring to it in any other capacity.

1.2 My instructions are to consider an application, reference number RTG/6, to register land at
Hodge Clough Road, Lower Sholver, Moorside, Oldham as a town or village green (“the
Application”) and to provide a report for the Registration Authority’s Commons
Registration Committee containing my recommendation on how the Application should be

determined.

1.3 If I consider that I cannot report on the Application, and, consequently, that it cannot be
determined, without the holding of a non-statutory inquiry, I am instructed to liaise with

my Instructing Solicitor so that arrangements can be made for such an inquiry.

1.4 In the event, I consider that I can properly report (with a recommendation) on the
Application, as it stands on paper, without the necessity for an inquiry and that it can be
determined without one. Hence I report at this stage on the basis of the written material

before me.

2. THE APPLICATION

2.1 The Application was made by Mr Fred Williamson of 40 Hodge Clough Road, Lower
Sholver, Moorside, Oldham (“the Applicant”). It was stamped as received by the
Registration Authority on 27" June 2018.

2.2 The Application seeks to have registered as a town or village green a plot of land at Hodge
Clough Road (“the Application Land”). I will describe the Application Land in section 3

below.

Page 225



2.3 The Application was made on the basis that section 15(2) of the Commons Act 2006 (“the
2006 Act”) applies. Section 15(2) “applies where—
(a) a significant number of the inhabitants of any locality, or of any neighbourhood within
a locality, have indulged as of right in lawful sports and pastimes on the land for a period
of at least 20 years, and

1

(b) they continue to do so at the time of the application.’

2.4 The locality, or neighbourhood within a locality, in respect of which the Application was
made was said to be “Saint James Ward, Lower Sholver, Moorside, Oldham. OL1 4PW.
Hodge Clough Road.”

2.5 The justification for the Application was expressed in the following terms:
“(1) The land has been used for more than twenty years by the residents of Lower
Sholver and Moorside for recreational activities: dog walking, football, rugby, cricket,
kite flying, drone flying, bonfires (5" November), snowman building, carol singing
(Christmas).
(2) The ‘Green’ is a focal point for our community and a safe place where children can
play, close to their homes, and away from traffic.
(3) In January 1996 ‘Barratt Homes Limited’ paid ‘Oldham Borough Council’ the sum
of thirty thousand pounds ‘as a contribution towards the cost of providing an area of
public open space.” ‘Hodge Clough Road’.
(4) The land is used by wildlife: deer, fox, bats.”

2.6 The Application was supported by the following material apart from the standard statutory
declaration by the Applicant. First, documentary evidence, in the form of a copy of a section
106 agreement of 11% January 1996 between the Council and Barratt Homes Limited, was
submitted to substantiate the payment referred to in the previous paragraph. I will call this
section 106 agreement “the 1996 Agreement”. It related to land at Hodge Clough Road,
Oldham and was made in connection with the development of the same. Secondly, two
photographs of the Application Land were submitted. These showed a deer on the
Application Land. Thirdly, 11 letters/statements from local residents setting out the use of
the Application Land were submitted. These spoke of the sort of recreational activities on
the Application Land mentioned in the justification for the Application. Fourthly, a petition,
containing over 100 signatures, was submitted in support of the grant of village green status

for the Application Land. The heading to the petition stated: “I agree that the field on

Page 226



Hodge Clough Rd should be granted village green status for the reasons stated below” and
the reasons were then set out. The stated reasons were that “The green has been used for
over 20 years by residents for the following activities: dog walking, bonfire on November
5" snowman building, drone flying, kite flying, cycling, football, rugby, cricket, golf, frisbe
[sic], rounders and children’s party activities including bouncy castles. The green is also
a communal place where chance meetings of participants of the above activities have
forged and developed close neighbourhood ties and friendships. It is the heart, focal point
of our community and a safe place where children can play close enough to their homes

’

and away from traffic.’

3. THE APPLICATION LAND

3.1 The Application Land is an open area, broadly rectangular in shape, which lies immediately
to the west of that section of Hodge Clough Road which runs in a north-south direction.
The rectangle is much longer in a north-south direction than it is wide in a west-east
direction. The map of the Application Land accompanying the Application records it as

having an area of 9,915m? (which equates to 2.45 acres).

3.2 The eastern boundary of the Application Land is formed by the western kerb line of Hodge
Clough Road. There is housing development opposite the Application Land on the eastern
side of Hodge Clough Road. Housing development on Hodge Clough Road and Dalesman
Drive marks the northern boundary of the Application Land. There are no physical
boundaries to the southern and western sides of the Application Land where it merges into
a further area of open land. Save for the boundary features of the properties to its north, the

Application Land is not enclosed in any way and access to it is easy and unobstructed.

3.3 The Application Land is relatively flat, grassed and generally featureless. It is evident that
a large part of the Application Land (extending from its northern boundary southwards to
a point level with a right angled bend in Hodge Clough Road) is regularly maintained by
mowing the grass. However, there are also unmaintained areas in the south of the
Application Land and along its western boundary. These areas are indistinguishable from

the adjoining open land.

3.4 The Application Land is owned by the Council. It forms part of two registered title
numbers, LA43936 and LA88157, each registered title relating not just to the Application

Page 227



Land but also to a wider area of land. The different title numbers reflect the fact that the
two land acquisitions which include what is now the Application Land occurred at different
points in time. The area of land with title number LA43936 was acquired by the Council’s
statutory predecessor on 19" May 1964 and the area of land with title number LA88157

was acquired by the Council’s statutory predecessor on 29" June 1966.

4. THE OBJECTIONS TO THE APPLICATION

4.1 The Application produced two objections following its notification and publication by the
Registration Authority. The first, submitted to the Registration Authority under cover of a
letter dated 14" September 2018, was from First Choice Homes Oldham Limited (“First
Choice”). The second, submitted to the Registration Authority under cover of a letter dated
215 September 2018, was from the Council in its capacity as the owner of the Application
Land.

4.2 First Choice is a provider of social housing and, according to the Application, is considering
the Application Land for housing development. First Choice objected to the Application on
several grounds which may be summarised as follows:

e The Application had not made clear what qualifying area was being relied on; Lower
Sholver or Moorside were not localities and it had not been shown that they were
neighbourhoods; the same applied to Hodge Clough Road.

e If'the qualifying locality was St James’ Ward, it had not been demonstrated that use of
the Application Land had been by a significant number of the inhabitants of the ward.

e Use of the Application Land had not been “as of right” but “by right” by the licence
of the Council and/or the Application Land was public open space.

e It had not been demonstrated that there had been use of the Application Land for the
whole of the necessary 20 year qualifying period.

4.3 First Choice’s objection was accompanied by a witness statement exhibiting the relevant
official copies of the Land Registry’s register of title, various photographs of the
Application Land and a plan of it.

4.4 The Council also objected to the Application on a number of grounds. Before turning to
these, there are a number of evidential matters which arise from the Council’s objection

and the evidence it has submitted.

Page ¢28



4.5 The first matter relates to general background evidence in relation to Lower Sholver. The
Council explained in its objection that Lower (or Bottom) Sholver was part of an edge-of-
town estate development which was begun in the 1960s to re-house the population of large
areas of more central locations in Oldham which had been subject to clearance
programmes. The rental stock making up the estate was, however, itself subject to large
scale demolition in the mid-1980s following which Lower Sholver was re-developed with

modern housing in the 1990s.

4.6 The second matter relates to the Application Land itself. In this regard, the Council has
supplied (subsequent to its objection') a sequence of historical maps. These show that the
Application Land was undeveloped in the 1950s but was occupied by housing in the 1970s
and 1980s whereas, in the period from 1992-1994, the Application Land is shown again as
undeveloped. I should add at this point that, consistent with the last piece of map evidence,
the evidence in support of the Application tends to suggest that new housing in the area of

Hodge Clough Road was completed in approximately the late 1990s.

4.7 The third matter concerns the statutory purpose for which the areas of land in Lower
Sholver, within which the Application Land is situated, were originally acquired by the
Council in the 1960s. The Council’s objection exhibits a copy of an original conveyance
of 19" May 1964 (“the 1964 Conveyance™) to (what was then) the County Borough of
Oldham of a large area of land at Sholver which is now registered to the Council under title
number L A43936. The conveyance recorded that the purchase was pursuant to Part V of
the Housing Act 1957. The Council does not have any corresponding conveyance for the
land within title number LA88157. However, the Council does produce deed record cards
in respect of title numbers LA43936 and LA88157. These confirm that the relevant
purchases were made on 19" May 1964 and 29" June 1966 respectively and that, in each
case, the relevant committee of the Council in respect of whose portfolio the land was
acquired was the Housing Committee. Moreover, the Council also provides a witness
statement confirming that the deed packet covers (exhibited to the statement) for the parcels
of land registered under title numbers LA43936 and LA88157 each bore a distinctive red,

rectangular mark to indicate that the land fell within the portfolio of the Housing Committee

! Subsequent to its objection the Council submitted not just the historical maps referred to in the paragraph of the
text above but also a copy of a 1995 section 106 agreement (see paragraph 4.9 below) which had been referred to
in its objection and a short witness statement (see paragraph 4.13 below) evidencing the maintenance of the
Application Land which had been referred to in its objection. The Applicant was given the opportunity to comment
on this additional material but did not offer any such comments.

Page 229



or was land which was specified for housing. The deed packet cover in respect of LA88157
also bears the word “housing”. It was therefore submitted on behalf of the Council that
there was sufficient evidence to show, on the balance of probabilities, that the Application

Land was acquired under Housing Act powers.

4.8 The fourth matter relates to the 1996 Agreement produced in support of the Application
and to another section 106 agreement on which the Council particularly relies. As for the
1966 Agreement, the Council’s objection explains that the particular area of land to which
it applied lay to the immediate north, north east and east of the Application Land but that
it did not include the Application Land itself. The contribution in the 1996 Agreement was
towards the provision by the Council of an area of public open space in the area of the land
subject to the agreement but the Council did not have any plan or other information in its
possession to show how the sum paid had been applied. The Council was therefore not able
to confirm that the Application Land had been provided and laid out as public open space
as a result of the 1996 Agreement.

4.9 However, on 6™ June 1995 the Council had entered into another section 106 agreement
(“the 1995 Agreement”) with Lovell Partnerships (Northern) Limited (a copy of which was
supplied by the Council subsequent to the submission of its objection). The 1995
Agreement relates to the development of land for housing within land defined by reference
to title numbers GM619490 and GM216307. These title numbers are referred to in the
official copies of the Land Registry’s register of title for both title numbers LA43936 and
LA88157.

4.10 Clause 8 of the 1995 Agreement provided that “In comsideration of the sum of
£29,965.65 paid by the Developer to the Council on the date hereof (the receipt of which
the Council hereby acknowledges) the Council will within a reasonable period provide and
layout the area of public open space shown edged blue on the plan marked ‘Public Open

1

Space’ annexed hereto.’

4.11 The Council’s copy of the 1995 Agreement does not have the annexed “Public Open
Space” plan. Nevertheless, the official copies of the Land Registry’s register of title for
both title LA43936 and LA88157 make specific reference to the 1995 Agreement. The first
contains the reference “An Agreement dated 6 June 1995 affecting the land edged blue on
the title plan and other land made between (1) Oldham Borough Council and (2) Lovell

Page g30



Partnerships (Northern) Limited relates to planning obligations pursuant to Section 106 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.” The second contains the reference “An
Agreement dated 6 June 1995 affecting the land tinted blue on the title plan and other land
made between (1) Oldham Borough Council and (2) Lovell Partnerships (Northern)
Limited relates to planning obligations pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.” On the title plan for LA43936 the Application Land was outlined in
blue and, on the title plan for LA88157, the Application Land was coloured blue. It was
therefore submitted on behalf of the Council that, on the balance of probabilities, the
Application Land had been provided and laid out as public open space under the 1995

Agreement.

4.12  Before leaving this topic I would add that the 1995 Agreement and the 1996 Agreement
both indicate that associated planning permissions for development in the Hodge Clough
Road area were being granted in the mid-1990s. This in turn is consistent again with the
picture which emerges from the evidence in support of the Application of new housing

being completed round about the late 1990s.

4.13  The fifth matter concerns the maintenance of the Application Land. The Council’s
objection stated that the Application Land was maintained and mowed by the Council.
Subsequent to the objection the Council submitted a witness statement confirming that this

has taken place for in excess of ten years.

4.14 Against that background, the main grounds of the Council’s objection may be
summarised as follows.

e While St James’ Ward was a locality, the Application had not demonstrated use of the
Application Land by a significant number of the inhabitants of this ward.

e No neighbourhood had been put forward in the Application but, if any were to be relied
upon (such as Sholver or Lower Sholver), the significant number test would still not be
satisfied.

e Use of the Application Land had not been “as of right” but with the licence of the
Council because the Application Land had been held by the Council for the whole of
the claimed qualifying period for recreational purposes stemming from its powers to
acquire land under the Housing Acts. Further, the Council had laid out the Application

Land for use as public open space under the 1995 Agreement. These points were fatal

Page 231



to the Application. Reliance was placed on the Supreme Court decision in Barkas v
North Yorkshire County Council®.
e The evidence of the period of use was very limited and, untested, not sufficient to justify

registration of a new green.

S. THE APPLICANT’S RESPONSE TO THE OBJECTIONS

5.1 In due course the Applicant responded to the objections (under cover of a letter to the
Registration Authority dated 7" November 2018). The response was accompanied by
photographs of the Application Land showing, in the main, children playing on it.

5.2 The Applicant’s response adds little to the original Application material. I note in particular
that it does not engage in any detail with the objections made on the basis that use of the
Application Land was not “as of right” and provides no substantive response to the case

made against the Application in this respect.

5.3 A still of a YouTube video was also submitted to the Registration Authority on behalf of
the Applicant by way of an email dated 4™ November 2018. The email also contained a
link to the video itself (which I have watched).

6. ANALYSIS

Introduction

6.1 It is a fundamental requirement of section 15(2) of the 2006 Act that use relied upon to
support an application for registration of a new green must be “as of right . In the Supreme
Court decision in Barkas®, Lord Neuberger said (at paragraph 14) that it was “helpful to
explain that the legal meaning of the expression ‘as of right’ is, somewhat
counterintuitively, almost the converse of ‘of right’ or ‘by right’. Thus, if a person uses
privately owned land ‘of right’ or ‘by right’, the use will have been permitted by the
landowner—hence the use is rightful. However, if the use of such land is ‘as of right’, it is
without the permission of the landowner, and therefore is not ‘of right’ or ‘by right’, but is

actually carried on as if it were by right—hence ‘as of right’. The significance of the little

2[2014] UKSC 31.
3 See footnote 2 above for the case reference.

Page ©32



word ‘as’ is therefore crucial, and renders the expression ‘as of right’ effectively the

9

antithesis of ‘of right’ or ‘by right’”.

6.2 Lord Neuberger also explained (at paragraph 27) that “/as] against the owner (or more
accurately, the person entitled to possession) of land, third parties on the land either have
the right to be there and to do what they are doing, or they do not. If they have a right in
some shape or form (whether in private or public law), then they are permitted to be there,
and if they have no right to be there, then they are trespassers. I cannot see how someone

could have the right to be on the land and yet be a trespasser”.

6.3 In the present case I am left in no doubt from the objections which have been submitted,
particularly that of the Council, that the Application cannot succeed and that it must fail on
the issue of whether use of the Application Land has been “as of right”. It is clear to me
from the documentary material which the Council has produced that, when considered in
the context of the relevant legal framework, use of the Application Land for informal
recreation by local residents (which plainly has occurred) has been “by right” and not “as
of right”. 1 do not consider that there can be any serious dispute about this matter and that
there is, accordingly, no need for any non-statutory inquiry to be held*. Indeed, it would be
a waste of public money to hold an inquiry to explore such issues as the extent of the use
of the Application Land over time or whether its use has been by a significant number of
the inhabitants of any locality or any neighbourhood within a locality, given that any use

must inevitably fail to satisfy the requirement that it be “as of right”.

6.4 In the rest of this section of my report I expand on my reasoning in relation to the issue of

use “as of right”.

The statutory purpose of the acquisition of the land within which the Application Land lies

6.5 I turn first to the question of the statutory purpose for which the land within which the
Application Land lies was originally acquired by the Council. This question is relevant to
the issue of the powers available to the Council, which, in turn, is relevant to the issue of
whether use was “as of right”. 1 will turn to analysis of the relevant statutory powers in

due course but consider at this point the factual question of the statutory purpose of the

4 See Whitmey v Commons Commissioners [2004] EWCA Civ 951.

Page 233



acquisition as shown by the documentary evidence. My conclusion is that the documentary

evidence clearly establishes that the land in question was acquired for housing purposes.

6.6 The 1964 Conveyance in respect of the land registered under title number LA43936 states
expressly that that land was acquired pursuant to Part V of the Housing Act 1957°.
Moreover, the deed record card for the land registered under title number LA43936 shows
that it fell within the portfolio of the Council’s Housing Committee and the mark on the

deed packet cover confirms this position.

6.7 While there is no conveyance available in respect of the land registered under title number
LAS88157, I consider that it is clear that this land too was acquired for housing purposes.
The relevant deed record card shows that the land fell within the portfolio of the Council’s
Housing Committee and the deed packet cover contains the appropriate mark to confirm
this as well as bearing the word “housing”. The conclusion that the land registered under
title number LA88157 was acquired for housing purposes is also entirely consistent with
both the fact that the neighbouring land registered under title LA43936 was so acquired
and the general context of the estate construction programme in the area which began in
the 1960s. The official copy of the Land Registry’s register of title for LA88157 also refers
to transfers out of this title having been made pursuant to Part V of the Housing Act 1985°.

Did the Council provide and lay out the Application Land as public open space?

6.8 Next, I consider the factual question of whether the Application Land was provided and
laid out as public open space by the Council, again another factor relevant to the issue of
whether use of the Application Land was “as of right”. 1 conclude, on the basis of the
documentary material produced by the Council, that it clearly was. Of particular
significance here is the 1995 Agreement. This provided that the Council would, within a
reasonable period, provide and layout an area of public open space as shown on an annexed
plan. The plan in question is not available. However, the official copies of the Land
Registry’s register of title for both title LA43936 and LA88157 each make specific
reference to the 1995 Agreement. The first contains the reference “An Agreement dated 6
June 1995 affecting the land edged blue on the title plan and other land made between (1)
Oldham Borough Council and (2) Lovell Partnerships (Northern) Limited relates to

5 This concerns the provision of housing accommodation.
¢ This concerns the right to buy.

Page @34



planning obligations pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.”
The second contains the reference “An Agreement dated 6 June 1995 affecting the land
tinted blue on the title plan and other land made between (1) Oldham Borough Council and
(2) Lovell Partnerships (Northern) Limited relates to planning obligations pursuant to
Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.”

6.9 Turning first to the title plan for the latter title, LA88157, those parts of the Application
Land which fall within this title number are clearly tinted blue while no other areas on the
plan are similarly tinted. This ties the statement in the 1995 Agreement about the provision
and laying out by the Council of public open space specifically to the Application Land.
The title plan for LA43936 also shows that the other parts of the Application Land fall
within an area of land edged blue on that plan. The Council’s long-standing maintenance
and mowing of the Application Land is all of a piece with the conclusion that it was

provided and laid out as public open space by the Council.

6.10 I also think that, while the Council has not sought to rely on the 1996 Agreement as
such, the public open space referred to therein was probably the Application Land. It is
correct that the land subject to the 1996 Agreement (in the sense of the land bound by it)
does not include the Application Land and that the plan annexed to the 1996 Agreement
does not identify the land on which the public open space was to be provided and laid out.
Nevertheless, the area of public open space which the Council was to provide and lay out
was not to be “on” the land subject to the 1996 Agreement but “in the area of it”. The
obvious area where that was to be was the Application Land immediately next to the land

subject to the 1996 Agreement.

6.11  As to the date at which the Application Land was provided and laid out by the Council
as public open space, the clear inference that is to be drawn is that this would have been in

approximately the late 1990s when the new housing in the immediate area was completed.
The power of the Council to do what it did

6.12  The next question to be considered is that of the power of the Council to lay out and
provide public open space under the Housing Acts. I focus on the Housing Acts because
there is nothing to suggest that so much of the land falling within title numbers LA43936
and LA88157 as comprises the Application Land has ever been appropriated by the Council

Page 235



to anything other than the housing purposes for which it was first acquired. The power to

provide public open space is therefore to be sourced from the Housing Acts.

6.13 At the time of the acquisition of the land within title numbers LA43936 and LA88157
the relevant Housing Act under which the acquisition took place was the Housing Act 1957
(“the 1957 Act”). By the time of the new development in the area of Hodge Clough Road
and the provision and laying out of the Application Land as public open space in
approximately the late 1990s the relevant statute was the Housing Act 1985 (“the 1985
Act”).

6.14  There are two candidate powers under the 1985 Act. Each power applies to a local
housing authority which the Council is and was’. The first candidate power is found in
section 12(1) of the 1985 Act which provides that a “local housing authority may, with the
consent of the Secretary of State, provide and maintain in connection with housing
accommodation provided by them under this Part—

(a) ...

(b) recreation grounds, and

(c) other buildings or land which, in the opinion of the Secretary of State, will serve a
beneficial purpose in connection with the requirements of the persons for whom the

housing accommodation is provided.”

6.15 The second candidate power is found in section 13(1) of the 1985 Act which provides
that a “local housing authority may lay out and construct public streets or roads and open

spaces on land acquired by them for the purposes of this Part.”

6.16  As to the second candidate power under section 13(1) of the 1985 Act, I consider that
the reference to “open space” which is contained in it should be construed to be a reference
to “public open space”. While there is no definition of “open space” in the 1985 Act, I see
no good reason of principle why the word “public” which appears before the word
“streets” should not be read across to the later words “or roads and open spaces”. The
natural reading of section 13(1) is that the word “public” governs not just the word

“streets” but also the words “roads” and “open spaces”. And, in terms of statutory

7See section 1 of the 1985 Act.

Page 436



purpose, it is difficult to see what would justify limiting the meaning of “open spaces” to

those which were not public or not for public use®.

6.17 Moreover, the view of the inspector who reported in the decision which became the
subject of the Barkas litigation was that the words “open spaces” in the corresponding
power of an earlier Housing Act’ enabled the laying out of public open space!®. This view
was endorsed in the first instance decision in the case!!. The judge also took the view that
the emphasis in the corresponding provisions of the earlier statute was on public
provision!2, There is no reason why these views (which were not affected by the subsequent
proceedings in the Court of Appeal and Supreme Court) should not hold good for the
current power in section 13(1) of the 1985 Act.

6.18 For the sake of completeness, I should also add that the words — “land acquired by
them for the purposes of this Part” — found in section 13(1) of the 1985 Act are satisfied in
this case. Section 13 is found in Part IT of the 1985 Act which is concerned with the purpose
of the provision of housing accommodation. The land in title numbers LA43936 and
LA88157 was acquired for such purpose under the 1957 Act!®. The continuity of the law
as between the 1957 Act and the 1985 Act and the treatment under the 1985 Act of
references to its provisions to include reference to corresponding earlier provisions is

expressly provided for in section 2 of the Housing (Consequential Provisions) Act 1985.

6.19 I have focused above on section 13(1) of the 1985 Act rather than section 12(1)(b)
because it seems to me that, of these two candidate powers, it is the former which is the
more appropriate one in the present case. I say that for three reasons. First, in circumstances
where alternative powers might have applied but one power did not require ministerial
consent for its exercise whereas the other did, and there is no evidence of such consent, the

inference to be drawn as to which power was used should be that it was the former power.

8 T do not regard the fact that ministerial consent was required in order for a recreation ground to be provided
under section 12(1)(b) should in some way be regarded as a factor which should be taken to narrow the meaning
of what could be done under the alternative power to do something different (albeit potentially similar) — lay out
open spaces — under section 13(1).

9 Section 79(1)(a) of the Housing Act 1936.

10 See paragraph 122 of the inspector’s report as quoted in the first instance decision in Barkas [2011] EWHC
3653 (Admin) at paragraph 7. The terms of section 79(1)(a) are set out at paragraph 9 of the first instance
judgment.

11720111 EWHC 3653 (Admin) at paragraph 27.

12 Tbid at paragraph 31.

13 Part V of the 1957 Act which is referred to in the 1964 Conveyance dealt with the provision of housing
accommodation. See footnote 5 above.

Page 237



That favours section 13(1) in this case as there is no evidence of ministerial consent.
Secondly, the 1995 Agreement and the 1996 Agreement each referred to the Council
providing and laying out public open space. The description given in these agreements of
what the Council considered it was doing matches more closely the power in section 13(1)
rather than the power to provide a recreation ground in section 12(1)(b). Thirdly, the power
under section 13(1) is untrammelled by any requirement that the open space must be

provided “in connection with housing accommodation provided by them ” (that is, the local

housing authority) [underlining added]. While the Application Land was no doubt provided
for the benefit of the new housing built in about the late 1990s, it may be open to question
whether this housing was provided by the Council. I do not express any more definitive

view than that on this last matter. I simply make the point that the question does not arise
under section 13(1) of the 1985 Act.

6.20 The power to maintain land laid out as open space under section 13(1) of the 1985 Act
is either necessarily implicit in that provision or may be seen as a subsidiary power

authorised under section 111 of the Local Government Act 1972.
Was use of the Application Land as of right?

6.21 Summarising my analysis at this point, I have concluded that the Application Land was
acquired by the Council (as part of the acquisition of wider areas of land) for housing
purposes, that it was provided and laid out by the Council as public open space in
approximately the late 1990s and that there was appropriate power to do so under housing

legislation in the 1985 Act.

6.22  In these circumstances the decision of the Supreme Court in Barkas leaves no room for
any doubt that the use of the Application Land cannot have been “as of right”. Use of the
Application Land by local inhabitants for informal recreation was use of public open space
provided and laid out by the Council for that purpose. Users of the Application Land could
not have been trespassers on it. Their use of it was pursuant to a public right or a publicly
based licence and thus use “by right” and not “as of right”. 1 refer, in particular, to
paragraphs 20-24 of the speech of Lord Neuberger (with whom Baroness Hale, Lord Reed
and Lord Hughes agreed).

Page ©38



6.23  Barkas concerned a recreation ground provided under an earlier statutory power
corresponding to that now found in section 12(1)(b) of the 1985 Act rather than the power
relating to open space now found in section 13 of the 1985 Act. This makes no difference;
the principle is the same. This emerges with particular clarity from paragraph 24 of Lord
Neuberger’s speech where he said: “I agree with Lord Carnwath JSC that, where the owner
of the land is a local, or other public, authority which has lawfully allocated the land for
public use (whether for a limited period or an indefinite period), it is impossible to see how,
at least in the absence of unusual additional facts, it could be appropriate to infer that
members of the public have been using the land ‘as of right, simply because the authority
has not objected to their using the land. It seems very unlikely that, in such a case, the
legislature could have intended that such land would become a village green after the
public had used it for 20 years. It would not merely be understandable why the local
authority had not objected to the public use: it would be positively inconsistent with their
allocation decision if they had done so. The position is very different from that of a private
owner, with no legal duty and no statutory power to allocate land for public use, with no
ability to allocate land as a village green, and who would be expected to protect his or her

legal rights.”

6.24  The principle enunciated in this passage is fatal to the Application.

6.25 To similar effect in Barkas, Lord Carnwath (who agreed with Lord Neuberger and with
whom Baroness Hale, Lord Reed and Lord Hughes agreed) observed that where “land is
owned by a public authority with power to dedicate it for public recreation, and is laid out
as such, there may be no reason to attribute subsequent public use to the assertion of a
distinct village green right” (at paragraph 64) and that “where the owner is a public
authority, no adverse inference can sensibly be drawn from its failure to ‘warn off’ the
users as trespassers, if it has validly and visibly committed the land for public recreation,

under powers that have nothing to do with the acquisition of village green rights.

(Paragraph 65).

7. OVERALL CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATION

7.1 Use of the Application Land by local inhabitants in this case cannot have been “as of right”

but was “by right”. As such, a fundamental requirement for the registration of a new green

Page 239



on the basis of section 15(2) of the 2006 Act is not met. The Application must therefore
fail.

7.2 These conclusions follow inevitably from the documentary material in this case when
considered against the applicable law. In these circumstances there is no need for a public
inquiry to be held in order to determine the Application and it would be a waste of public

money to do so.

7.3 I recommend that the Application should be rejected.

Kings Chambers
36 Young Street Alan Evans
Manchester M3 3FT 13" December 2018

Page @40



	Agenda
	5 Application to Register a Village Green - Land at Hodge Clough Road, Oldham
	Appendix1applicationsite-V1
	Appendix2Evidencesubmittedinsupportofapplication-V1
	Appendix3part1objectionfromFCHO-V1
	Appendix3part2objectionfromFCHO-V1
	Appendix4part1objectionfromCouncil-V1
	Appendix4part2objectionfromCouncil-V1
	Appendix5furtherrepresentationsbyMrWilliamson-V1
	Appendix6InspectorsreportintoHodgeCloughRdapplication-V1


